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INDEX TO PETITIONERS’ APPENDIX

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Complaint (filed 12/17/2013) Vol. 1, 1-17
Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of Snowshoe | Vol. 1, 18-21
Capital’s Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction (filed 05/12/2014)
Defendant Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss | Vol. 1, 22-30
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)
(filed 05/12/2014)
JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries | Vol. 1, 3143
Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 05/29/2014)
Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss
Exhibit Document Description
1 Affidavit of John P. Desmond (filed 05/29/2014) | Vol. 1, 4448
2 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust | Vol. 1, 49-88
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/2010)
3 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and | Vol. 1, 89-92
Shareholders of CWC (dated 09/28/2010)
4 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of | Vol. 1, 93-102
Directors and Sole Shareholder of Superpumper
(dated 09/28/2010)
5 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 1, 103—107
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/28/2010)
6 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 1, 108-110
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/29/2010)
7 2009 Federal Income Tax Return for P. Morabito | Vol. 1, 111-153
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (cont.)

8 May 21, 2014 printout from New York Secretary | Vol. 1, 154-156
of State

9 May 9, 2008 Letter from Garrett Gordon to John | Vol. 1, 157-158
Desmond

10 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement (dated | Vol. 1, 159-164
09/30/2010)

11 Relevant portions of the January 22, 2010 | Vol. 1, 165-176
Deposition of Edward Bayuk

13 Relevant portions of the January 11, 2010 | Vol. 1, 177-180
Deposition of Salvatore Morabito

14 October 1, 2010 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed Vol. 1, 181-187

15 Order admitting Dennis Vacco (filed 02/16/2011) | Vol. 1, 188—190

JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries, Errata
to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 05/30/2014)

Vol. 2, 191-194

Exhibit to Errata to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss

Exhibit

Document Description

12

Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed for APN: 040-620-
09, dated November 10, 2005

Vol. 2, 195-198

Answer to Complaint of P. Morabito, individually and as
trustee of the Arcadia Living Trust (filed 06/02/2014)

Vol. 2, 199-208

Defendant, Snowshow Petroleum, Inc.’s Reply in Support
of Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 06/06/2014)

Vol. 2, 209-216
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit to Reply in Support of Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP
12(b)(2)

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of
Snowshow Petroleum, Inc.’s Reply in Support of
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of
Personal Jurisdiction (filed 06/06/2014)

Vol. 2,217-219

Defendant, Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)
(filed 06/19/2014)

Vol. 2, 220-231

Exhibit to Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of
Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of
Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss for Lack
of Personal Jurisdiction (filed 06/19/2014)

Vol. 2,232-234

JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries,
Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 07/07/2014)

Vol. 2, 235-247

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss

Exhibit Document Description

1 Affidavit of Brian R. Irvine (filed 07/07/2014)

Vol. 2, 248252

2 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust

Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/2010)

Vol. 2, 253-292

3 BHI Electronic Funds Transfers, January 1, 2006
to December 31, 2006

Vol. 2, 293-294
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (cont.)

4 Legal and accounting fees paid by BHI on behalf | Vol. 2, 295-328
of Superpumper; JH78636-JH78639; JH78653-
JH78662; JH78703-JH78719

5 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and | Vol. 2, 329-332
Shareholders of CWC (dated 09/28/2010)

6 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of | Vol. 2, 333-336
Directors and Sole Shareholders of Superpumper
(dated 09/28/2010)

7 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 2, 337-341
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/28/2010)

8 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 2, 342-344
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/29/2010)

9 2009 Federal Income Tax Return for P. Morabito | Vol. 2, 345-388

10 Relevant portions of the January 22, 2010 | Vol. 2, 389-400
Deposition of Edward Bayuk

11 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed for APN: 040-620- | Vol. 2, 401-404
09, dated November 10, 2005

12 Relevant portions of the January 11, 2010 | Vol. 2, 405-408
Deposition of Salvatore Morabito

13 Printout of Arizona Corporation Commission | Vol. 2, 409414

corporate listing for Superpumper, Inc.

Defendant, Superpumper, Inc.’s Reply in Support of
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/15/2014)

Vol. 3, 415421

Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to Snowshoe
Petroleum, Inc.’s (filed 07/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 422431
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to
Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s (filed 07/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 432435

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Motion to
Dismiss as to Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to Snowshoe
Petroleum, Inc.’s

Vol. 3, 436446

Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)
(filed 07/22/2014)

Vol. 3, 447-457

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/22/2014)

Vol. 3, 458461

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying
Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss Complaint

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to
Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/22/2014)

Vol. 3, 462473

Answer to Complaint of Superpumper, Inc., and Snowshoe
Petroleum, Inc. (filed 07/28/2014)

Vol. 3, 474483

Answer to Complaint of Defendants, Edward Bayuk,
individually and as trustee of the Edward William Bayuk
Living Trust, and Salvatore Morabito (filed 09/29/2014)

Vol. 3, 484-494

Notice of Bankruptcy of Consolidated Nevada Corporation
and P. Morabito (filed 2/11/2015)

Vol. 3, 495-498
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Supplemental Notice of Bankruptcy of Consolidated
Nevada Corporation and P. Morabito (filed 02/17/2015)

Vol. 3, 499-502

Exhibits to Supplemental Notice of Bankruptcy of
Consolidated Nevada Corporation and P. Morabito

Exhibit Document Description
1 Involuntary Petition; Case No. BK-N-13-51236 | Vol. 3, 503-534
(filed 06/20/2013)
2 Involuntary Petition; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 | Vol. 3, 535-566
(06/20/2013)

3 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK-
N-13-51236 (filed 12/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 567-570

4 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK-
N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 571-574

Stipulation and Order to File Amended Complaint (filed
05/15/2015)

Vol. 4, 575-579

Exhibit to Stipulation and Order to File Amended
Complaint

Exhibit Document Description

1 First Amended Complaint

Vol. 4, 580-593

William A. Leonard, Trustee for the Bankruptcy Estate of
P. Morabito, First Amended Complaint (filed 05/15/2015)

Vol. 4, 594-607

Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party Pursuant to
NRCP 17(a) (filed 05/15/2015)

Vol. 4, 608-611

Substitution of Counsel (filed 05/26/2015)

Vol. 4, 612-615

Defendants’ Answer to First Amended Complaint (filed
06/02/2015)

Vol. 4, 616623
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Amended Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party
Pursuant to NRCP 17(a) (filed 06/16/2015)

Vol. 4, 624-627

Motion to Partially Quash, or, in the Alternative, for a
Protective Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking
Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client Privilege (filed
03/10/2016)

Vol. 4, 628635

Exhibits to Motion to Partially Quash, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee
from Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-
Client Privilege

Exhibit Document Description

1 March 9, 2016 Letter from Lippes

Vol. 4, 636638

2 Affidavit of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., (dated
03/10/2016)

Vol. 4, 639-641

3 Notice of Issuance of Subpoena to Dennis
Vacco (dated 01/29/2015)

Vol. 4, 642-656

4 March 10, 2016 email chain

Vol. 4, 657-659

Minutes of February 24, 2016 Pre-trial Conference (filed
03/17/2016)

Vol. 4, 660-661

Transcript of February 24, 2016 Pre-trial Conference

Vol. 4, 662725

Plaintiff’s (Leonard) Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to
Partially Quash, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery Protected by
the Attorney-Client Privilege (filed 03/25/2016)

Vol. 5, 726-746

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Partially Quash or,
in the Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding
Trustee from Seeking Discovery Protected by the
Attorney-Client Privilege
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz in Support | Vol. 5, 747-750
of Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants’ Motion
to Partially Quash (filed 03/25/2016)

2 Application for Commission to take Deposition | Vol. 5, 751-759
of Dennis Vacco (filed 09/17/2015)

3 Commission to take Deposition of Dennis Vol. 5, 760-763
Vacco (filed 09/21/2015)

4 Subpoena/Subpoena Duces Tecum to Dennis Vol. 5, 764-776
Vacco (09/29/2015)

5 Notice of Issuance of Subpoena to Dennis Vol. 5, 777-791
Vacco (dated 09/29/2015)

6 Dennis C. Vacco and Lippes Mathias Wexler Vol. 5, 792-801
Friedman LLP, Response to Subpoena (dated
10/15/2015)

7 Condensed Transcript of October 21, 2015 Vol. 5, 802-851
Deposition of Dennis Vacco

8 Transcript of the Bankruptcy Court’s December | Vol. 5, 852-897
22,2015, oral ruling; Case No. BK-N-13-51237

9 Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to | Vol. 5, 898-903
Deposition Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-
51237 (filed 02/03/2016)

10 Notice of Continued Deposition of Dennis Vol. 5, 904-907
Vacco (filed 02/18/2016)

11 Debtor’s Objection to Proposed Order Granting | Vol. 5, 908-925

Motion to Compel Responses to Deposition
Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed
01/22/2016)
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Reply in Support of Motion to Modify Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from
Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client
Privilege (filed 04/06/2016)

Vol. 6, 926-932

Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of Documents
(filed 04/08/2016)

Vol. 6, 933-944

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of
Documents

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz in Support | Vol. 6, 945-948
of Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel (filed
04/08/2016)

2 Bill of Sale — 1254 Mary Fleming Circle (dated | Vol. 6, 949-953
10/01/2010)

3 Bill of Sale — 371 El Camino Del Mar (dated Vol. 6, 954-958
10/01/2010)

4 Bill of Sale — 370 Los Olivos (dated Vol. 6, 959-963
10/01/2010)

5 Personal financial statement of P. Morabito as Vol. 6, 964-965

of May 5, 2009

6 Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production
of Documents to Edward Bayuk (dated
08/14/2015)

Vol. 6, 966977

7 Edward Bayuk’s Responses to Plaintiff’s First

Set of Requests for Production (dated
09/23/2014)

Vol. 6, 978-987

8 Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production
of Documents to Edward Bayuk, as trustee of
the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust (dated
08/14/2015)

Vol. 6, 988997
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of

Documents (cont.)

9

Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward
William Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to
Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production
(dated 09/23/2014)

Vol.

6, 998—-1007

10

Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for

Production of Documents to Edward Bayuk
(dated 01/29/2016)

Vol.

6, 1008-1015

11

Edward Bayuk’s Responses to Plaintiff’s
Second Set of Requests for Production (dated
03/08/2016)

Vol.

6, 1016-1020

12

Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for
Production of Documents to Edward Bayuk, as
trustee of the Edward William Bayuk Living
Trust (dated 01/29/2016)

Vol.

6, 1021-1028

13

Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward
William Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to
Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for
Production (dated 03/08/2016)

Vol.

6, 1029-1033

14

Correspondences between Teresa M. Pilatowicz,
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq. (dated
03/25/2016)

Vol.

6, 1034-1037

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of

Documents (filed 04/25/2016)

Vol.

7, 1038-1044

Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel

Production of Documents (filed 05/09/2016)

Vol.

7, 1045-1057

Exhibits to Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to

Compel Production of Documents
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit

Document Description

1

Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq., in
Support of Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s
Motion to Compel (filed 05/09/2016)

Vol.

7, 1058-1060

Amended Findings, of Fact and Conclusion of
Law in Support of Order Granting Motion for
Summary Judgment; Case No. BK-N-13-51237
(filed 12/22/2014)

Vol.

7,1061-1070

Order Compelling Deposition of P. Morabito
dated March 13, 2014, in Consolidated Nevada
Corp., et al v. JH. et al.; Case No. CV07-02764
(filed 03/13/2014)

Vol.

7, 1071-1074

Emergency Motion Under NRCP 27(e); Petition
for Writ of Prohibition, P. Morabito v. The
Second Judicial District Court of the State of
Nevada in and for the County of Washoe; Case
No. 65319 (filed 04/01/2014)

Vol.

7,1075-1104

Order Denying Petition for Writ of Prohibition;
Case No. 65319 (filed 04/18/2014)

Vol.

7, 1105-1108

Order Granting Summary Judgment; Case No.
BK-N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2014)

Vol.

7, 1109-1112

Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’ Motion to
Partially Quash, filed on March 10, 2016 (filed 06/13/2016)

Vol.

7,1113-1124

Confirming Recommendation Order from June 13, 2016

(filed 07/06/2016)

Vol.

7, 1125-1126

Recommendation for Order RE: Plaintiff’s Motion to
Compel Production of Documents, filed on April 8, 2016

(filed 09/01/2016)

Vol.

7,1127-1133
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Confirming Recommendation Order from September 1, | Vol. 7, 1134-1135
2016 (filed 09/16/2016)
Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show Cause Why | Vol. 8, 11361145
Defendant, Edward Bayuk Should Not Be Held in
Contempt of Court Order (filed 11/21/2016)
Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show
Cause Why Defendant, Edward Bayuk Should Not Be
Held in Contempt of Court Order
Exhibit | Document Description
1 Order to Show Cause Why Defendant, Edward | Vol. 8, 1146-1148
Bayuk Should Not Be Held in Contempt of
Court Order (filed 11/21/2016)
2 Confirming Recommendation Order from Vol. 8, 1149-1151
September 1, 2016 (filed 09/16/2016)
3 Recommendation for Order RE: Plaintiff’s Vol. 8, 1152-1159
Motion to Compel Production of Documents,
filed on April 8, 2016 (filed 09/01/2016)
4 Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of Vol. 8, 1160-1265
Documents (filed 04/08/2016)
5 Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Vol. 8, 12661273
Production of Documents (filed 04/25/2016)
6 Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Vol. 8, 1274-1342
Compel Production of Documents (filed
05/09/2016)
7 Correspondences between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, | Vol. 8, 1343—-1346
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq. (dated
09/22/2016)
8 Edward Bayuk’s Supplemental Responses to Vol. 8, 1347-1352

Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for
Production (dated 10/25/2016)
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show
Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be Held in Contempt of
Court Order (filed 12/19/2016

Vol. 9, 1353-1363

Exhibits to Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for
Order to Show Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be
Held in Contempt of Court Order

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Edward Bayuk in Support of
Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to
Show Cause (filed 12/19/2016)

Vol. 9, 1364-1367

2 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., in Support
of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order
to Show Cause (filed 12/19/2016)

Vol. 9, 1368-1370

3 Redacted copy of the September 6, 2016,
correspondence of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq.

Vol. 9, 1371-1372

Order to Show Cause Why Defendant, Edward Bayuk
Should Not Be Held in Contempt of Court Order (filed
12/23/2016)

Vol. 9, 1373-1375

Response: (1) to Opposition to Application for Order to
Show Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be Held in
Contempt of Court Order and (2) in Support of Order to
Show Cause (filed 12/30/2016)

Vol. 9, 1376-1387

Minutes of January 19, 2017 Deposition of Edward Bayuk
in RE: insurance policies (filed 01/19/2017)

Vol. 9, 1388

Minutes of January 19, 2017 hearing on Order to Show
Cause (filed 01/30/2017)

Vol. 9, 1389

Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a
Protective Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking
Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP (filed 07/18/2017)

Vol. 9, 1390-1404
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee
from Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP
Exhibit Document Description
1 Correspondence between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, | Vol. 9, 1405-1406
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq., dated March 8,
2016
2 Correspondence between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, | Vol. 9, 14071414
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq., dated March 8,
2016, with attached redlined discovery extension
stipulation
3 Jan. 3 — Jan. 4, 2017, email chain from Teresa M. | Vol. 9, 1415-1416
Pilatowicz, Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq.
4 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., in Support | Vol. 9, 1417-1420
of Motion to Quash (filed 07/18/2017)
5 January 24, 2017 email from Teresa M. | Vol. 9, 1421-1422
Pilatowicz, Esq.,
6 Jones Vargas letter to HR and P. Morabito, dated | Vol. 9, 1423—-1425
August 16, 2010
7 Excerpted Transcript of July 26, 2011 Deposition | Vol. 9, 14261431
of Sujata Yalamanchili, Esq.
8 Letter dated June 17, 2011, from Hodgson Russ | Vol. 9, 14321434
(“HR”) to John Desmond and Brian Irvine on
Morabito related issues
9 August 9, 2013, transmitted letter to HR Vol. 9, 1435-1436
10 Excerpted Transcript of July 23, 2014 Deposition | Vol. 9, 1437-1441
of P. Morabito
11 Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP, April 3, | Vol. 9, 1442—-1444

2015 letter
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Motion to Quash Subpoena (cont.)

12 Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP, October
20, 2010 letter RE: Balance forward as of bill
dated 09/19/2010 and 09/16/2010

Vol. 9, 1445-1454

13 Excerpted Transcript of June 25, 2015 Deposition
of 341 Meeting of Creditors

Vol. 9, 1455-1460

(1) Opposition to Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from
Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP; and
(2) Countermotion for Sanctions and to Compel Resetting
of 30(b)(3) Deposition of Hodgson Russ LLP (filed
07/24/2017)

Vol. 10, 1461-1485

Exhibits to (1) Opposition to Motion to Quash
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from
Hodgson Russ LLP; and (2) Countermotion for
Sanctions and to Compel Resetting of 30(b)(3)
Deposition of Hodgson Russ LLP

Exhibit Document Description

A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq., in
Support of (1) Opposition to Motion to Quash
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective
Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking
Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP (filed
07/24/2017)

Vol. 10, 14861494

A-1 Defendants’ NRCP Disclosure of Witnesses and
Documents (dated 12/01/2014)

Vol. 10, 1495-1598

A-2 | Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to
Deposition Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-51237
(filed 02/03/2016)

Vol. 10, 1599-1604
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to (1) Opposition to Motion to Quash
Subpoena; and (2) Countermotion for Sanctions (cont.)

A-3 | Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’| Vol. 10, 1605-1617
Motion to Partially Quash, filed on March 10,
2016 (filed 06/13/2016)

A-4 | Confirming Recommendation Order from | Vol. 10, 16181620
September 1, 2016 (filed 09/16/2016)

A-5 | Subpoena — Civil (dated 01/03/2017) Vol. 10, 1621-1634

A-6 | Notice of Deposition of Person Most| Vol. 10, 1635-1639
Knowledgeable of Hodgson Russ LLP (filed
01/03/2017)

A-7 | January 25, 2017 Letter to Hodgson Russ LLP Vol. 10, 1640-1649

A-8 | Stipulation Regarding Continued Discovery | Vol. 10, 1650-1659
Dates (Sixth Request) (filed 01/30/2017)

A-9 | Stipulation Regarding Continued Discovery | Vol. 10, 1660—1669
Dates (Seventh Request) (filed 05/25/2017)

A-10 | Defendants’ Sixteenth Supplement to NRCP | Vol. 10, 1670-1682
Disclosure of Witnesses and Documents (dated
05/03/2017)

A-11 | Rough Draft Transcript of Garry M. Graber, | Vol. 10, 1683—-1719
Dated July 12, 2017 (Job Number 394849)

A-12 | Sept. 15-Sept. 23, 2010 emails by and between | Vol. 10, 1720-1723

Hodgson Russ LLP and Other Parties

Reply in Support of Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from

Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP,

and

Opposition to Motion for Sanctions (filed 08/03/2017)

Vol.

11, 17241734
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Reply in Support of Countermotion for Sanctions and to
Compel Resetting of 30(b)(6) Deposition of Hodgson Russ
LLP (filed 08/09/2017)

Vol. 11, 1735-1740

Minutes of August 10, 2017 hearing on Motion to Quash
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from Hodgson
Russ LLP, and Opposition to Motion for Sanctions (filed
08/11/2017)

Vol. 11, 1741-1742

Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’ Motion to
Quash Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective
Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from
Hodgson Russ LLP, filed on July 18, 2017 (filed
08/17/2017)

Vol. 11, 1743-1753

Motion for Partial Summary Judgment (filed 08/17/2017)

Vol. 11, 1754-1796

Statement of Undisputed Facts in Support of Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment (filed 08/17/2017)

Vol. 11, 1797-1825

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts in Support of
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Timothy P. Herbst in Support of
Separate Statement of Undisputed Facts in
Support of Motion for Partial Summary Judgment

Vol. 12, 1826-1829

2 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v.
JH. et al., Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
10/12/2010)

Vol. 12, 1830-1846

3 Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v.
JH. et al; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
08/23/2011)

Vol. 12, 1847-1849
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

4 Excerpted Transcript of July 12, 2017 Deposition | Vol. 12, 1850-1852
of Garry M. Graber

5 September 15, 2015 email from Yalamanchili RE: | Vol. 12, 1853—-1854
Follow Up Thoughts

6 September 23, 2010 email between Garry M. | Vol. 12, 1855-1857
Graber and P. Morabito

7 September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili | Vol. 12, 1858-1861
and Eileen Crotty RE: Morabito Wire

8 September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili | Vol. 12, 1862—1863
and Garry M. Graber RE: All Mortgage Balances
as 0 9/20/2010

9 September 20, 2010 email from Garry M. Graber | Vol. 12, 1864-1867
RE: Call

10 September 20, 2010 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 12, 1868—1870
Dennis and Yalamanchili RE: Attorney client
privileged communication

11 September 20, 2010 email string RE: Attorney | Vol. 12, 1871-1875
client privileged communication

12 Appraisal of Real Property: 370 Los Olivos, | Vol. 12, 1876-1903
Laguna Beach, CA, as of Sept. 24, 2010

13 Excerpted Transcript of March 21, 2016 | Vol. 12, 1904-1919
Deposition of P. Morabito

14 P. Morabito Redacted Investment and Bank | Vol. 12, 1920-1922
Report from Sept. 1 to Sept. 30, 2010

15 Excerpted Transcript of June 25, 2015 Deposition | Vol. 12, 1923-1927
of 341 Meeting of Creditors

16 Excerpted Transcript of December 5, 2015 | Vol. 12, 1928-1952

Deposition of P. Morabito
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

17

Purchase and Sale Agreement between Arcadia
Trust and Bayuk Trust entered effective as of
Sept. 27,2010

Vol.

12, 1953-1961

18

First Amendment to Purchase and Sale
Agreement between Arcadia Trust and Bayuk
Trust entered effective as of Sept. 28, 2010

Vol.

12, 1962-1964

19

Appraisal Report providing market value estimate
of real property located at 8355 Panorama Drive,
Reno, NV as of Dec. 7, 2011

Vol.

12, 1965-1995

20

An Appraisal of a vacant .977+ Acre Parcel of
Industrial Land Located at 49 Clayton Place West
of the Pyramid Highway (State Route 445)
Sparks, Washoe County, Nevada and a single-
family residence located at 8355 Panorama Drive
Reno, Washoe County, Nevada 89511 as of
October 1, 2010 a retrospective date

Vol.

13, 1996-2073

21

APN: 040-620-09 Declaration of Value (dated
12/31/2012)

Vol.

14,2074-2075

22

Sellers Closing Statement for real property
located at 8355 Panorama Drive, Reno, NV 89511

Vol.

14,2076-2077

23

Bill of Sale for real property located at 8355
Panorama Drive, Reno, NV 89511

Vol.

14, 2078-2082

24

Operating Agreement of Baruk Properties LLC

Vol.

14,2083-2093

25

Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward William
Bayuk Living Trust’s Answer to Plaintiff’s First
Set of Interrogatories (dated 09/14/2014)

Vol.

14,2094-2104

26

Summary Appraisal Report of real property
located at 1461 Glenneyre Street, Laguna Beach,
CA 92651, as of Sept. 25, 2010

Vol.

14,2105-2155
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

27

Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 23, 2010:
1254 Mary Fleming Circle, Palm Springs, CA
92262

Vol. 15, 21562185

28

Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 23, 2010:
1254 Mary Fleming Circle, Palm Springs, CA
92262

Vol. 15, 21862216

29

Membership Interest Transfer Agreement
between Arcadia Trust and Bayuk Trust entered
effective as of Oct. 1, 2010

Vol. 15, 2217-2224

30

PROMISSORY NOTE [Edward William Bayuk
Living Trust (“Borrower”) promises to pay
Arcadia Living Trust (“Lender”) the principal
sum of $1,617,050.00, plus applicable interest]
(dated 10/01/2010)

Vol. 15, 2225-2228

31

Certificate of Merger dated Oct. 4, 2010

Vol. 15, 2229-2230

32

Articles of Merger Document No. 20100746864-
78 (recorded date 10/04/2010)

Vol. 15, 2231-2241

33

Excerpted Transcript of September 28, 2015
Deposition of Edward William Bayuk

Vol. 15, 2242-2256

34

Grant Deed for real property 1254 Mary Fleming
Circle, Palm Springs, CA 92262; APN: 507-520-
015 (recorded 11/04/2010)

Vol. 15, 22572258

35

General Conveyance made as of Oct. 31, 2010
between Woodland Heights Limited (“Vendor”)
and Arcadia Living Trust (“Purchaser”)

Vol. 15, 2259-2265

36

Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 24, 2010:
371 El Camino Del Mar, Laguna Beach, CA
92651

Vol. 15, 22662292
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

37 Excerpted Transcript of December 6, 2016 | Vol. 15, 2293-2295
Deposition of P. Morabito

38 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 15, 22962297

39 Ledger of Edward Bayuk to P. Morabito Vol. 15, 2298-2300

40 Loan Calculator: Payment Amount (Standard | Vol. 15,2301-2304
Loan Amortization)

41 Payment Schedule of Edward Bayuk Note in | Vol. 15, 2305-2308
Favor of P. Morabito

42 November 10, 2011 email from Vacco RE: Baruk | Vol. 15, 2309-2312
Properties, LLC/P. Morabito/Bank of America,
N.A.

43 May 23, 2012 email from Vacco to Steve Peek | Vol. 15, 2313-2319
RE: Formal Settlement Proposal to resolve the
Morabito matter

44 Excerpted Transcript of March 12, 2015 | Vol. 15,2320-2326
Deposition of 341 Meeting of Creditors

45 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement | Vol. 15, 2327-2332
between P. Morabito and Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc. (dated 09/30/2010)

46 P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as | Vol. 15, 2333-2334
of May 5, 2009

47 March 10, 2010 email from Naz Afshar, CPA to | Vol. 15, 2335-2337
Darren Takemoto, CPA RE: Current Personal
Financial Statement

48 March 10, 2010 email from P. Morabito to Jon | Vol. 15, 2338-2339

RE: ExxonMobil CIM for Florida and associated
maps
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

49

March 20, 2010 email from P. Morabito to Vacco
RE: proceed with placing binding bid on June
22nd with ExxonMobil

Vol. 15, 2340-2341

50

P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as
of May 30, 2010

Vol. 15, 23422343

51

June 28, 2010 email from P. Morabito to George
R. Garner RE: ExxonMobil Chicago Market
Business Plan Review

Vol. 15, 2344-2345

52

Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western Corp.
with and into Superpumper, Inc. (dated
09/28/2010)

Vol. 15, 23462364

53

Page intentionally left blank

Vol. 15, 2365-2366

54

BBVA Compass Proposed Request on behalf of
Superpumper, Inc. (dated 12/15/2010)

Vol. 15, 2367-2397

55

Business Valuation Agreement between Matrix
Capital Markets Group, Inc. and Superpumper,
Inc. (dated 09/30/2010)

Vol. 15, 2398-2434

56

Expert report of James L. McGovern, CPA/CFF,
CVA (dated 01/25/2016)

Vol. 16, 2435-2509

57

June 18, 2014 email from Sam Morabito to
Michael Vanek RE: SPI Analysis

Vol. 17,2510-2511

58

Declaration of P. Morabito in Support of
Opposition to Motion of JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst,
and Berry-Hinckley Industries for Order
Prohibiting Debtor from Using, Acquiring, or
Disposing of or Transferring Assets Pursuant to
11 US.C. §§ 105 and 303(f) Pending
Appointment of Trustee; Case No. BK-N-13-
51237 (filed 07/01/2013)

Vol. 17, 25122516
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

59

State of California Secretary of State Limited
Liability Company — Snowshoe Properties, LLC;
File No. 201027310002 (filed 09/29/2010)

Vol. 17, 25172518

60

PROMISSORY NOTE [Snowshoe Petroleum
(“Maker”) promises to pay P. Morabito
(“Holder) the principal sum of $1,462,213.00]
(dated 11/01/2010)

Vol. 17, 2519-2529

61

PROMISSORY NOTE [Superpumper, Inc.
(“Maker”) promises to pay Compass Bank (the
“Bank” and/or “Holder”) the principal sum of
$3,000,000.00] (dated 08/13/2010)

Vol. 17, 2530-2538

62

Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015
Deposition of Salvatore R. Morabito

Vol. 17, 2539-2541

63

Page intentionally left blank

Vol. 17, 25422543

64

Edward Bayuk’s Answers to Plaintiff’s First Set
of Interrogatories (dated 09/14/2014)

Vol. 17, 25442557

65

October 12, 2012 email from Stan Bernstein to P.
Morabito RE: 2011 return

Vol. 17, 2558-2559

66

Page intentionally left blank

Vol. 17, 2560-2561

67

Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco

Vol. 17, 2562-2564

68

Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s letter of intent to set
out the framework of the contemplated
transaction between: Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.;
David Dwelle, LP; Eclipse Investments, LP;
Speedy Investments; and TAD  Limited
Partnership (dated 04/21/2011)

Vol. 17, 25652572
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

69 Excerpted Transcript of July 10, 2017 Deposition | Vol. 17, 2573-2579
of Dennis C. Vacco

70 April 15, 2011 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 17, 2580-2582
Christian Lovelace; Gregory Ivancic; Vacco RE:
$65 million loan offer from Cerberus

71 Email from Vacco to P. Morabito RE: $2 million | Vol. 17, 2583-2584
second mortgage on the Reno house

72 Email from Vacco to P. Morabito RE: Tim Haves | Vol. 17, 2585-2586

73 Settlement ~ Agreement, Loan  Agreement | Vol. 17, 2587-2595
Modification & Release dated as of Sept. 7, 2012,
entered into by Bank of America and P. Morabito

74 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 25962597

75 February 10, 2012 email from Vacco to Paul | Vol. 17, 2598-2602
Wells and Timothy Haves RE: 1461 Glenneyre
Street, Laguna Beach — Sale

76 May 8, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 17, 2603-2604
RE: Proceed with the corporate set-up with Ray,
Edward and P. Morabito

77 September 4, 2012 email from Vacco to Edward | Vol. 17, 2605-2606
Bayuk RE: Second Deed of Trust documents

78 September 18, 2012 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 17, 2607-2611
Edward Bayuk RE: Deed of Trust

79 October 3, 2012 email from Vacco to P. Morabito | Vol. 17, 2612-2614
RE: Term Sheet on both real estate deal and
option

80 March 14, 2013 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 17, 2615-2616
RE: BHI Hinckley

81 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17,2617-2618
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

82 November 11, 2011 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 17,2619-2620
Morabito RE: Trevor’s commitment to sign

83 November 28, 2011 email string RE: Wiring | Vol. 17, 2621-2623
$560,000 to Lippes Mathias

84 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 2624-2625

85 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 26262627

86 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK- | Vol. 17, 2628-2634
N-13-51236 (filed 12/22/2014)

87 Report of Undisputed Election (11 U.S.C § 702); | Vol. 17, 2635-2637
Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed 01/23/2015)

88 Amended Stipulation and Order to Substitute a | Vol. 17, 2638-2642
Party to NRCP 17(a) (filed 06/11/2015)

89 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, | Vol. 17, 2643—-2648
entered into as of Oct. 6, 2010 between P.
Morabito and Edward Bayuk

90 Complaint; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed | Vol. 17, 2649-2686
10/15/2015)

91 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust | Vol. 17, 2687-2726

Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/2010)

Objection to Recommendation for Order filed August 17,
2017 (filed 08/28/2017)

Vol.

18, 2727-2734

Exhibit to Objection to Recommendation for Order

Exhibit

Document Description

1

Plaintiff’s counsel’s Jan. 24, 2017, email
memorializing the discovery dispute agreement

Vol.

18,2735-2736
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Opposition to Objection to Recommendation for Order filed
August 17, 2017 (filed 09/05/2017)

Vol. 18, 2737-2748

Exhibit to Opposition to Objection to Recommendation
for Order

Exhibit Document Description

A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq., in
Support of Opposition to Objection to
Recommendation for Order (filed 09/05/2017)

Vol. 18, 2749-2752

Reply to Opposition to Objection to Recommendation for
Order filed August 17, 2017 (dated 09/15/2017)

Vol. 18, 27532758

Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (filed 09/22/2017)

Vol. 18, 27592774

Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed Facts in
Support of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (filed 09/22/2017)

Vol. 18, 2775-2790

Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts in Support of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment

Exhibit Document Description

1 Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v.
JH. et al; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
08/23/2011)

Vol. 18, 27912793

2 Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco

Vol. 18, 27942810

3 Order Denying Motion to Dismiss Involuntary
Chapter 7 Petition and Suspending Proceedings
Pursuant to 11 U.S.C §305(a)(1); Case No. BK-
N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2013)

Vol. 18, 2811-2814
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts (cont.)

4 Excerpted Transcript of March 21, 2016 | Vol. 18, 2815-2826
Deposition of P. Morabito

5 Excerpted Transcript of September 28, 2015 | Vol. 18, 2827-2857
Deposition of Edward William Bayuk

6 Appraisal Vol. 18, 2858-2859

7 Budget Summary as of Jan. 7, 2016 Vol. 18, 2860-2862

8 Excerpted Transcript of March 24, 2016 | Vol. 18, 28632871
Deposition of Dennis Banks

9 Excerpted Transcript of March 22, 2016 | Vol. 18, 2872-2879
Deposition of Michael Sewitz

10 Excerpted Transcript of April 27, 2011 | Vol. 18, 28802883
Deposition of Darryl Noble

11 Copies of cancelled checks from Edward Bayuk | Vol. 18, 2884-2892
made payable to P. Morabito

12 CBRE Appraisal of 14th Street Card Lock | Vol. 18, 2893-2906
Facility (dated 02/26/2010)

13 Bank of America wire transfer from P. Morabito | Vol. 18, 2907-2908
to Salvatore Morabito in the amount of
$146,127.00; and a wire transfer from P.
Morabito to Lippes for $25.00 (date 10/01/2010)

14 Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015]| Vol. 18, 2909-2918
Deposition of Christian Mark Lovelace

15 June 18, 2014 email from Sam Morabito to | Vol. 18, 2919-2920
Michael Vanek RE: Analysis of the Superpumper
transaction in 2010

16 Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015 | Vol. 18,2921-2929

Deposition of Salvatore R. Morabito
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts (cont.)

17

PROMISSORY NOTE [Snowshoe Petroleum
(“Maker”) promises to pay P. Morabito
(“Holder”) the principal sum of $1,462,213.00]
(dated 11/01/2010)

Vol.

18,2930-2932

18

TERM NOTE [P. Morabito (“Borrower”)
promises to pay Consolidated Western Corp.
(“Lender”) the principal sum of $939,000.00, plus
interest] (dated 09/01/2010)

Vol.

18,2933-2934

19

SUCCESSOR PROMISSORY NOTE
[Snowshoe Petroleum (“Maker”) promises to pay
P. Morabito (“Holder”) the principal sum of
$492,937.30, plus interest] (dated 02/01/2011)

Vol.

18, 2935-2937

20

Edward Bayuk’s wire transfer to Lippes in the
amount of $517,547.20 (dated 09/29/2010)

Vol.

18, 2938-2940

21

Salvatore Morabito Bank of Montreal September
2011 Wire Transfer

Vol.

18, 2941-2942

22

Declaration of Salvatore Morabito (dated
09/21/2017)

Vol.

18, 2943-2944

23

Edward Bayuk bank wire transfer to
Superpumper, Inc., in the amount of $659,000.00
(dated 09/30/2010)

Vol.

18, 29452947

24

Edward Bayuk checking account statements
between 2010 and 2011 funding the company
with transfers totaling $500,000

Vol.

18,2948-2953

25

Salvatore Morabito’s wire transfer statement
between 2010 and 2011, funding the company
with $750,000

Vol.

18, 2954-2957

26

Payment Schedule of Edward Bayuk Note in
Favor of P. Morabito

Vol.

18,2958-2961
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts (cont.)

27 September 15, 2010 email from Vacco to
Yalamanchili and P. Morabito RE: Follow Up
Thoughts

Vol. 18, 2962-2964

Reply in Support of Motion for Partial Summary Judgment
(dated 10/10/2017)

Vol. 19, 2965-2973

Order Regarding Discovery Commissioner’s
Recommendation for Order dated August 17, 2017 (filed
12/07/2017)

Vol. 19, 2974-2981

Order Denying Motion for Partial Summary Judgment
(filed 12/11/2017)

Vol. 19, 29822997

Defendants’ Motions in Limine (filed 09/12/2018)

Vol. 19, 2998-3006

Exhibits to Defendants’ Motions in Limine

Exhibit Document Description

1 Plaintiff’s Second Supplement to Amended
Disclosures Pursuant to NRCP 16.1(A)(1) (dated
04/28/2016)

Vol. 19,3007-3016

2 Excerpted Transcript of March 25, 2016
Deposition of William A. Leonard

Vol. 19, 3017-3023

3 Plaintiff, Jerry Herbst’s Responses to Defendant
Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s Set of Interrogatories
(dated 02/11/2015); and Plaintiff, Jerry Herbst’s
Responses to Defendant, Salvatore Morabito’s
Set of Interrogatories (dated 02/12/2015)

Vol. 19, 3024-3044

Motion in Limine to Exclude Testimony of Jan Friederich
(filed 09/20/2018)

Vol. 19, 3045-3056
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Motion in Limine to Exclude Testimony of
Jan Friederich

Exhibit Document Description
1 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert Witness Disclosure | Vol. 19, 3057-3071
(dated 02/29/2016)
2 Condensed Transcript of March 29, 2016 | Vol. 19, 3072-3086

Deposition of Jan Friederich

Opposition to Defendants” Motions in Limine (filed
09/28/2018)

Vol. 19, 3087-3102

Exhibits to Opposition to Defendants’ Motions in

Limine
Exhibit Document Description
A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq. in| Vol. 19,3103-3107
Support of Opposition to Defendants’ Motions in
Limine (filed 09/28/2018)
A-1 | Plaintiff’s February 19, 2016, Amended | Vol. 19,3108-3115
Disclosures Pursuant to NRCP 16.1(A)(1)
A-2 | Plaintiff’s January 26, 2016, Expert Witnesses | Vol. 19, 3116-3122
Disclosures (without exhibits)
A-3 | Defendants’ January 26, 2016, and February 29, | Vol. 19, 3123-3131
2016, Expert Witness Disclosures (without
exhibits)
A-4 | Plaintiff’s August 17, 2017, Motion for Partial | Vol. 19, 3132-3175
Summary Judgment (without exhibits)
A-5 | Plaintiff’s August 17, 2017, Statement of | Vol. 19,3176-3205

Undisputed Facts in Support of his Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment (without exhibits)

Defendants’ Reply in Support of Motions in Limine (filed
10/08/2018)

Vol. 20, 3206-3217
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit to Defendants’ Reply in Support of Motions in
Limine

Exhibit Document Description

1 Chapter 7 Trustee, William A. Leonard’s
Responses to Defendants’ First Set of
Interrogatories (dated 05/28/2015)

Vol. 20, 3218-3236

Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motions in Limine to
Exclude the Testimony of Jan Friederich (filed 10/08/2018)

Vol. 20, 3237-3250

Exhibits to Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s
Motions in Limine to Exclude the Testimony of Jan
Friederich

Exhibit Document Description

1 Excerpt of Matrix Report (dated 10/13/2010)

Vol. 20, 3251-3255

2 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert Witness Disclosure
(dated 02/29/2016)

Vol. 20, 3256-3270

3 November 9, 2009 email from P. Morabito to
Daniel Fletcher; Jim Benbrook; Don Whitehead;
Sam Morabito, etc. RE: Jan Friederich entered
consulting agreement with Superpumper

Vol. 20, 3271-3272

4 Excerpted Transcript of March 29, 2016
Deposition of Jan Friederich

Vol. 20, 3273-3296

Defendants’ Objections to Plaintiff’s Pretrial Disclosures
(filed 10/12/2018)

Vol. 20, 3297-3299

Objections to Defendants’ Pretrial Disclosures (filed
10/12/2018)

Vol. 20, 3300-3303

Reply to Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion in
Limine to Exclude the Testimony of Jan Friederich (filed
10/12/2018)

Vol. 20, 33043311
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Minutes of September 11, 2018, Pre-trial Conference (filed
10/19/2018)

Vol. 20, 3312

Stipulated Facts (filed 10/29/2018)

Vol. 20, 3313-3321

Defendants’ Points and Authorities RE: Objection to
Admission of Documents in Conjunction with the

Depositions of P. Morabito and Dennis Vacco (filed
10/30/2018)

Vol. 20, 3322-3325

Plaintiff’s Points and Authorities Regarding Authenticity
and Hearsay Issues (filed 10/31/2018)

Vol. 20, 3326-3334

Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (filed 02/28/2019)

Vol. 21, 3335-3413

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List

Exhibit Document Description

1 Certified copy of the Transcript of September 13,
2010 Judge’s Ruling; Case No. CV07-02764

Vol. 21, 34143438

2 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and | Vol. 21, 3439-3454
Judgment; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
10/12/2010)

3 Judgment; Case No. CV07-0767 (filed | Vol. 21, 3455-3456
08/23/2011)

4 Confession of Judgment; Case No. CV07-02764 | Vol. 21, 34573481
(filed 06/18/2013)

5 November 30, 2011 Settlement Agreement and
Mutual Release

Vol. 22, 3482-3613

6 March 1, 2013 Forbearance Agreement

Vol. 22, 3614-3622
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LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

8

Order Denying Motion to Dismiss Involuntary
Chapter 7 Petition and Suspending Proceedings,
Case 13-51237. ECF No. 94, (filed 12/17/2013)

Vol.

22,3623-3625

19

Report of Undisputed Election— Appointment of
Trustee, Case No. 13-51237, ECF No. 220

Vol.

22,3626-3627

20

Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party
Pursuant to NRCP 17(a), Case No. CV13-02663,
May 15, 2015

Vol.

22,3628-3632

21

Non-Dischargeable Judgment Regarding
Plaintiff’s First and Second Causes of Action,
Case No. 15-05019-GWZ, ECF No. 123, April
30,2018

Vol.

22,3633-3634

22

Memorandum & Decision; Case No. 15-05019-
GWZ, ECF No. 124, April 30, 2018

Vol.

22,3635-3654

23

Amended Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law
in Support of Judgment Regarding Plaintiff’s
First and Second Causes of Action; Case 15-
05019-GWZ, ECF No. 122, April 30, 2018

Vol.

22,3655-3679

25

September 15, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to
Vacco and P. Morabito RE: Follow Up Thoughts

Vol.

22, 3680-3681

26

September 18, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco

Vol.

22, 3682-3683

27

September 20, 2010 email from Vacco to P.
Morabito RE: Spirit

Vol.

22,3684-3684

28

September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili
and Crotty RE: Morabito -Wire

Vol.

22,3685-3687

29

September 20, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to
Graber RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication

Vol.

22,3688-3689

Page 33 of 67




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

30

September 21, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco and Cross RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication

Vol.

22,3690-3692

31

September 23, 2010 email chain between Graber
and P. Morabito RE: Change of Primary
Residence from Reno to Laguna Beach

Vol.

22,3693-3694

32

September 23, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to
Graber RE: Change of Primary Residence from
Reno to Laguna Beach

Vol.

22,3695-3696

33

September 24, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco RE: Superpumper, Inc.

Vol.

22,3697-3697

34

September 26, 2010 email from Vacco to P.
Morabito RE: Judgment for a fixed debt

Vol.

22,3698-3698

35

September 27, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco RE: First Amendment to Residential Lease
executed 9/27/2010

Vol.

22,3699-3701

36

November 7, 2012 emails between Vacco, P.
Morabito, C. Lovelace RE: Attorney Client
Privileged Communication

Vol.

22,3702-3703

37

Morabito BMO Bank Statement — September
2010

Vol.

22,3704-3710

38

Lippes Mathias Trust Ledger History

Vol.

23,3711-3716

39

Fifth Amendment & Restatement of the Trust
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust dated
September 30, 2010

Vol.

23, 3717-3755

42

P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as
of May 5, 2009

Vol.

23, 37563756
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43 March 10, 2010 email chain between Afshar and | Vol. 23, 3757-3758
Takemoto RE: Current Personal Financial
Statement
44 Salazar Net Worth Report (dated 03/15/2011) Vol. 23, 3759-3772
45 Purchase and Sale Agreement Vol. 23, 3773-3780
46 First Amendment to Purchase and Sale | Vol. 23, 3781-3782
Agreement
47 Panorama — Estimated Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3783-3792
48 El Camino — Final Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3793-3793
49 Los Olivos — Final Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3794-3794
50 Deed for Transfer of Panorama Property Vol. 23, 3795-3804
51 Deed for Transfer for Los Olivos Vol. 23, 3805-3806
52 Deed for Transfer of El Camino Vol. 23, 3807-3808
53 Kimmel Appraisal Report for Panorama and | Vol. 23, 3809-3886
Clayton
54 Bill of Sale — Panorama Vol. 23, 3887-3890
55 Bill of Sale — Mary Fleming Vol. 23, 3891-3894
56 Bill of Sale — E1 Camino Vol. 23, 3895-3898
57 Bill of Sale — Los Olivos Vol. 23, 3899-3902
58 Declaration of Value and Transfer Deed of 8355 | Vol. 23, 3903-3904
Panorama (recorded 12/31/2012)
60 Baruk Properties Operating Agreement Vol. 23, 3905-3914
61 Baruk Membership Transfer Agreement Vol. 24, 3915-3921
62 Promissory Note for $1,617,050 (dated | Vol. 24, 3922-3924

10/01/2010)
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63 Baruk Properties/Snowshoe Properties, | Vol. 24, 3925-3926
Certificate of Merger (filed 10/04/2010)

64 Baruk Properties/Snowshoe Properties, Articles | Vol. 24, 3927-3937
of Merger

65 Grant Deed from Snowshoe to Bayuk Living | Vol. 24, 3938-3939
Trust; Doc No. 2010-0531071 (recorded
11/04/2010)

66 Grant Deed — 1461 Glenneyre; Doc No. | Vol. 24, 3940-3941
2010000511045 (recorded 10/08/2010)

67 Grant Deed — 570 Glenneyre; Doc No. | Vol. 24, 3942-3944
2010000508587 (recorded 10/08/2010)

68 Attorney File re: Conveyance between Woodland | Vol. 24, 3945-3980
Heights and Arcadia Living Trust

69 October 24, 2011 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 24, 3981-3982
Vacco RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication

70 November 10, 2011 email chain between Vacco | Vol. 24, 3983-3985
and P. Morabito RE: Baruk Properties, LLC/Paul
Morabito/Bank of America, N.A.

71 Bayuk First Ledger Vol. 24, 39863987

72 Amortization Schedule Vol. 24, 3988-3990

73 Bayuk Second Ledger Vol. 24, 3991-3993

74 Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment and | Vol. 24, 39944053
Declaration of Edward Bayuk; Case No. 13-
51237, ECF No. 146 (filed 10/03/2014)

75 March 30, 2012 email from Vacco to Bayuk RE: | Vol. 24, 4054-4055

Letter to BOA
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76 March 10, 2010 email chain between P. Morabito | Vol. 24, 40564056
and jon@aim13.com RE: Strictly Confidential
77 May 20, 2010 email chain between P. Morabito, | Vol. 24, 4057-4057
Vacco and Michael Pace RE: Proceed with
placing a Binding Bid on June 22nd with
ExxonMobil
78 Morabito Personal Financial Statement May 2010 | Vol. 24, 4058—4059
79 June 28, 2010 email from P. Morabito to George | Vol. 24, 4060—-4066
Garner RE: ExxonMobil Chicago Market
Business Plan Review
80 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement Vol. 24, 4067-4071
81 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 24, 4072—4075
Corporation with and Into Superpumper, Inc.
82 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 24, 40764077
Corporation with and Into Superpumper, Inc.
83 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of | Vol. 24, 40784080
Directors and Sole Shareholder of Superpumper,
Inc.
84 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and | Vol. 24, 4081-4083
Shareholders  of  Consolidated ~ Western
Corporation
85 Arizona Corporation Commission Letter dated | Vol. 24, 4084—4091
October 21, 2010
86 Nevada Articles of Merger Vol. 24, 4092—-4098
87 New York Creation of Snowshoe Vol. 24, 40994103
88 April 26, 2012 email from Vacco to Afshar RE: | Vol. 24, 41044106
Ownership Structure of SPI
90 September 30, 2010 Matrix Retention Agreement | Vol. 24, 41074110
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91 McGovern Expert Report Vol. 25,4111-4189

92 Appendix B to McGovern Report — Source 4 — | Vol. 25, 41904191
Budgets

103 | Superpumper Note in the amount of| Vol. 25,4192-4193
$1,462,213.00 (dated 11/01/2010)

104 | Superpumper Successor Note in the amount of | Vol. 25, 4194-4195
$492,937.30 (dated 02/01/2011)

105 | Superpumper Successor Note in the amount of | Vol. 25, 41964197
$939,000 (dated 02/01/2011)

106 | Superpumper Stock Power transfers to S.| Vol.25,4198-4199
Morabito and Bayuk (dated 01/01/2011)

107 | Declaration of P. Morabito in Support of| Vol.25,4200—4203
Opposition to Motion of JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst,
and Berry- Hinckley Industries for Order
Prohibiting Debtor from Using, Acquiring or
Transferring Assets Pursuantto 11 U.S.C. §§ 105
and 303(f) Pending Appointment of Trustee, Case
13-51237, ECF No. 22 (filed 07/01/2013)

108 | October 12, 2012 email between P. Morabito and | Vol. 25, 42044204
Bernstein RE: 2011 Return

109 | Compass Term Loan (dated 12/21/2016) Vol. 25, 4205-4213

110 | P. Morabito — Term Note in the amount of | Vol. 25, 42144214
$939,000.000 (dated 09/01/2010)

111 | Loan Agreement between Compass Bank and | Vol. 25, 4215-4244
Superpumper (dated 12/21/2016)

112 | Consent Agreement (dated 12/28/2010) Vol. 25, 4245-4249

113 | Superpumper Financial Statement (dated | Vol. 25, 42504263

12/31/2007)
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114 | Superpumper Financial Statement (dated | Vol. 25, 42644276
12/31/2009)

115 | Notes Receivable Interest Income Calculation | Vol. 25, 4277-4278
(dated 12/31/2009)

116 | Superpumper Inc. Audit Conclusions Memo | Vol. 25, 4279-4284
(dated 12/31/2010)

117 | Superpumper 2010 YTD Income Statement and | Vol. 25, 42854299
Balance Sheets

118 | March 12, 2010 Management Letter Vol. 25, 43004302

119 | Superpumper Unaudited August 2010 Balance | Vol. 25, 43034307
Sheet

120 | Superpumper Financial Statements (dated | Vol. 25, 43084322
12/31/2010)

121 Notes Receivable Balance as of September 30, | Vol. 26, 4323
2010

122 | Salvatore Morabito Term Note $2,563,542.00 as | Vol. 26, 4324-4325
of December 31, 2010

123 | Edward Bayuk Term Note $2,580,500.00 as of | Vol. 26, 43264327
December 31, 2010

125 | April 21, 2011 Management letter Vol. 26, 4328-4330

126 | Bayuk and S. Morabito Statements of Assets & | Vol. 26, 4331-4332
Liabilities as of February 1, 2011

127 | January 6, 2012 email from Bayuk to Lovelace | Vol. 26, 4333-4335
RE: Letter of Credit

128 | January 6, 2012 email from Vacco to Bernstein | Vol. 26, 43364338

129 | January 7, 2012 email from Bernstein to Lovelace | Vol. 26, 43394343

130 | March 18, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 26, 43444344
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131 | April 21, 2011 Proposed Acquisition of Nella Oil | Vol. 26, 43454351
132 | April 15, 2011 email chain between P. Morabito | Vol. 26, 4352
and Vacco
133 | April 5, 2011 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 26, 4353
134 | April 16, 2012 email from Vacco to Morabito Vol. 26, 4354-4359
135 | August 7, 2011 email exchange between Vacco | Vol. 26, 4360
and P. Morabito
136 | August 2011 Lovelace letter to Timothy Halves | Vol. 26, 4361-4365
137 | August 24,2011 email from Vacco to P. Morabito | Vol. 26, 4366
RE: Tim Haves
138 | November 11, 2011 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 26, 4367
Morabito RE: Getting Trevor’s commitment to
sign
139 | November 16, 2011 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 26, 4368
Vacco RE: Vacco’s litigation letter
140 | November 28, 2011 email chain between Vacco, | Vol. 26, 4369-4370
S. Morabito, and P. Morabito RE: $560,000 wire
to Lippes Mathias
141 | December 7, 2011 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 26,4371
Morabito RE: Moreno
142 | February 10, 2012 email chain between P. | Vol. 26,4372-4375
Morabito Wells, and Vacco RE: 1461 Glenneyre
Street - Sale
143 | April 20, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Bayuk | Vol. 26, 4376
RE: BofA
144 | April 24, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 26, 43774378

RE: SPI Loan Detail
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

145 | September 4, 2012 email chain between Vacco | Vol. 26, 43794418
and Bayuk RE: Second Deed of Trust documents

147 | September 4, 2012 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 26, 44194422
Vacco RE: Wire

148 | September 4, 2012 email from Bayuk to Vacco | Vol. 26, 4423-4426
RE: Wire

149 | December 6, 2012 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 26,4427-4428
Morabito RE: BOA and the path of money

150 | September 18, 2012 email chain between P. | Vol. 26, 44294432
Morabito and Bayuk

151 October 3, 2012 email chain between Vacco and | Vol. 26, 44334434
P. Morabito RE: Snowshoe Properties, LLC

152 | September 3, 2012 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 26, 4435
Vacco RE: Wire

153 | March 14, 2013 email chain between P. Morabito | Vol. 26, 4436
and Vacco RE: BHI Hinckley

154 | Paul Morabito 2009 Tax Return Vol. 26, 4437-4463

155 | Superpumper Form 8879-S tax year ended | Vol. 26, 44644484
December 31, 2010

156 | 2010 U.S. S Corporation Tax Return for | Vol.27,4485-4556
Consolidated Western Corporation

157 | Snowshoe form 8879-S for year ended December | Vol. 27, 4557-4577
31,2010

158 | Snowshoe Form 1120S 2011 Amended Tax | Vol. 27, 4578-4655
Return

159 | September 14, 2012 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 27, 46564657

Morabito
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160 | October 1, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 27, 4658
RE: Monday work for Dennis and Christian
161 | December 18, 2012 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 27,4659
Morabito RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication
162 | April 24, 2013 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 27, 4660
RE: BHI Trust
163 | Membership Interest Purchases, Agreement — | Vol. 27, 4661-4665
Watch My Block (dated 10/06/2010)
164 | Watch My Block organizational documents Vol. 27, 4666—4669
174 | October 15, 2015 Certificate of Service of copy of | Vol. 27, 4670
Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman’s Response to
Subpoena
175 | Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to | Vol. 27, 4671-4675
Deposition Questions ECF No. 502; Case No. 13-
51237-gwz (filed 02/03/2016)
179 | Gursey Schneider LLP Subpoena Vol. 28, 4676-4697
180 | Summary Appraisal of 570 Glenneyre Vol. 28, 4698-4728
181 | Appraisal of 1461 Glenneyre Street Vol. 28, 4729-4777
182 | Appraisal of 370 Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4778-4804
183 | Appraisal of 371 El Camino Del Mar Vol. 28, 4805-4830
184 | Appraisal of 1254 Mary Fleming Circle Vol. 28, 4831-4859
185 | Mortgage — Panorama Vol. 28, 4860-4860
186 | Mortgage — El Camino Vol. 28, 4861
187 | Mortgage — Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4862
188 | Mortgage — Glenneyre Vol. 28, 4863
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189 | Mortgage — Mary Fleming Vol. 28, 4864
190 | Settlement Statement — 371 El Camino Del Mar | Vol. 28, 4865
191 Settlement Statement — 370 Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4866
192 | 2010 Declaration of Value of 8355 Panorama Dr | Vol. 28, 4867—4868
193 | Mortgage — 8355 Panorama Drive Vol. 28, 4869-4870
194 | Compass — Certificate of Custodian of Records | Vol. 28, 4871-4871
(dated 12/21/2016)
196 |June 6, 2014 Declaration of Sam Morabito — | Vol. 28, 4872-4874
Exhibit 1 to Snowshoe Reply in Support of
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of
Personal Jurisdiction — filed in Case No. CV13-
02663
197 | June 19, 2014 Declaration of Sam Morabito — | Vol. 28, 4875-4877
Exhibit 1 to Superpumper Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction —
filed in Case No. CV13-02663
198 | September 22, 2017 Declaration of Sam Morabito | Vol. 28, 48784879
— Exhibit 22 to Defendants’ SSOF in Support of
Opposition to Plaintiff's MSJ — filed in Case No.
CV13-02663
222 | Kimmel — January 21, 2016, Comment on Alves | Vol. 28, 48804883
Appraisal
223 September 20, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to | Vol. 28, 4884
Morabito
224 | March 24, 2011 email from Naz Afshar RE: | Vol. 28, 48854886
telephone call regarding CWC
225 | Bank of America Records for Edward Bayuk | Vol. 28, 4887-4897

(dated 09/05/2012)
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

226

June 11, 2007 Wholesale Marketer Agreement

Vol.

29, 48984921

227

May 25, 2006 Wholesale Marketer Facility
Development Incentive Program Agreement

Vol.

29, 4922-4928

228

June 2007 Master Lease Agreement — Spirit SPE
Portfolio and Superpumper, Inc.

Vol.

29, 49294983

229

Superpumper Inc 2008 Financial Statement
(dated 12/31/2008)

Vol.

29, 4984-4996

230

November 9, 2009 email from P. Morabito to
Bernstein, Yalaman RE: Jan Friederich — entered
into Consulting Agreement

Vol.

29, 4997

231

September 30, 2010, Letter from Compass to
Superpumper, Morabito, CWC RE: reducing face
amount of the revolving note

Vol.

29, 4998-5001

232

October 15, 2010, letter from Quarles & Brady to
Vacco RE: Revolving Loan Documents and Term
Loan Documents between Superpumper and
Compass Bank

Vol.

29, 5002-5006

233

BMO Account Tracker Banking Report October
1 to October 31, 2010

Vol.

29, 5007-5013

235

August 31, 2010 Superpumper Inc., Valuation of
100 percent of the common equity in
Superpumper, Inc on a controlling marketable
basis

Vol.

29, 5014-5059

236

June 18, 2014 email from S. Morabito to Vanek
(WF) RE: Analysis of Superpumper Acquisition
in 2010

Vol.

29, 5060-5061

241

Superpumper March 2010 YTD Income
Statement

Vol.

29, 5062-5076
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244 | Assignment Agreement for $939,000 Morabito | Vol. 29, 5077-5079
Note

247 | July 1, 2011 Third Amendment to Forbearance | Vol. 29, 5080-5088
Agreement Superpumper and Compass Bank

248 | Superpumper Cash Contributions January 2010 | Vol. 29, 5089-5096
thru September 2015 — Bayuk and S. Morabito

252 | October 15, 2010 Letter from Quarles & Brady to | Vol. 29, 5097-5099
Vacco RE: Revolving Loan documents and Term
Loan documents between Superpumper Prop. and
Compass Bank

254 | Bank of America — S. Morabito SP Properties | Vol. 29, 5100
Sale, SP Purchase Balance

255 | Superpumper Prop. Final Closing Statement for | Vol. 29, 5101
920 Mountain City Hwy, Elko, NV

256 | September 30, 2010 Raffles Insurance Limited | Vol. 29, 5102
Member Summary

257 | Equalization Spreadsheet Vol. 30, 5103

258 | November 9, 2005 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed; | Vol. 30, 5104-5105
Doc #3306300 for Property Washoe County

260 | January 7, 2016 Budget Summary — Panorama | Vol. 30, 5106-5107
Drive

261 | Mary 22, 2006 Compilation of Quotes and | Vol. 30, 5108-5116
Invoices Quote of Valley Drapery

262 | Photos of 8355 Panorama Home Vol. 30, 5117-5151

263 | Water Rights Deed (Document #4190152) | Vol. 30,5152-5155

between P. Morabito, E. Bayuk, Grantors, RCA
Trust One Grantee (recorded 12/31/2012)
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265 | October 1, 2010 Bank of America Wire Transfer | Vol. 30, 5156
—Bayuk — Morabito $60,117

266 | October 1, 2010 Check #2354 from Bayuk to P. | Vol. 30, 5157-5158
Morabito for $29,383 for 8355 Panorama funding

268 | October 1, 2010 Check #2356 from Bayuk to P. | Vol. 30, 5159-5160
Morabito for $12,763 for 370 Los Olivos Funding

269 | October 1, 2010 Check #2357 from Bayuk to P. | Vol. 30, 5161-5162
Morabito for $31,284 for 371 E1 Camino Del Mar
Funding

270 | Bayuk Payment Ledger Support Documents | Vol. 31, 5163-5352
Checks and Bank Statements

271 | Bayuk Superpumper Contributions Vol. 31, 5353-5358

272 | May 14, 2012 email string between P. Morabito, | Vol. 31, 5359-5363
Vacco, Bayuk, and S. Bernstein RE: Info for
Laguna purchase

276 | September 21, 2010 Appraisal of 8355 Panorama | Vol. 32, 53645400
Drive Reno, NV by Alves Appraisal

277 | Assessor’s Map/Home Caparisons for 8355 | Vol. 32, 5401-5437
Panorama Drive, Reno, NV

278 | December 3, 2007 Case Docket for CV07-02764 | Vol. 32, 5438-5564

280 |May 25, 2011 Stipulation Regarding the | Vol. 33, 5565-5570
Imposition of Punitive Damages; Case No. CV07-
02764 (filed 05/25/2011)

281 | Work File for September 24, 2010 Appraisal of | Vol. 33, 5571-5628
8355 Panorama Drive, Reno, NV

283 | January 25, 2016 Expert Witness Report Leonard | Vol. 33, 5629-5652

v. Superpumper Snowshoe
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284 | February 29, 2016 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert | Vol. 33, 5653-5666
Witness Disclosure

294 | October 5, 2010 Lippes, Mathias Wexler | Vol. 33, 5667-5680
Friedman, LLP, Invoices to P. Morabito

295 | P. Morabito 2010 Tax Return (dated 10/16/2011) | Vol. 33, 5681-5739

296 | December 31, 2010 Superpumper Inc. Note to | Vol. 33, 5740-5743
Financial Statements

297 | December 31, 2010 Superpumper Consultations | Vol. 33, 5744

300 | September 20, 2010 email chain between | Vol. 33, 5745-5748
Yalmanchili and Graber RE: Attorney Client
Privileged Communication

301 | September 15, 2010 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 33, 5749-5752
Morabito RE: Tomorrow

303 | Bankruptcy Court District of Nevada Claims | Vol. 33, 5753-5755
Register Case No. 13-51237

304 | April 14, 2018 email from Allen to Krausz RE: | Vol. 33, 57565757
Superpumper

305 | Subpoena in a Case Under the Bankruptcy Code | Vol. 33, 57585768
to Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust issued in
Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ

306 | August 30, 2018 letter to Mark Weisenmiller, | Vol. 34, 5769
Esq., from Frank Gilmore, Esq.,

307 | Order Granting Motion to Compel Compliance | Vol. 34, 5770-5772
with the Subpoena to Robison, Sharp, Sullivan &
Brust filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ

308 | Response of Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust’s | Vol. 34, 5773-5797

to Subpoena filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-
GWZ
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309 | Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in support of | Vol. 34, 5798-5801

Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust’s Opposition to
Motion for Order Holding Robison in Contempt
filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ

Minutes of October 29, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 1 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 35, 58026041

Transcript of October 29, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 1

Vol. 35, 6042—-6045

Minutes of October 30, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 2 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 36, 6046—6283

Transcript of October 30, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 2

Vol. 36, 6284—6286

Minutes of October 31, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 3 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 37, 6287-6548

Transcript of October 31, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 3

Vol. 37, 6549—-6552

Minutes of November 1, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 4 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 38, 6553-6814

Transcript of November 1, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 4

Vol. 38, 6815-6817

Minutes of November 2, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 5 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 39, 6818-7007

Transcript of November 2, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 5

Vol. 39, 70087011

Minutes of November 5, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 6 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 40, 70127167

Transcript of November 5, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 6

Vol. 40, 7168-7169
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Minutes of November 6, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 7 (filed | Vol. 41, 7170-7269
11/08/2018)
Transcript of November 6, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 7 Vol. 41, 7270-7272
Vol. 42, 7273-7474

Minutes of November 7, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 8 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol.

43,7475-7476

Transcript of November 7, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 8

Vol.

43,7477-7615

Minutes of November 26, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 9
(filed 11/26/2018)

Vol.

44,7616

Transcript of November 26, 2018, Non-Jury Trial — Closing
Arguments, Day 9

Vol.
Vol.

44,7617-7666
45,7667-7893

Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed 01/30/2019)

Vol.

46, 7894-7908

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq. in
Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen

Vol.

46, 7909-7913

I-A | September 21, 2017 Declaration of Salvatore | Vol. 46, 7914-7916
Morabito

1-B | Defendants’ Proposed Findings of Fact, | Vol. 46, 7917-7957
Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (Nov. 26,
2018)

1-C | Judgment on the First and Second Causes of | Vol. 46, 7958—7962

Action; Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D.
Nev.), ECF No. 123 (April 30, 2018)
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Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence
(cont.)
I-D | Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of | Vol. 46, 7963—7994
Law in Support of Judgment Regarding Plaintiffs’
First and Second Causes of Action; Case No. 15-
05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF No. 126
(April 30, 2018)
1-E | Motion to Compel Compliance with the | Vol. 46, 7995-8035
Subpoena to Robison Sharp Sullivan Brust; Case
No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF No.
191 (Sept. 10, 2018)
I-F | Order Granting Motion to Compel Compliance | Vol. 46, 80368039
with the Subpoena to Robison Sharp Sullivan
Brust; Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D.
Nev.), ECF No. 229 (Jan. 3, 2019)
1-G | Response of Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust[] | Vol. 46, 8040-8067
To Subpoena (including RSSB 000001 -
RSSB 000031) (Jan. 18, 2019)
1-H | Excerpts of Deposition Transcript of Sam | Vol. 46, 8068—8076
Morabito as PMK of Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.
(Oct. 1, 2015)
Errata to: Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed | Vol. 47, 8077-8080
01/30/2019)
Exhibit to Errata to: Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence
Exhibit Document Description

1

Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence

Vol. 47, 8081-8096

Page 50 of 67




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Ex Parte Motion for Order Shortening Time on Plaintiff’s

Motion to Reopen Evidence and for Expedited Hearing
(filed 01/31/2019)

Vol. 47, 8097-8102

Order Shortening Time on Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence and for Expedited Hearing (filed 02/04/2019)

Vol. 47, 8103—8105

Supplement to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed
02/04/2019)

Vol. 47, 8106-8110

Exhibits to Supplement to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence

Exhibit Document Description

1 Supplemental Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm,
Esq. in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence (filed 02/04/2019)

Vol. 47, 8111-8113

I-1 | Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in Support of
Robison, Sharp Sullivan & Brust’s Opposition to
Motion for Order Holding Robison in Contempt;
Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF
No. 259 (Jan. 30, 2019)

Vol. 47, 8114-8128

Defendants” Response to Motion to Reopen Evidence
(02/06/2019)

Vol. 47, 8129-8135

Plaintiff’s Reply to Defendants’ Response to Motion to
Reopen Evidence (filed 02/07/2019)

Vol. 47, 81368143

Minutes of February 7, 2019 hearing on Motion to Reopen
Evidence (filed 02/28/2019)

Vol. 47, 8144

Rough Draft Transcript of February 8, 2019 hearing on
Motion to Reopen Evidence

Vol. 47, 8145-8158
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[Plaintiff’s Proposed] Findings of Fact, Conclusions of
Law, and Judgment (filed 03/06/2019)

Vol.

47, 8159-8224

[Defendants’ Proposed Amended] Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (filed 03/08/2019)

Vol.

47, 8225-8268

Minutes of February 26, 2019 hearing on Motion to
Continue ongoing Non-Jury Trial (Telephonic) (filed
03/11/2019)

Vol.

47, 8269

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (filed
03/29/2019)

Vol.

48, 8270-8333

Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law,
and Judgment (filed 03/29/2019)

Vol.

48, 8334-8340

Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements (filed
04/11/2019)

Vol.

48, 8341-8347

Exhibit to Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements

Exhibit Document Description

1 Ledger of Costs

Vol.

48, 8348-8370

Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 04/12/2019)

Vol.

48, 8371-8384

Exhibits to Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRCP 68

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz In Support of
Plaintiff’s Application for Attorney’s Fees and
Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/12/2019)

Vol.

48, 8385-8390

2 Plaintiff’s Offer of Judgment to Defendants
(dated 05/31/2016)

Vol.

48, 8391-8397
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

3 Defendant’s Rejection of Offer of Judgment by
Plaintiff (dated 06/15/2016)

Vol.

48, 8398-8399

4 Log of time entries from June 1, 2016 to March | Vol. 48, 8400-8456
28,2019
5 Plaintiff’s Memorandum of Costs and | Vol. 48, 8457-8487

Disbursements (filed 04/11/2019)

Motion to Retax Costs (filed 04/15/2019)

Vol.

49, 8488—-8495

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Retax Costs (filed
04/17/2019)

Vol.

49, 84968507

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Retax
Costs

Exhibit Document Description
1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz In Support of | Vol. 49, 85088510
Opposition to Motion to Retax Costs (filed
04/17/2019)
2 Summary of Photocopy Charges Vol. 49, 8511-8523
3 James L. McGovern Curriculum Vitae Vol. 49, 8524-8530
4 McGovern & Greene LLP Invoices Vol. 49, 8531-8552
5 Buss-Shelger Associates Invoices Vol. 49, 8553—-8555

Reply in Support of Motion to Retax Costs (filed
04/22/2019)

Vol.

49, 85568562

Opposition to Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/25/2019)

Vol.

49, 85638578

Exhibit to Opposition to Application for Attorneys’ Fees
and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68
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LOCATION

Exhibit Document Description

1 Plaintiff’s Bill Dispute Ledger

Vol. 49, 8579-8637

Defendants, Salvatore Morabito, Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc., and Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion for New Trial and/or
to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP 52, 59, and
60 (filed 04/25/2019)

Vol. 49, 8638-8657

Defendant, Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial and/or
to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP 52, 59, and
60 (filed 04/26/2019)

Vol. 50, 8658-8676

Exhibits to Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial
and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP
52,59, and 60

Exhibit Document Description

1 February 27, 2019 email with attachments

Vol. 50, 8677-8768

2 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in Support of
Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial (filed
04/26/2019)

Vol. 50, 8769-8771

February 27, 2019 email from Marcy Trabert

Vol. 50, 87728775

4 February 27, 2019 email from Frank Gilmore to
eturner@Gtg.legal RE: Friday Trial

Vol. 50, 87768777

Plaintiff’s Reply in Support of Application of Attorneys’
Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/30/2019)

Vol. 50, 8778-8790

Exhibit to Plaintiff’s Reply in Support of Application of
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68

Exhibit Document Description

1 Case No. BK-13-51237-GWZ, ECF Nos. 280,
282, and 321

Vol. 50, 8791-8835
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants’ Motions for New
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed 05/07/2019)

Vol. 51, 8836—8858

Defendants, Salvatore Morabito, Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc., and Superpumper, Inc.’s Reply in Support of Motion
for New Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant
to NRCP 52, 59, and 60 (filed 05/14/2019)

Vol. 51, 88598864

Declaration of Edward Bayuk Claiming Exemption from
Execution (filed 06/28/2019)

Vol. 51, 8865—-8870

Exhibits to Declaration of Edward Bayuk Claiming
Exemption from Execution

Exhibit Document Description

1 Copy of June 22, 2019 Notice of Execution and
two Write of Executions

Vol. 51, 8871-8896

2 Declaration of James Arthur Gibbons Regarding
his Attestation, Witness and Certification on
November 12, 2005 of the Spendthrift Trust
Amendment to the Edward William Bayuk Living
Trust (dated 06/25/2019)

Vol. 51, 8897-8942

Notice of Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed
06/28/2019)

Vol. 51, 8943-8949

Edward Bayuk’s Declaration of Salvatore Morabito
Claiming Exemption from Execution (filed 07/02/2019)

Vol. 51, 8950-8954

Exhibits to Declaration of Salvatore Morabito Claiming
Exemption from Execution

Exhibit Document Description
1 Las Vegas June 22, 2019 letter Vol. 51, 8955-8956
2 Writs of execution and the notice of execution Vol. 51, 8957-8970
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Minutes of June 24, 2019 telephonic hearing on Decision on
Submitted Motions (filed 07/02/2019)

Vol.

51, 8971-8972

Salvatore Morabito’s Notice of Claim of Exemption from
Execution (filed 07/02/2019)

Vol.

51, 8973-8976

Edward Bayuk’s Third Party Claim to Property Levied
Upon NRS 31.070 (filed 07/03/2019)

Vol.

51, 8977-8982

Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an Award of
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed
07/10/2019)

Vol.

51, 8983-8985

Order Granting in part and Denying in part Motion to Retax
Costs (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol.

51, 8986—8988

Plaintiff’s Objection to (1) Claim of Exemption from
Execution and (2) Third Party Claim to Property Levied
Upon, and Request for Hearing Pursuant to NRS 21.112 and
31.070(5) (filed 07/11/2019)

Vol.

52, 8989-9003

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Objection to (1) Claim of
Exemption from Execution and (2) Third Party Claim
to Property Levied Upon, and Request for Hearing
Pursuant to NRS 21.112 and 31.070(5)

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq.

Vol.

52, 9004-9007

2 11/30/2011 Tolling Agreement — Edward Bayuk

Vol.

52, 9008-9023

11/30/2011 Tolling Agreement — Edward William
Bayuk Living Trust

Vol.

52, 9024-9035

4 Excerpts of 9/28/2015 Deposition of Edward
Bayuk

Vol.

52, 90369041
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Objection (cont.)
5 Edward Bayuk, as Trustee of the Edward William | Vol. 52, 9042-9051
Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to Plaintiff’s
First Set of Requests for Production, served
9/24/2015
6 8/26/2009 Grant Deed (Los Olivos) Vol. 52, 9052-9056
7 8/17/2018 Grant Deed (El Camino) Vol. 52, 9057-9062
8 Trial Ex. 4 (Confession of Judgment) Vol. 52, 9063-9088
9 Trial Ex. 45 (Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated | Vol. 52, 9089-9097
9/28/2010)
10 Trial Ex. 46 (First Amendment to Purchase and | Vol. 52, 9098-9100
Sale Agreement, dated 9/29/2010)
11 Trial Ex. 51 (Los Olivos Grant Deed recorded | Vol. 52,9101-9103
10/8/2010)
12 Trial Ex. 52 (El Camino Grant Deed recorded | Vol. 52, 9104-9106
10/8/2010)
13 Trial Ex. 61 (Membership Interest Transfer | Vol. 52,9107-9114
Agreement, dated 10/1/2010)
14 Trial Ex. 62 ($1,617,050.00 Promissory Note) Vol. 52,9115-9118
15 Trial Ex. 65 (Mary Fleming Grant Deed recorded | Vol. 52, 9119-9121

11/4/2010)

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for
New Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed
07/16/2019)

Vol.

52,9122-9124
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying
Defendants’ Motions for New Trial and/or to Alter or
Amend Judgment

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for New
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed
07/10/2019)

Vol. 52, 9125-9127

Notice of Entry of Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application
for an Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 07/16/2019)

Vol. 52,9128-9130

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Granting Plaintiff’s
Application for an Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRCP 68

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an
Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 52,9131-9134

Notice of Entry of Order Granting in Part and Denying in
Part Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/16/2019)

Vol. 52,9135-9137

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Granting in Part and
Denying in Part Motion to Retax Costs

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part
Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 52, 91389141

Plaintiff’s Objection to Notice of Claim of Exemption from
Execution Filed by Salvatore Morabito and Request for
Hearing (filed 07/16/2019)

Vol. 52,9142-9146

Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption and Third Party
Claim to Property Levied Upon (filed 07/17/2019)

Vol. 52, 9147-9162
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption
and Third Party Claim to Property Levied Upon
Exhibit Document Description
1 March 3, 2011 Deposition Transcript of P. | Vol.52,9163-9174

Morabito

2 Mr. Bayuk’s September 23, 2014 responses to
Plaintiff’s first set of requests for production

Vol.

52,9175-9180

3 September 28, 2015 Deposition Transcript of
Edward Bayuk

Vol.

52,9181-9190

Reply to Plaintiff’s Objection to Notice of Claim of
Exemption from Execution (filed 07/18/2019)

Vol.

52,9191-9194

Declaration of Service of Till Tap, Notice of Attachment
and Levy Upon Property (filed 07/29/2019)

Vol.

52,9195

Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed 08/01/2019)

Vol.

52,9196-9199

Exhibits to Notice of Submission of Disputed Order
Denying Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim

Exhibit Document Description

1 Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third-Party Claim

Vol.

52, 9200-9204

2 Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust’s proposed Order
Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party
Claim

Vol.

52,9205-9210

3 July 30, 2019 email evidencing Bayuk, through
counsel Jeffrey Hartman, Esq., requesting until
noon on July 31, 2019 to provide comments.

Vol.

52,9211-9212
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits
(cont.)

to Notice of Submission of Disputed Order

4

July 31, 2019 email from Teresa M. Pilatowicz,
Esq. Bayuk failed to provide comments at noon
on July 31, 2019, instead waiting until 1:43 p.m.
to send a redline version with proposed changes
after multiple follow ups from Plaintiff’s counsel
on July 31, 2019

Vol.

52,9213-9219

A true and correct copy of the original Order and
Bayuk Changes

Vol.

52,9220-9224

A true and correct copy of the redline run by
Plaintiff accurately reflecting Bayuk’s proposed
changes

Vol.

52, 92259229

Email evidencing that after review of the
proposed revisions, Plaintiff advised Bayuk,
through counsel, that Plaintiff agree to certain
proposed revisions, but the majority of the
changes were unacceptable as they did not reflect
the Court’s findings or evidence before the Court.

Vol.

52,9230-9236

Objection to Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed 08/01/2019)

Vol.

53, 9237-9240

Exhibits

to Objection to Plaintiff’s Proposed Order

Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim

Exhibit Document Description
1 Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of | Vol. 53, 9241-9245
Exemption and Third-Party Claim
2 Defendant’s comments on Findings of Fact Vol. 53, 9246-9247
3 Defendant’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of | Vol. 53, 9248-9252

Exemption and Third-Party Claim
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Minutes of July 22, 2019 hearing on Objection to Claim for
Exemption (filed 08/02/2019)

Vol. 53, 9253

Order Denying Claim of Exemption (filed 08/02/2019)

Vol. 53, 9254-9255

Bayuk’s Case Appeal Statement (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9256-9260

Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9261-9263

Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward Bayuk, Salvatore
Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s, Case Appeal
Statement (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9264-9269

Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward Bayuk, Salvatore
Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s, Notice of
Appeal (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9270-9273

Exhibits to Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward
Bayuk, Salvatore Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc.’s, Notice of Appeal

Exhibit Document Description

1 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Judgment (filed 03/29/2019)

Vol. 53, 92749338

2 Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for New
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed
07/10/2019)

Vol. 53, 9339-9341

3 Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part
Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 53, 93429345

4 Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an
Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 53, 93469349
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LOCATION

Plaintiff’s Reply to Defendants’ Objection to Plaintiff’s
Proposed Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-
Party Claim

Vol. 53, 9350-9356

Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim
(08/09/2019)

Vol. 53, 9357-9360

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of Exemption and
Third-Party Claim (filed 08/09/2019)

Vol. 53,9361-9364

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third-Party Claim

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-
Party Claim (08/09/2019)

Vol. 53, 9365-9369

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of Exemption
(filed 08/12/2019)

Vol. 53, 93709373

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of
Exemption

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption (08/02/2019)

Vol. 53, 9374-9376

Motion to Make Amended or Additional Findings Under
NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration (filed 08/19/2019)

Vol. 54, 9377-9401

Exhibits to Motion to Make Amended or Additional
Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative,
Motion for Reconsideration

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third
Party Claim (filed 08/09/19)

Vol. 54, 9402-9406
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Motion to Make Amended (cont.)

2 Spendthrift Trust Amendment to the Edward | Vol. 54, 9407-9447
William Bayuk Living Trust (dated 11/12/05)

3 Spendthrift Trust Agreement for the Arcadia | Vol. 54, 9448-9484
Living Trust (dated 10/14/05)

4 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust | Vol. 54, 9485-9524
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/10)

5 P. Morabito's Supplement to NRCP 16.1 | Vol. 54, 9525-9529
Disclosures (dated 03/01/11)

6 Transcript of March 3, 2011 Deposition of P. | Vol. 55, 9530-9765
Morabito

7 Documents Conveying Real Property Vol. 56, 97669774

8 Transcript of July 22, 2019 Hearing Vol. 56, 9775-9835

9 Tolling Agreement JH and P. Morabito (partially | Vol. 56, 9836-9840
executed 11/30/11)

10 Tolling Agreement JH and Arcadia Living Trust | Vol. 56, 9841-9845
(partially executed 11/30/11)

11 Excerpted Pages 8-9 of Superpumper Judgment | Vol. 56, 98469848
(filed 03/29/19)

12 Petitioners' First Set of Interrogatories to Debtor | Vol. 56, 98499853
(dated 08/13/13)

13 Tolling Agreement JH and Edward Bayuk | Vol. 56, 9854-9858
(partially executed 11/30/11)

14 Tolling Agreement JH and Bayuk Trust (partially | Vol. 56, 9859-9863
executed 11/30/11)

15 Declaration of Mark E. Lehman, Esq. (dated | Vol. 56, 9864-9867

03/21/11)
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LOCATION

Exhibits to Motion to Make Amended (cont.)

16 Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco

Vol. 56, 98689871

17 Assignment and Assumption Agreement (dated
07/03/07)

Vol. 56, 98729887

18 Order Denying Morabito’s Claim of Exemption
(filed 08/02/19)

Vol. 56, 9888-9890

Errata to Motion to Make Amended or Additional Findings
Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration (filed 08/20/2019)

Vol. 57, 9891-9893

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Make Amended or
Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In the
Alternative, = Motion  for  Reconsideration, and
Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 7.085
(filed 08/30/2019)

Vol. 57, 9894-9910

Errata to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Make
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In
the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration, and

Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 7.085
(filed 08/30/2019)

Vol. 57,9911-9914

Exhibits to Errata to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to
Make Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP
52(b), or, In the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration, and Countermotion for Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRS 7.085

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq.

Vol. 57, 9915-9918

2 Plaintiff’s Amended NRCP 16.1 Disclosures
(February 19, 2016)

Vol. 57,9919-9926
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LOCATION

Exhibits to Errata (cont.)

3 Plaintiff’s Fourth Supplemental NRCP 16.1
Disclosures (November 15, 2016)

Vol. 57, 9927-9930

4 Plaintiff’s Fifth Supplemental NRCP 16.1
Disclosures (December 21, 2016)

Vol. 57,9931-9934

5 Plaintiff’s Sixth Supplemental NRCP 16.1
Disclosures (March 20, 2017)

Vol. 57, 9935-9938

Reply in Support of Motion to Make Amended or
Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In the
Alternative, Motion  for  Reconsideration, and
Countermotion for Fees and Costs (filed 09/04/2019)

Vol. 57, 99399951

Exhibits to Reply in Support of Motion to Make
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b),
or, In the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration, and
Countermotion for Fees and Costs

Exhibit Document Description

19 Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying
Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed
08/01/19)

Vol. 57, 9952-9993

20 Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying | Vol. 57,
Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed | 9994-10010
08/01/19)

Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make Amended or | Vol. 57,

Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the
Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration and Denying

Plaintiff's Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/2019)

10011-10019

Bayuk’s Case Appeal Statement (filed 12/06/2019)

Vol. 57,
10020-10026
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LOCATION

Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal (filed 12/06/2019)

Vol. 57,
10027-10030

Exhibits to Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal

Exhibit Document Description
1 Order Denying [Morabito’s] Claim of Exemption | Vol. 57,
(filed 08/02/19) 10031-10033
2 Order Denying [Bayuk’s] Claim of Exemption | Vol. 57,
and Third Party Claim (filed 08/09/19) 10034-10038
3 Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make | Vol. 57,

Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP
52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration and Denying  Plaintiff’s

Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/19)

10039-10048

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Defendants' Motion to
Make Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b),
or, in the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration and
Denying Plaintiff's Countermotion for Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRS 7.085 (filed 12/23/2019)

Vol. 57,
10049-10052

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order

Exhibit

Document Description

A

Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP
52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration and Denying  Plaintiff’s

Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/19)

Vol. 57,
10053-10062
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LOCATION

District Court Docket Case No. CV13-02663

Vol. 57,
10063—-10111

Notice of Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim to
Property Levied Upon, Case No. CV13-02663 (filed
08/25/2020)

Vol. 58,
10112-10121

Exhibits to Notice of Claim of Exemption and Third-
Party Claim to Property Levied Upon

Exhibit Document Description
1 Writ of Execution, Case No. CV13-02663 (filed | Vol. 58,
07/21/2020) 10123-10130
2 Superior Court of California, Orange County | Vol. 58,
Docket, Case No. 30-2019-01068591-CU-EN- | 10131-10139
CIC
3 Spendthrift Trust Amendment to the Edward | Vol. 58,

William Bayuk Living Trust (dated 11/12/2005)

10140-10190
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GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 229

E-mail: ggordon@gtg.legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9605

E-mail: tpilatowicz@gtg.legal
GABRIELLE A. HAMM, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 11588

E-mail: ghamm@gtg.legal

650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000

FILED
Electronically
2016-03-25 11:17:20 AM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 5435799 : mfernan

Special Counsel to William A. Leonard, Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
THE STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR THE
COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the
Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito,

Plaintiff,
VS.

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;
and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a
New York corporation,

Defendants.

CASE NO.: CV13-02663

DEPT. NO. 1

PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO
PARTIALLY QUASH, OR, IN THE ALTERNATIVE, FOR A
PROTECTIVE ORDER PRECLUDING TRUSTEE FROM SEEKING
DISCOVERY PROTECTED BY THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE

William Leonard, Chapter 7 Trustee for the bankruptcy estate of Paul Anthony Morabito

and the plaintiff in the above-referenced action (the “Plaintiff” or “Trustee”), by and through his

726
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counsel, the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP, hereby submits this opposition (the
“Opposition”) to the Motion to Partially Quash, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order
Precluding Trustee From Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client Privilege (the
“Motion”) filed by defendants Superpumper, Inc. (“Superpumper”) Edward Bayuk, individually
and as the Trustee of the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust (“Bayuk™), Salvatore Morabito
(“Salvatore™), and Showshoe Petroleum (“Snowshoe,” and together with Superpumper, Bayuk,
and Salvatore, the “Defendants”) in connection with the properly-issued and noticed
Subpoena/Subpoena Duces Tecum (the “Subpoena”) issued to attorney Dennis Vacco (“Vacco™)
of the law firm of Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP (“Lippes Mathias™) on September 29,
2015.

This Opposition is supported by the following memorandum of points and authorities, the
declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq. (the “Pilatowicz Decl.”), the exhibits attached hereto,
and pleadings and papers on file in this above-captioned case, judicial notice of which is
respectfully requested.

Dated this 24th day of March, 2016.

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP

s/ Teresa Pilatowicz

GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 229

TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9605
GABRIELLE A. HAMM, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 11588

650 White Drive, Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Tel: (735) 777-3000

Attorneys for Plaintiff William A. Leonard
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L
INTRODUCTION

Defendants’ Motion is without merit. First, it is an improper collateral attack on an order

of the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Nevada (the “Bankruptcy Court”).

Second, the assertion of privilege is not only legally and factually baseless, it is too little, too
late. Despite having ample opportunity to do so, Defendants waited five months to assert a
purported privilege over the requested documents, interfering with Lippes Mathias’s production
of the documents on the eve of the close of discovery. To the extent any privilege existed with
respect to the requested documents, a contention that Plaintiff disputes, it has long since been
waived under both the co-client doctrine and because Defendants failed to assert it despite
having notice of the subject subpoena since September 24, 2015.

II.
RELEVANT FACTS

A. Background.
1. On December 17, 2013, JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry-Hinckley Industries (the

“Herbst Parties™) filed a complaint in this Court against Paul A. Morabito (the “Debtor”), his

long-term domestic partner, Bayuk, his brother, Salvatore, Superpumper, and Snowshoe, thereby

commencing case no. CV13-02663 (the “Fraudulent Transfer Action”).

2. The Fraudulent Transfer Action seeks to avoid and recover a number of
fraudulent transfers of the Debtor’s real and personal property which occurred only days after an
oral ruling by Judge Brent Adams finding the Debtor liable for fraud against the Herbst Parties
resulting in actual damages in excess of $75 million. Ultimately, final judgment was entered in
the approximate amount of $144 Million against the Debtor and in favor of the Herbst Parties,
encompassing actual and punitive damages.

3. On June 20, 2013, the Herbst Parties filed an Involuntary Petition (the “Petition”)
against the Debtor, thereby commencing the chapter 7 case (the “Chapter 7 Case”) in the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Nevada. Case No. 13-51237-GWZ, ECF No. 1.
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4. Following the election and appointment of William A. Leonard as the Chapter 7
Trustee, Mr. Leonard was substituted as the Plaintiff in this Fraudulent Transfer Action.

B. Commission to Take Deposition and the Subpoena.

5. On September 17, 2015, Plaintiff filed his Application for Commission to Take
Deposition of Vacco of the law firm of Lippes Mathias, a true and correct copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit 2. Defendants’ counsel was duly-served with the Application for
Commission to Take Deposition. 1d.

6. The Commission to Take Deposition of Vacco was issued by the Clerk of this
Court and entered on the docket on September 21, 2015. A true and correct copy of the
Commission to Take Deposition is attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

7. Pursuant to the Interstate Uniform Discovery Act, the Subpoena was served upon
Vacco on September 29, 2015 at 665 Main Street, Suite 300, Buffalo, New York 14203. A true
and correct copy of the Subpoena is attached hereto as Exhibit 4. The Subpoena commanded
Vacco to attend a deposition at Key Center, 50 Fountain Plaza, Suite 1400, Buffalo, New York
14202 on October 20, 2015 at 10:00 a.m., and to produce documents relating to the Fraudulent
Transfers.

8. Plaintiff’s Notice of Issuance of Subpoena to Dennis Vacco, a true and correct
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 5, was duly-served upon Defendants’ counsel on
September 29, 2015.

9. Vacco served his Response to Subpoena (the “Response”) upon Plaintiff’s counsel
on October 15, 2015, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The
Response asserted a boilerplate privilege objection, but failed to identify the purportedly
privileged documents or provide a privilege log. See id. Only approximately 200 pages of
documents were produced pursuant to the Subpoena. See Pilatowicz Decl., 9 4.

C. The October 21, 2015 Deposition and Privilege Dispute.

10. On October 21, 2015, counsel for the Plaintiff conducted a deposition (the “Initial
Deposition™) of Vacco. A true and correct copy of the transcript of Vacco’s deposition (the

“Vacco Trans.”) is attached hereto as Exhibit 7. At that time, Vacco indicated that although

4
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privilege objections were asserted, he did not believe any documents were withheld on that basis.
See Vacco Trans. at 13:14 - 14:24. Furthermore, at the Initial Deposition, attorney Frank
Gilmore (“Gilmore™), objected to various questions to Vacco regarding communications between
the Debtor and Vacco, asserting the Debtor’s attorney-client privilege. Based on the assertion of
the privilege, Gilmore instructed Vacco not to answer such questions. Id. at 48:22-44-15.

11. Vacco testified that he represented Bayuk although he does not know if he has a
representation agreement with Bayuk. Vacco does not recall if he represented Salvatore. Id. at
16:7-11; 54:24 - 55:22; 115:13-19. Vacco further testified that he has represented Superpumper
and Snowshoe, though not in connection with the transfers that are the subject of this Fraudulent
Transfer Action. See Id. at 155:13-16.

12.  Moreover, Vacco testified that in the Response of Lippes Mathias to the
Subpoena, Lippes Mathias asserted privilege on behalf of the Debtor and various entities,
including Showshoe and Superpumper. See Id. at 39:17 — 44:15, 102:10 — 104:10 (refusing to
answer questions regarding conversations with Debtor based on privilege). However, until the
Motion was filed in this Fraudulent Transfer Action on March 10, 2016, neither Gilmore nor
Lippes Mathias ever asserted a privilege on behalf of Bayuk or Salvatore.'

13.  Because the Debtor, a non-party to this Action, asserted a privilege which he is

not entitled to assert pursuant to Title 11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) and

for other reasons, counsel for the Trustee filed the Motion to Compel Responses to Deposition

Questions (the “Privilege Motion”) in the Bankruptcy Court, which sought a determination

regarding the existence and scope of the Debtor’s privilege for communications occurring prior

to the commencement of the Debtor’s bankruptcy case. See Case No. 13-51237-GWZ, ECF No.

' To the extent Defendants argue that an assertion of privilege by the Defendants was suggested or
implied, the argument must fail, because the privilege is not preserved unless it is made expressly. See
Abueg v. State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co., No. 2:14-CV-00635-GMN, 2014 WL 5503114, at *2 (D. Nev.
Oct. 30, 2014) (“A failure to assert privileges in accordance with Rule 26(b)(5) can result in a waiver of
the privilege.”) (citing Koninklijke Philips Elecs. N.V. v. KXD Tech., Inc., No. 2:05CV01532RLH-GWF,
2007 WL 778153 (D. Nev. Mar. 12, 2007)).
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45272

14.  The Bankruptcy Court held that the attorney-client privilege did not protect the
Debtor’s communications with Vacco and Lippes Mathias (including with respect to the
fraudulent transfers complained of in this Fraudulent Transfer Action) under the crime-fraud
exception or, even if it did apply, became the property of the bankruptcy estate and held by the
Trustee, who has waived the privilege. Attached hereto as Exhibits 8 and 9 are the transcript of
the Bankruptcy Court’s oral ruling and the Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to
Deposition Questions (the “Privilege Order”) entered by the Bankruptcy Court on February 3,
2016.

D. The Re-Noticed Deposition and Mr. Gilmore’s Gamesmanship.

15.  Following entry of the Privilege Order, Plaintiff’s counsel immediately sent the
Privilege Order to Vacco and demanded the production of any documents pursuant to the
Subpoena that had been withheld on the basis of privilege. Pilatowicz Decl., § 5. Vacco’s
continued deposition was re-noticed for March 18, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in Buffalo, New York. A
true and correct copy of the Notice of Continued Deposition, served on February 17, 2016, is
attached hereto as Exhibit 10.

16.  The Trustee’s counsel spoke with Kevin Burke (“Burke”), Vacco’s partner at

Lippes Mathias, several times regarding the production of documents. On or about March 3,

2 The Bankruptcy Court correctly discussed the reason why the existence and scope of the Debtor’s
privilege could only be addressed by the Bankruptcy Court:

The matter before me today, so far as I can determine, based upon the questions
that were asked of Mr. Vacco in his October deposition, and that he refused to answer
upon being ordered not to do so by Mr. Gilmore on behalf of the debtor, because it is not
Mr. Vacco's privilege. It is the debtor's privilege that the debtor invoked, the same
debtor who is not a party to the state court action in which the deposition was being
taken, but is clearly a party in interest here and it affects property of the estate in the
sense of the distributions if they are returned to the estate. If the allegations can be
proven, this would appear to be the only court that would have jurisdiction over Mr.
Morabito.

And its jurisdiction over Mr. Morabito is asserting the privilege that is the
critical issue before me. I'm not going to order Mr. Vacco to say anything or not to say
anything. Any order I issue will just be dealing with the privilege that's being asserted
of Mr. Morabito.

Hearing Trans. at 20:2-18.
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2016, for the first time, Burke advised Plaintiff’s counsel that there were at least nine bankers’
boxes of responsive documents that had not been produced, notwithstanding Vacco’s testimony
that no responsive documents had been withheld on the basis of the privilege assertion.’
Pilatowicz Decl., § 6. Burke has most recently acknowledged that there are fifteen bankers’

boxes of documents in addition to electronically stored information that may be responsive to the

Subpoena that have not been produced (collectively, the “Disputed Documents™). Id. 9§ 7.
However, Mr. Burke unequivocally advised Plaintiff’s counsel that in light of the validly-issued
Subpoena and the Privilege Order, Lippes Mathias would produce the responsive documents to
Plaintiff’s counsel. Id.

17. On March 9, 2016 (more than five months after receiving notice of the Subpoena
and a month after entry of the Privilege Order), Mr. Gilmore, as counsel for both the Defendants
and the Debtor, alleged that he “was suddenly made aware” that the Disputed Documents, which
were the subject of the September 29, 2015 Subpoena, may be protected by the attorney-client
privilege of the Defendants. Pilatowicz Decl., 8.

18.  Despite the passage of more than five months, no privilege log has ever been
provided pursuant to NRCP 26(e).* Pilatowicz Decl., 9.

19.  In their meet and confer pursuant to NRCP 37, Plaintiff’s counsel offered to limit
the request to those documents and communications to which the Debtor was a party, which

communications the Bankruptcy Court has already ruled are not privileged,’ notwithstanding the

3 By the happenstance of Plaintiff’s counsel contacting a copy service for a quote for copying and
digitizing the documents that is the same copy service contacted by Lippes Mathias, Plaintiff’s counsel
learned that there may be as many as 15 boxes of documents. Burke thereafter confirmed that there are
15 boxes of documents, along with electronically stored information that may be responsive to the
Subpoena but have not been produced. Pilatowicz Decl., § 6.

* In the Privilege Order, the Bankruptcy Court ordered that, if the Debtor intended to withhold any
documents based on privilege, “Within ten (10) calendar days of entry of [the Privilege Order], the Debtor
shall provide the Trustee a privilege log with respect to all documents withheld on the basis of privilege.”
Privilege Order, at § 4. To date, no privilege log has been provided with respect to the Debtor’s claim of
privilege. Pilatowicz Decl., § 10.

5> The Trustee has filed a motion in the Bankruptcy Court to compel Lippes Mathias’ turnover of all of the
Debtor’s files pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 542, which confirm that communications to which the Debtor was
a party regarding the fraudulent transfers are not privileged, or that any privilege which may have existed
has been waived.
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Defendants’ failure to establish that they are entitled to a privilege. Gilmore nonetheless claims
that the documents remain privileged and has refused to allow the production of documents.
Pilatowicz Decl., q 11.

1.
LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. The Motion is an Improper Collateral Attack on the Bankruptcy Court’s Privilege
Order.

As a threshold matter, Defendants’ contention that Plaintiff must file a motion to compel
in the New York state court to obtain the Disputed Documents is without merit. Had Lippes
Mathias simply refused to produce the Disputed Documents, that would surely be true.
However, Lippes Mathias’s counsel has already represented that the Disputed Documents would
be produced, and it is clear that it is the Defendants’ counsel in this Fraudulent Transfer Action
who is interfering with Lippes Mathias’ production of responsive documents. Moreover, it is
Defendants who are seeking the imprimatur of this Court for Lippes Mathias to refuse the
Subpoena by filing the Motion.

The Bankruptcy Court has unequivocally held that the attorney-client privilege does not
protect the Debtor’s communications with Vacco, for two separate, independent reasons. First,
the Bankruptcy Court found that the attorney-client privilege did not protect the communications
as a result of the crime-fraud exception. Second, the Bankruptcy Court found that even if the
attorney-client privilege did apply to the communications involving the Debtor, the Trustee, as
owner of the privilege, has waived it. See Privilege Order, 2:10 - 3:3.

1. The Crime-Fraud Exception.

The crime-fraud exception to the privilege is nearly, if not completely, universal. Under

federal law, as set forth in Cox v. Administrator US Steel, 17 F.3d 1386, 1416 (11th Cir. 1994),

the analysis is two-fold: (1) there must be a prima facie showing that the client was engaged in
criminal or fraudulent conduct when he sought the advice of counsel, or that he committed a
crime or fraud subsequent to receiving the benefit of counsel’s advice, and (2) there must be a
showing that the attorney’s assistance was obtained in furtherance of the criminal or fraudulent
activity or was closely related to it. Id. In Nevada, the exception applies “if the services of the

8
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lawyer were sought or obtained to enable or aid anyone to commit or plan to commit what the
client knew or reasonably should have known to be a crime or fraud.” Nev. Rev. Stat. 49.115(1).
Under New York law, the exception applies if the communications encompass “a fraudulent

scheme . . . or any accusation of some other wrongful conduct.” Art Capital Group LLC v. Rose,

54 A.D.3d 276, 277, 862 N.Y.S.2d 369 [1st Dept. 2008]. Thus, the attorney-client privilege does
not shield communications made in furtherance of a client’s tortious conduct. See Duplan Corp.

v. Deering Milliken, Inc., 397 F. Supp. 1146, 1172 (D.S.C. 1974).

The crime-fraud exception to the privilege applies to transfers made in fraud of creditors.

In re Blier Cedar Co., Inc., 10 B.R. 993 (Bankr. D. Me. 1981) (ordering production of documents

relating to transfers shown on a prima facie basis to have constituted fraudulent transfers); In re
Cutuli, No. 11-35256-BKC-AJC, 2013 Bankr. LEXIS 3843 (Bankr. S.D. Fla. Sept. 13, 2013)
(“Bankruptcy courts have held that merely raising an ‘inference that . . . transfers may have been
fraudulent’ is sufficient to invoke the crime-fraud exception.”).

Moreover, for the crime fraud exception to apply, the attorney does not even have to be
aware of the illegality involved; it is enough that the communication furthered, or was intended

by the client to further, the illegality. In re Grand Jury Proceedings, 87 F.3d 377, 381 (9th Cir.

1996); see also People v. Clark, 789 P.2d 127, 153, 50 Cal.3d 583, 609 (1990) (quoting United

States v. Friedman, 445 F.2d 1076, 1086 (9th Cir.) (“The attorney does not have to be aware of

the fraud if the communication furthered the fraud or if the client intended the communication to
further the fraud.”). Thus, “asset planning” advice that an attorney provides to a client intending
to hinder, delay, or defraud his creditors is not protected, even if the attorney is not aware of the
client’s intent.

Following briefing by the parties and a hearing on December 22, 2015, the Bankruptcy
Court concluded that the Trustee had made a prima facie showing that the crime-fraud exception
applied with respect to Vacco and Lippes Mathias. Specifically, the Bankruptcy Court stated in
his oral ruling:

1 believe that there has been a prima facie showing that has not been
rebutted regarding the existence of the fraud exception to the
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attorney-client privilege. There’s certain badges of fraud that exist --
Cutuli talks about those — to determine if the moving party has met its
burden to make a prima facie case, and I believe that that has been
established.

Hearing Trans. at 22:6-11.

Even Defendants’ counsel acknowledged that the Bankruptcy Court’s ruling expressly
applied to the transfers at issue in this Fraudulent Transfer Action. Following the December 22,
2015 hearing, Gilmore filed an objection to the proposed form of order incorporating the above
findings, arguing that the Bankruptcy Court’s ruling on the crime/fraud exception was limited to
“the Debtor’s transfer of the shares of Superpumper to the State Court Case Defendants.” See
Debtor’s Objection to Proposed Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to Deposition
Questions, Case No. 13-51237-GWZ, ECF No. 482, 2:4-16), attached hereto as Exhibit 11.
However, while the ruling indisputably included the transfers at issue here, the Bankruptcy Court
declined to so limit it. See Privilege Order.

2. Plaintiff’s Entitlement to the Documents as Successor to the Debtor.

In addition to the crime-fraud exception, the Bankruptcy Court further found that the
privilege was the Trustee’s to assert, and that the Trustee was entitled to waive the privilege.
Specifically, in the Privilege Order, the Bankruptcy Court stated:

(g) the Trustee has met his burden to waive the Debtor’s attorney-client
privilege under the balancing test; and (h) as a result, the Trustee has,
consistent with applicable law, waived the Debtor’s attorney-client
privilege with Lippes Mathias and Vacco.

Privilege Order, 2:25-27.

Notwithstanding the clear ruling from the Bankruptcy Court that no attorney-client
privilege applies to communications involving the Debtor, Defendants now assert, for the first
time, that the Disputed Documents are protected from disclosure on the basis that Vacco was
also representing the recipients of the Fraudulent Transfers. This is a clear effort to collaterally
attack the Bankruptcy Court’s Privilege Order, because a finding that the privilege applies with
respect to the Defendants is irreconcilably inconsistent with the Bankruptcy Court’s findings that

(1) the crime-fraud exception was satisfied and (ii) the Debtor’s privilege, to the extent it ever

10

735




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

existed, was waived. Because no privilege arose in the first instance, or has been waived, any
privilege Defendants may have had no longer protects the Disputed Documents.

B. Vacco’s Representation of Multiple Parties to the Transactions Results in Waiver of
the Privilege.

In order to assert a privilege, the Defendants must first show that Vacco actually had an
attorney-client relationship with them. They have not done so. See Vacco Trans. at 16:7-11;
54:24 - 55:22; 115:13-19; 155:13-16. That Bayuk and Salvatore were the beneficiaries of the
Debtor’s transfers in fraud of his creditors does not establish an attorney-client relationship with
Lippes Mathias. Even if an attorney-client relationship is established, Defendants would have
the burden to establish that the communications at issue were necessary to secure or give legal
advice.® However, even if Vacco represented the Defendants, and even if the communications
were made in the rendition of legal advice (and the other elements of a valid privilege were
established), that privilege does not protect such communications involving the Debtor, because
(i) the client file remains property of the bankruptcy estate, and the Plaintiff is entitled to
disclosure of Vacco’s communications with the alleged co-clients to the same extent the Debtor
would be entitled to such disclosure, and (ii) the joint-client privilege does not protect
communications with co-clients when they lack a unity of interest.

The common interest privilege is an extension of the attorney-client privilege. United

States v. Gonzalez, 669 F.3d 974, 978 (9th Cir. 2012). “Under the joint-client privilege, clients

may jointly retain (or one client may retain for the joint benefit of others) an attorney as their
common agent on a legal matter of common interest. With respect to matters of common
interest, each joint client may be privy to the other’s communications with the attorney without
the attorney-client privilege protection being waived by that breach of confidentiality.” In re

Hotels Nevada, LL.C, 458 B.R. at 570 (emphasis added) (citing Griffith v. Davis, 161 F.R.D.

687, 693 (C.D. Cal. 1995)). Although generally a protection against disclosure to third parties,

the joint-client privilege “does not generally override the responsibilities owed by the attorney to

® This analysis assumes that the Disputed Documents are in fact communications. However, as no
privilege log was provided, this is not clear.
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each client, nor does it protect communications among clients when they become adversaries.”
1d. at 570.

The attempted use of the joint-client privilege to protect communications from a trustee
who has waived the debtor’s attorney-client privilege was expressly considered and rejected by
the Nevada Bankruptcy Court in Hotels Nevada. In that case, certain debtors and non-debtor
affiliates were represented by the same law firm prepetition in connection with, among other
things, litigation and settlement discussions. Id. at 564-565. Following the filing of the debtors’
bankruptcy case, the trustee sought documents related to the litigation and any transfers of assets
belonging to the debtors. Id. at 565. Although the law firm acknowledged that the debtors’
privilege had been waived, it refused to turn over documents that included communications with
non-debtor parties, arguing that, because the non-debtor affiliates’ privilege had not been
waived, the trustee was not entitled to communications which included both the debtors and non-
debtor affiliates. Id. at 565-567.

The court disagreed, holding that the joint-client principle did not apply to protect the
communications. Id. at 573. First, the court in Hotels Nevada characterized the trustee’s request
for documents as follows:

Here, no third party seeks access to a confidential communication
between a lawyer and her client. Rather, a successor to a client—here,
the Trustee—is attempting to gain access to its property, or information
related to its property, from its former attorney, all as authorized by
Section 542 [of the Bankruptcy Code]. The analog would be if two
corporations hired the same attorney for a common task, and then one
of the corporations had a change in management, and new management
wanted all its old files to give to a new attorney only to be told “no” by
the old attorney.

1d. at 566.
Thus, as set forth by the court in Hotels Nevada, an attorney’s client files become
property of the client’s bankruptcy estate under Section 541(a) of the Bankruptcy Code. Thus,

the Debtor’s files at Lippes Mathias are the Plaintiff’s property. Hotels Nevada, LLC, 458 B.R.

at 568; see also Sage Realty Corp. v. Proskauer Rose Goetz & Mendelsohn L.L.P., 91 N.Y.2d

30, 689 N.E.2d 879 (1997) (holding that with very narrow exceptions, client has a broad right to

12
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attorney’s file in New York). As in Hotels Nevada, the Plaintiff seeks documents and
information that would be in the Debtor’s files and communications to which the Debtor would
have been entitled. Such information is already property that belongs to the Plaintiff in his
capacity as a trustee, and he has a right to production because he stands in the shoes of the
Debtor under the Bankruptcy Code.

In addition to the Plaintiff’s entitlement to the Disputed Documents because he owns
them under the Bankruptcy Code, Plaintiff is entitled to discover the Disputed Documents
because the joint-client privilege does not protect communications once the clients become
adversarial. “When former co-clients sue one another, the default rule is that all communications
made in the course of the joint representation are discoverable.... This rule has two bases: (1) the
presumed intent of the parties, and (2) the lawyer’s fiduciary obligation of candor to both

parties.” Hotels Nevada, 458 B.R. at 571-572 (quoting Teleglobe USA Inc. v. BCE, Inc. (In re

Teleglobe Comm’ns Corp.), 493 F.3d 345, 366 (3d Cir. 2007) (emphasis added)). Thus, when

parties formerly under a joint-client privilege become adverse, the privilege no longer applies to

any of their communications. Id.; see also Sec. Inv’r Prot. Corp. v. Stratton Oakmont, Inc., 213
B.R. 433, 437 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1997) (finding waiver of the joint defense privilege where

debtor was one of the parties to the joint defense).

The same rule would also apply under New York law. E.g., Bolton v. Weil, Gotshal &
Manges LLP, 14 Misc. 3d 1220(A), 836 N.Y.S.2d 483 (Sup. Ct. 2005) (unpublished opinion)
(finding joint defense privilege did not protect communications when the matter of their common
interest was at issue in later litigation); Finn v. Morgan, 46 A.D.2d 229, 236, 362 N.Y.S.2d 292
(1974) (where parties “decided to cast their lot together . . . in a situation implicit with
conflicting interests, there is no reason to protect them from the consequences of that choice

when their interests later diverge.”); Dooley v. Boyle, 140 Misc. 2d 177, 186, 531 N.Y.S.2d 161,

167 (Sup. Ct. 1988) (“Where an attorney is consulted by two parties in a matter of common
interest for their mutual benefit, nothing said by the parties or the attorney is deemed confidential

in litigation between those parties or their personal representatives since their common interest
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forbids concealment of statements made by one from the other.”) (citations omitted).’

With respect to the Transfers, Vacco represented the Debtor at the same time he was
purportedly also representing the Defendants in connection with the transfers that are the subject
of this Fraudulent Transfer Action.® Plaintiff, as the Debtor’s representative, has stepped into the
shoes of the Debtor and is now seeking to recover fraudulently-conveyed assets for the benefit of
all creditors. He is directly adverse to the Defendants in this Fraudulent Transfer Action. As a
result, to the extent the joint-client privilege ever applied despite the application of the crime-
fraud exception, it no longer protects communications regarding the matter of their common
interest.

C. Defendants’ Motion is Untimely.

Nev. R. Civ. P. 45(c)(3)(A) provides that “[o]n timely motion, the court by which a
subpoena was issued shall quash or modify the subpoena” under the circumstances specified.
The most liberal interpretation of “timely” does not allow Defendants to bring the Motion more
than five months after the Subpoena was issued, more than four months after the Initial
Deposition of Vacco and the noticed return date for the production of the Disputed Documents,
more than a month after the Bankruptcy Court entered the Privilege Order, a scant three weeks
before the close of discovery in this Fraudulent Transfer Action, and a mere eight days before
Vacco’s continued deposition. Such timing is tactical manipulation at its worst.

Interpreting the equivalent federal rule, the District of Nevada held that a motion to quash
filed three days before a deposition of which the movant had three-weeks’ notice was untimely.

Allstate Ins. Co. v. Nassiri, No. 2:08-CV-369 JCM GWF, 2011 WL 4905639, at *1 (D. Nev. Oct.

14, 2011) (applying Fed. R. Civ. P. 45(c)(3), which requires a “timely motion™); see also
Innomed Labs, LLC v. Alza Corp., 211 F.R.D. 237, 240 (S.D.N.Y. 2002) (motion to quash is

timely only if it is filed before the noticed return date). Defendants’ delay of more than five

months after the Subpoena was issued, a month after the entry of the Privilege Order and a mere

7 There appear to be no Nevada cases on point.

8 More likely, he was representing solely the Debtor.
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eight days before Vacco’s continued deposition is far more egregious than the delay in Nassiri
and well after the noticed date for production of the Disputed Documents (October 15, 2015).
Similarly, the District of Nevada found that a motion for a protective order filed under
Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(c) after an initial deposition and shortly before a re-noticed deposition was
untimely, as it should have been filed in response to the first notice of deposition. Steelman

Partners v. Sanya Gaosheng Inv. Co. Ltd, No. 209CV01016GMNGWF, 2015 WL 9462081, at

*2 (D. Nev. Dec. 24, 2015).
Though neither Nev. R. Civ. P. 26(c) nor the equivalent Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(c) contain an
explicit timeliness requirement, courts consistently hold that a motion for protective order must

be timely. See, e.g., Brittain v. Stroh Brewery Co., 136 F.R.D. 408, 413 (M.D.N.C. 1991) (citing

United States v. IBM Corp., 70 F.R.D. 700, 701 (S.D.N.Y. 1976)); In re Air Crash Disaster at

Detroit Metro. Airport, 130 F.R.D. 627, 630 (E.D. Mich. 1989); 8 Charles A. Wright & Arthur

R. Miller, Federal Practice and Procedure, sec. 2035, at 262 (1970). The failure to timely obtain

a protective order ordinarily precludes subsequent objection to the discovery requests. See, e.g.,

In re Air Crash Disaster, 130 F.R.D. at 630; International Business Machs., 79 F.R.D. at 414.

Defendants’ counsel’s contention that he was somehow unaware that the Vacco
Subpoena might implicate his clients’ purported privilege until March 9, 2016, notwithstanding
the fact that he has had notice of the Subpoena for over five months and the privilege issue was
subject to a protracted fight in the Bankruptcy Court, defies credulity. Defendants’ Motion, filed
not only months after the deadline for Vacco to produce documents, but also long after the
Bankruptcy Court ruled on the very same issue and Vacco’s deposition was re-noticed, is not
timely and should be denied on that basis alone.

D. Defendants’ Failure to Timely Establish the Claim of Privilege in Compliance With
NRCP 26 Waived the Privilege.

Any claim of privilege must be made expressly and with particularity. Nev. R. Civ. P.
26(b)(5) provides:

Claims of Privilege or Protection of Trial Preparation Materials.
When a party withholds information otherwise discoverable under these
rules by claiming that it is privileged or subject to protection as trial

15
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preparation material, the party shall make the claim expressly and shall
describe the nature of the documents, communications, or things not
produced or disclosed in a manner that, without revealing information
itself privileged or protected, will enable other parties to assess the
applicability of the privilege or protection.

Nev. R. Civ. P. 26(b)(5) (emphasis added).’
In order to meet its burden to establish all elements of the privilege, the party asserting
the privilege “must identify specific communications and the grounds supporting the privilege as

to each piece of evidence over which privilege is asserted.” See, e.g., United States v. Martin,

278 F.3d 988, 999-1000 (9th Cir. 2002)'° (citing United States v. Munoz, 233 F.3d 1117, 1128

(9th Cir. 2000); United States v. Osborn, 561 F.2d 1334, 1339 (9th Cir. 1977)); see also Painters

Joint Committee v. Employee Painters Trust Health & Welfare Fund, 2011 WL 4573349, at *5

(D. Nev. 2011) (citing Blankenship v. Hearst Corp., 519 F.2d 418, 429 (9th Cir. 1975) (the

“party resisting discovery bears the burden of showing why a discovery request should be
denied”).
Boilerplate, blanket assertions are “extremely disfavored.” Martin, 278 F.3d at 1000

(citing Clarke v. Am. Commerce Nat’l Bank, 974 F.2d 127, 129 (9th Cir. 1992)). Instead, the

objecting party must specifically identify the grounds for its objection and may not rely merely

on conclusory or speculative arguments. E.E.O.C. v. Caesars Entertainment, Inc., 237 F.R.D.

428, 432 (D. Nev. 2006).
Where the party asserting privilege fails to expressly make the claim of privilege and
specifically describe the nature of the documents not produced in a manner that enables other

parties to assess the claim of the privilege, it is waived. In Bullion Monarch Mining, Inc. v.

Newmont USA Ltd., the District of Nevada found that privilege was waived where the defendant

% To the extent Defendants’ Motion is made under Rule 45, it also requires that “the claim shall be made
expressly and shall be supported by a description of the nature of the documents, communications, or
things not produced that is sufficient to enable the demanding party to contest the claim.” Nev. R. Civ. P.
45(d)(2).

10 “Federal cases interpreting the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure ‘are strong persuasive authority,
because the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure are based in large part upon their federal counterparts.’
Executive Mgmt., L.td. v. Ticor Title Ins. Co., 118 Nev. 46, 53, 38 P.3d 872, 876 (2002) (quoting Las
Vegas Novelty v. Fernandez, 106 Nev. 113, 119, 787 P.2d 772, 776 (1990)).
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produced a privilege log for the first time a year after the documents were required to be
produced and after the close of discovery. 271 F.R.D. 643, 650 (D. Nev. 2010). Discussing the
lack of timeliness, the court found that though the determination of timeliness must be made in
relation to other factors involved, the default 30-days for responding to discovery is a guideline

for timeliness. Id. (citing Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railway Company v. United States

District Court for the District of Montana, 408 F.3d 1142, 1147-1148 (2005); comparing Carl

Zeiss Vision Int’] GmbH v. Signet Armorlite, 2009 WL 4642388, *3—4, 2009 U.S. Dist. LEXIS

111877, at *14 (S.D. Cal. Dec. 1, 2009) (nine month delay in production of privilege log deemed
unreasonable), with Coalition for a Sustainable Delta v. Koch, 2009 WL 3378974, *4-5, 2009

U.S. Dist. LEXIS 100728, at *11-14 (E.D. Cal. Oct. 15, 2009) (in a case dealing with a universe
of 80,000 documents and thousands of emails, defendants’ assertion of privilege two months
after production of documents was reasonable)).

In finding that the defendant’s privilege was waived, the Bullion court noted that the
excessive delay had effectively nullified the plaintiff’s ability to meaningfully inquire into the
claimed privilege. Even though the court had granted Bullion’s motion for additional briefing to
supplement its dispositive motions, the court found that it was unfairly prejudiced, stating:

. . . but what are Bullion's options insofar as the privilege log is
concerned? At the July 1, 2010 hearing, the court posed this question to
Newmont's counsel, who replied that it was up to Bullion’s counsel to
review the privilege log, decide which among the 1,126 entries it
contests, identify new witnesses it would like to depose (which were
never identified until Newmont produced the privilege log), re-depose
certain other witnesses, and then file a more targeted motion for
sanctions, if necessary. The court presumes that it, in turn, would be
required to review disputed privilege log entries in camera to decide
what is privileged. This takes time, and there is no time left.

Bullion Monarch Mining, 271 F.R.D. at 649."!

"' The Bullion court had some further observations about the manipulative tactics employed by the
defendant in that case:

Newmont delayed production of the privilege log, rendering it useless for its intended
purpose. There is no conceivable way that Bullion can review the 1,126 entries, compare
them with deposition testimony of numerous witnesses, and review the thousands of
documents produced to challenge the log entries, get a hearing and decision from the court,

17

742




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

The Defendants’ shenanigans in this case are comparable to those of the defendant in
Bullion, if not worse, and result in similar prejudice to the Plaintiff. Defendants raised the
privilege objection for the first time on approximately March 9, 2016, asserting a blanket
privilege over at least 9 bankers’ boxes of documents that Plaintiff’s counsel was not even aware
of.!> No privilege log has been provided, leaving the Plaintiff with no ability to meaningfully
evaluate the claim of privilege, much less challenge it. Even if a privilege log is provided
immediately, Plaintiff is left with one week left during the discovery period to evaluate the
privilege log, determine which entries he contests, move to compel the production of documents
that should not be protected by privilege, identify and depose any new witnesses disclosed for
the first time in the privilege log, and potentially re-depose witnesses that Plaintiff deposed
without the benefit of the Disputed Documents that were not produced.'*> As in Bullion, “this
takes time, and there is no time left.” Accordingly, the Court should find that any privilege
Defendants may have had in the Disputed Documents has been waived by their failure to timely

assert it and to assert it in compliance with the mandates of Rule 26.

(continued)
and then supplement its oppositions to dispositive motions, all by August 30, 2010. This

does not even include the potential necessity to re-depose witnesses or depose new witnesses
never disclosed.

Given the very late stage of these proceedings and the fact that no amount of post-privilege
log discovery now can cure the prejudice Bullion has suffered, the court is left with little
choice but to find that Newmont has waived its privilege as to every document designated in
the privilege log, including those designated as protected under the work product doctrine.

Bullion Monarch, 271 F.R.D. at 650-53.

12 Plaintiff’s counsel was unaware that Vacco had failed to produce approximately 15 bankers’ boxes of
responsive documents along with electronically-stored information until the week of March 7, 2016, as
Vacco testified that no responsive documents had been withheld pursuant to the assertion of privilege.
Pilatowicz Decl.,q .

13 Plaintiff’s counsel has just completed the depositions of the Debtor and the Debtor’s and Defendants’
auditors, Gursey Schneider. In the coming days and weeks, Plaintiff’s counsel will be deposing Vacco
and the Debtor’s and Defendants’ accountant, Stanton Bernstein. Pilatowicz Decl., § 12.
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Iv.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court deny Defendants’

Motion. Plaintiff seeks such other relief as this Court deems just and proper.

AFFIRMATION

Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

Dated this 24th day of March, 2016.

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP

/s/ Teresa Pilatowicz

GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 229

TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9605
GABRIELLE A. HAMM, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 11588

650 White Drive, Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Tel: (735) 777-3000

Attorneys for Plaintiff William A. Leonard
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that I am an employee of GARMAN TURNER GORDON, and that on this date,

pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I am serving a true and correct copy of the above Plaintiff’s Opposition

to Defendants’ Motion to Partially Quash, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order

Precluding Trustee From Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client Privilege on

the parties as set forth below:

XXX

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope placed for collection
and mailing in the United States Mail, Reno, Nevada, postage prepaid, following
ordinary business practices

Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested

Via Facsimile (Fax)

Via E-Mail

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope and causing the same
to be personally Hand Delivered

Federal Express (or other overnight delivery)

addressed as follows:

Barry Breslow
Frank Gilmore

ROBISON, BELAUSTEGUI, SHARP & LOW
71 Washington Street
Reno, NV 89503

DATED this 24th day of March, 2016.

/s/ Jenifer Cannon
An Employee of GARMAN TURNER
GORDON
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INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit No. Description Pages

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz in Support of Plaintiff’s
Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to Partially Quash, or, in
the Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee
From Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client
Privilege

2 Application for Commission to Take Deposition of Dennis 8
Vacco (September 17, 2015)

3 Commission to Take Deposition of Dennis Vacco 3
(September 21, 2015)

4 Subpoena/Subpoena Duces Tecum to Dennis Vacco 12
(September 29, 2015)

5 Notice of Issuance of Subpoena to Dennis Vacco (September 14
29, 2015)

6 Response to Subpoena (October 15, 2015) 9

7 Transcript of October 21, 2015 Deposition of Dennis Vacco 49

8 Transcript of the Bankruptcy Court’s December 22, 2015 45
oral ruling

9 Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to Deposition 5
Questions (February 3, 2016)

10 Notice of Continued Deposition of Dennis Vacco 3

11 Debtor’s Objection to Proposed Order Granting Motion to 17

Compel Responses to Deposition Questions
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DECLARATION OF TERESA M. PILATOWICZ IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFE’S
OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO PARTIALLY QUASH, OR, IN THE
ALTERNATIVE, FOR A PROTECTIVE ORDER PRECLUDING TRUSTEE FROM
SEEKING DISCOVERY PROTECTED BY THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE

I, TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, declare and state under penalty of perjury the following:

1. I am an attorney with the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP and am counsel to the
plaintiff, William Leonard, in this matter. I am duly-licensed in Nevada and Arizona.

2. I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth herein, and if called upon to
testify, could and would do so.

3. I submit this declaration in support of Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants’
Motion to Partially Quash, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee
From Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client Privilege (the “Motion”).

4. Vacco! served his Response to Subpoena (the “Response”) upon Plaintiff’s
counsel on October 15, 2015, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 6.
The Response asserted a boilerplate privilege objection, but failed to identify the purportedly
privileged documents or provide a privilege log. Only approximately 200 pages of documents
were produced pursuant to the Subpoena.

5. Following entry of the Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to
Deposition Questions on February 3, 2016, I immediately sent the Privilege Order to Vacco and
demanded the production of any documents pursuant to the Subpoena that had been withheld on
the basis of privilege. Vacco’s continued deposition was re-noticed for March 18, 2016 at 10:00
a.m. in Buffalo, New York. A true and correct copy of the Notice of Continued Deposition,
served on February 17, 2016, is attached hereto as Exhibit 10.

6. I spoke with Kevin Burke, Vacco’s partner at Lippes Mathias, several times
regarding the production of documents. On or about March 3, 2016, for the first time, Burke
advised me that there were at least nine bankers’ boxes of responsive documents that had not

been produced, notwithstanding Vacco’s testimony that no responsive documents had been

! Capitalized terms not defined in this declaration have the meanings set forth in the Motion.
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withheld on the basis of the privilege assertion. By the happenstance of Plaintiff’s counsel
contacting a copy service for a quote for copying and digitizing the documents that is the same
copy service contacted by Lippes Mathias, Plaintiff’s counsel learned that there may be as many
as 15 boxes of documents.

7. Burke has most recently acknowledged that there are fifteen bankers’ boxes of
documents in addition to electronically stored information that may be responsive to the

Subpoena that have not been produced (the “Disputed Documents”). However, Burke

unequivocally advised me that in light of the validly-issued Subpoena and the Privilege Order,
Lippes Mathias would produce the responsive documents to Plaintiff’s counsel.

8. On March 9, 2016 (more than five months after receiving notice of the Subpoena
and a month after entry of the Privilege Order), Mr. Gilmore, as counsel for both the Defendants
and the Debtor, represented that he “was suddenly made aware” that the Disputed Documents,
which were the subject of the September 29, 2015 Subpoena, may be protected by the attorney-
client privilege of the Defendants.

9. Despite the passage of more than five months, no privilege log has ever been
provided pursuant to NRCP 26(e).

10. Similarly, the Debtor has never produced a privilege log, though in the Privilege
Order, the Bankruptcy Court ordered that, if the Debtor intended to withhold any documents based on
privilege, “Within ten (10) calendar days of entry of [the Privilege Order], the Debtor shall provide the
Trustee a privilege log with respect to all documents withheld on the basis of privilege.” Privilege Order,
atq 4.

11.  In our meet and confer pursuant to NRCP 37, I offered to limit the request to
those documents and communications to which the Debtor was a party, which communications
the Bankruptcy Court has already ruled are not privileged, notwithstanding the Defendants’
failure to establish that they are entitled to a privilege. Gilmore nonetheless claims that all
documents remain privileged and has refused any compromise related to the production.

12. I have just completed the depositions of the Debtor and the Debtor’s and

Defendants’ auditors, Gursey Schneider, and will be deposing Vacco and the Debtor’s and
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Defendants’ accountant, Stanton Bemstein, in the near future. Further depositions of these

parties may be required as a result of information discovered in Vacco's lestimony or the

Disputed Documents. Though Defendants have stipulated 1o a very limited extension of the
discovery period. this does little 1o ameliorate the prejudice that Plaintifl suffers as a result of the
failure 1o allow Plaintiff access 1o the Disputed Liocurments.

Diated this 24th day of March, 2016.
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wkman TURNER GoRoon LLP
&30 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, NV 88110
T25-777-3000

1270

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 229

E-mail: gpordon@gtg legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9605

E-mail: tpilatowicz@gtg.legal
650 Whitc Drive, Ste, 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000

Special Counsel to Trustee

FILED
Electronically

2015-08-17 04:256:16 PM

Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 5147154 : csulezi¢

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF

THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the
Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony

Morabito,
Plaintiff,
vs.
SUPERPUMPER, INC, an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,

individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;
and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a
New York corporation,

Defendants.

CASE NO.: CV13-02663
DEPT.NO.: 1

| TTME: 10:00 A, M,
DATE: 10/20/2015

APPLICATION FOR COMMISSION TO TAKE DEPOSITION

Plaintiff William A. Leonard, Jr. (“Leonard™), trustee for the bankruptcy estate of Paul

Anthony Morabito, by and through his special, Garman Turner Gordon, LLP (“GTG™), and

pursuant to Rule 28(a) of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure make application to this Court for

issuance of a Commission to take the deposition of Dennis Vaceo, on October 20™, 2013, in

Buffale, New York, and respectfully show the Court as follows:

1. GTG is the attorney of record for plaintiff in the above-entitled case.

1of4
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2. Dennis Vacco is located in Buffalo, New York.

3. Applicant will provide for the attendance of 2 court reporter at the time and place
0f 10:00 a.m, on QOctober 20", 2015 at Key Center, 50 Fountain Plaza, Suite 1400, Buffalo,
New York 14202, who is authorized to administer oaths under the laws of the State of New
York, for the taking of the deposition of Dennis Vacco.

4, A copy of the Notice of Deposition of Dennis Vacco (the “Notice”) is attached

hereto as Exhibit “1” by this reference incorporated herein as if set forth in full.

5. Under Rule 28(a) of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, upon application and
proof that the Notice to take a deposition out of the State of Nevada has been given as provided
in NRCP 30(b)(1), the Clerk of this Court is authorized to issuc a commission for the taking of
deposition of witnesscs outside the State of Nevada.

WHEREFORE, Applicant prays that the clerk of this Court issuc a Commission to take
the deposition of Dennis Vacco, at 1¢;:00 a.m. on the 20t day of October, 2015, or such date as
continued by agreement of the parties or order of the Court.

AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the
social security number of any person.
Dated this 17" day of September, 2015.
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP

/s Tevesa M. Pilatowicz
GERALD E. GORDON, ESQ.
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89115

Special Counsel for Trustee

20f4
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650 Whita Drive, Ste, 100
Las Vegas, NV 83119

F25-TT-2000

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that I am an employee of GARMAN TURNER GORDON, and that on this date,

pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I am scrving a true and correet copy of the attached APPLICATION

FOR COMMISSION TO TAKE DEPOSITION cn the parties as set forth below:

XXX

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope placed for collection
and mailing in the United States Mail, Reno, Nevada, postage prepaid, following
ordinary business practices

Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested

Via Facsimile (Fax)

Via E-Mail

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed cnvelope and causing the same
to be personally Hand Delivered

Federal Express (or other overnight delivery)

addressed as follows:

Barry Breslow
Frank Gilmore

ROBISON, BELAUSTEGUI, SHARP & LOW
71 Washington Street
Reno, NV 89503

DATED this 1 7% day of September 2015,

MM

An anloy& of GARMAN TURNER

GORDON

3of4
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850 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, NV BS113

F25-777-3000

1.

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Notice of Deposition of Dennis Vacco

4 0f 4
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GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 229

E-mail: ggordon@gtg legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9605

E-mail: tpilatowicz@gtg.legal
650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Ncevada §9119
Telephone 725-777-3000

Special Counsel to Trustee

FILED
Electronically

2015-08-20 03:51:51 PM r

Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Count
Transaction # 5104371

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF

THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD. Trustee for the

Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito,
Plaintiff,
vs.
SUPERPUMPER, INC, an  Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,

individually and as Trustec of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST:

SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;

and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM INC, a
New York corporation,

Defendants.

CASE NO.: CV13-02663
DEPT.NO.: 1

TIME: October 20, 2015
DATE: 10:00 am.

NOTICE OF DEPOSITION OF DENNIS VACCO

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the 20th day of October, 2015, at 10:00 o’clock am.,, at
Key Center, 50 Fountain Plaza, Suite 1400, Buffalo, New York 14202, Plaintiff William A.

Leonard, by and through his special counsel, Garman Turner Gordon LLP, will take the

deposition of Dennis Vacco,

The deposition will be taken upon oral examination and stenographically recorded

pursuant to Rules 26 and 30 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, before a Notary Public, or

1of3
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1 || before some other officer authorized by law to administer oaths. The oral examination will |
2 |} continue from day to day until completed. You are invited to attend and cross-cxamine.
AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239RB.030
4
5 The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preccding document does not contain the
6 social security number of any person.
7 Dated this 20" of August, 2015.
8
: GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
10
i /s/ Teresa M. Pilatowicz
GERALD E. GORDON, ESQ.
12 TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
13 Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
o Telephone 725-777-3000
15 Special Counsel for frustee
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
RN TURNER Gioroan LLP 20f3
G50 White Drive, Ste, 100
Les Vegas, NV 83115
FAS-TTI-3000
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WAMAN TURNER (30ADON LLP
£50 White [Hive, Ste, 100
Las Vegas, NV 88118
257773000

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I certify that 1 am an employee of GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP, and that on this

date, pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I am servin £ a true and correct copy of the attached NOTICE OF
DEPOSITION OF DENNIS VACCO on the parties as set forth below:

XXX Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope placed for collection
and mailing in the United States Mail, Reno, Nevada, postage prepaid, following
ordinary business practices

Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested
Via Facsimile (Fax) i
Via E-Mail

Placing an original or true copy thereofin a sealed envelope and causing the same
to be personally Hand Delivered

Federal Express {or other overnight delivery)

addressed as follows:

Barry Breslow

Frank Gilmore

ROBISON, BELAUSTEGUI, SHARP & LOW
71 Washington Street

Reno, NV §9503 ;

DATED this O day of August, 2015.

(]Wﬂﬁ |
An ¥Eplployek/ of GARMAN TURNER
GORDON1.LP
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Giatman TusER GoRbon LLP
G50 While Drive, Ste. 103
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1417

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 229

E-mail: ggordon@gtg. legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
MNevada Bar No. 9605

E-mail: tpilatowicz{@glg legal
650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000

Special Counsel to Trustee

IN'THE SECOND JUDICTAL DISTRICT COURT OF

THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A, LEONARD,. Trustee for the

Bankruptcy Ustate o Paul  Anthony
Morabita,
Plaintiff,
V5.
SUPERPUMPER, INC.,, an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,

individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST:
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;
and SMOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC.. a
New York corporation,

Defendants.

|

CASE NOQ.: CV]3-02663
DEPT. NO.: 1

DATE: 10/20/2015
TIME: [G:00 a.m.

COMMISSION TO TAKE DEPOSITION

YOU ARE HERERY COMMISSIONED AND FULLY AUTHORIZED to take the
depasition of Dennis Vacco, in accordance with the Rules of Civil Procedure of the State of
Nevada, at Key Center, 50 Fountain Plaza, Suitc 1400, Buffaio, New York 14202, on the 20™
day of Qctober, 2015, at the hour of 10:00 a.m. and on succeeding days untit concluded, or a1

such other time and place as may be mutually agreed upon by counsel for the respective parties

hereto.
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Garan Tomer Goioy LLP
654 White Enive, Ste. 100
Las Yopas, WY 89119
F25-777-3000

You shall put the witness on oath and his testimony shall be recorded by someone acting
under your direction, stcnographically, and thereafler transcribed. Objections to evidence
presented shall be noted, and the evidence shall be taken subject to said objections. When the
testimony is tully transcribed, it shall be signed by the respective wilness, after a full oppertunity
0 make corrections or changes. You shall certify on the deposition transcript that the witness
was duly sworn by you, and that the deposition is a deposition, and place it in an envelope
endorsed with the title of the action and marked “Ideposition of Dcnnis Vacce” and send it by

registered mail to the law oﬁ‘ces of Garman Turner Gordon Ll P. “ntlnn,,‘ :

Dated this_ 24" day of b 2015,

JACQUELINE Blmm
CLERK OF TH[, CGUR.

W
f\pl !—-, *,
x‘ 1\

------
Ta

N ad
RN I
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SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
COUNTY OF WASHOE, STATE OF NEVADA

AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereb 5 ffirm that the preceding document, _____

C v asSavL ToKe W@gﬁ\-ﬁm

(Title of Document)

filed in case number:

R{ocument does nat contain the social security number of any person

-OR-
mDocumem contains the social! security number of a person as required by:

D A specific state or federal law, to wit;

(State specific state or federal law)
-or-
D Far the administration of a public program
-or-
D For an application for a federal or state grant
-or-

D Confidential Family Court Information Sheet
{NRS 125.130, NRS 125.230 and NRS 125B.055)

oo O 15 000K 2

(Signature}

M@yﬂm{m%r}%5

(Print Name)

Csiariee

{(Attcrney for)

Affirmation
Revised December 15, 2006

763



Exhibit 4

FILED
Electronically
2016-03-25 11:17:20 AM
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Mar. 22016 1:01PM No. 2564 P |

3
g an

t
STATE OF NEW YORK.
COUNTY OF ERIE

SUBPOENA.
(pursaant to theUniform Yuterstate
Deposition and Diseovery Act and
CPLR §3119)

WhRam A. Leenard ) Originating State: . Neveda
Plaint{ff/Petitioner, Originating Connty: __ Washoe
v Originating Court: Jugicial
Superpumper, inc., stal Originathug Case number:

Defendant/Respondent.

"

SUBPOENA/ SUBPOENA DUCES TRCUM
pursuant to the Uniform Interstate Discovery Act
{Personal Attendange Required)
TO: Dennis Vacco
Lippes Mathiss Wexler Friedman 115
665 Main Street, Suite 300

. , New Yark 14203
WE COMMAND YDTP tﬁ%ﬂﬁmﬂmc mf{é date, and place set forth below 1o testify at

& deposition to be taken in this civil action: and

each of you appear and attend before Luthar

at Center, 50 Fountaln Plaza, Suits 1490, Buffeln, New York 14202

onthe _ zot deyof Octobar ;20_15 &t 10 o'clock, in the gam.
and at any recessed or edjoumed date to give testimony in this action on the patt of

and/or that you bring with you, and produce st the time snd Place aforesaid, the following
documents, electronically stored information, o objects, and permit their inspection, copying,
testing or sampling of the material:
288'items requested In “itsms o Be Produced” on Sttached eubpoena lsaued from the Secand Judicial .
District Court of thy Stato of Nevads. in snd.for the Counly of Washos, 1o be produced on of befgre Octobsr 15, 2015
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JMAN TURNER Giofd
150 Whits Onvie, 3&0 100
Lns\fegas. wnggna

No. 2564 P 2

1:02PM
H/EW Yoic AFXFIDAVIT OF SERVICE
STATE OF NEVADA: 5
88
CQUNTY OF
ﬂm
: /, being duly swomn says: That at all times

herein affiant wes av&r 18 years of age, not a party to nor mterestcd m the proceeding in which
this afdavit is made, That aﬁantrccc]vcd the Subpoena on 28t d.ay of ép‘\-«.,ba . 2015,
and served the same on the 2 | day of S*P‘\‘--Je o~ __ 2015 by delivering a copy to
the witness at (26 % e Sf‘r..n.;f' S~ oo

Bufuto Maw Yokt a0

I declare under penalty of perjuxy under the law of the State of Nevada thet the foregoing

is true and eoxrect,
EXECUTED this _a_fﬁ:;y of D n;ﬂ__;ha/ . 2015,

Signature of person making servigf

DAWN M. KQRNAKER
NGIARY, PUBLIO, SATE OF NEW YORK
. GUALFIED 1N MAGARR COLNTY
oy Compisson g e 1 /7
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766



10
11
12
13
4
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

GarMaN TURKER GoRDON LLP
B30 White B va, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, Ny §9119
7257773000

3980

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 229

E-mail: ggordon(@gtg.legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9605

E-mail: tpilatowicz@gty.legal
650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000

Attorneys for William A. Leonard

IN THE SECOND JUDI

CIAL DISTRICT COURT OF

THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the
Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito,

Plaintiff,
Vs,

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Trusice of (he EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;
and SNOWSHOL PETROLEUM, INC., a
New York corporation,

Delcndants.

CASE NO.: CV13-02663
DEPT. NO.: 1

SUBPOENA - CIVIL

XX Regular XX Duces Tecum

THE STATE OF NEVADA SENDS GREETINGS TO:

Pennis Vacco
Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP

665 Main

Street, Suite 300

Buffalo, New York 14203

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED that all and singular, business and excuses set

aside, you (1} shall producc the documents requested below for inspection and copying! on

' Alternatively, the documents may be delivered electronically 1o tpilatowicz(@ate lepul prior to QOctober 15, 2015,
Il documents are provided electronically, no appearance to produce and permit inspection is necessary on October

10of 10
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GarmAk TURNER GORDON LLP

650 White Drive, Sta. 100
Las Vegas. v 29119
F25-777-3000

October 15, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. and (2) shall appear and attend to present testimony on the 20th ‘
day of October, 2015 at 10:00 a.m.. The address where you arc required to appear is Key Center,
50 Fountain Plaza, Suite 1400, Buffalo, New York 14202. Your attendance is required to give
testimony and/or produce and permil inspection and copying of designated books, documents or
tangible things in your possession. custody or control, or to permit inspection of premises. [f you ‘
fail to attend, you may be decmed guilty of contempt of Court and liable to pay all losses and ‘
damages caused by your failure to appear. Please sece Exhibit “A™ attached hereto for
information regarding the rights of the person subject to this Subpoena.

Datcd this 24th day of September, 20135.
GARMAN TURNER GORDON T,LP

/s Teresa M. Pilatowics
GERALD E. GORDON, ESQ.
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000

Arnorneys for William A. Leonard

ITEMS TG BE PRODUCED

DEFINITIONS

1. “Action” means the above-captioned casc pending in the Second Judicial District Court,
Washoe County, Nevada, at Case No. A CV13-02663.

2. “Communication”™ means any contact, oral or written, formal or informal, at any time or
any place under any circumstance whatsoever whereby any information of any nature
was transmitted or transferred, including but not limited to personal conversation,
conferences, telephone conversations, memoranda, letters, correspondence, electronic
correspondence, texts, reports, and publications.

3 “Document™ shall be deemed to mean any printed, typewritten, handwritten, efectronic,

(Continued)

[5.2015.
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650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vagas, NV 89119

F2b-773-3000

or otherwise recorded matter of whatever character, whether original, master or copy
(whether still active, archived or transparent) and any copies or reproductions that are not
identical to the original, that is or has been in the possession, control or custody of you,
your attorney andfor all other person acting in your behalf or of which any of the
aforementioned persons have knowledge, other person acting in your behalf or of which
any ol the aforementioned persons have knowledge, including, but net limited to, letters,
e-mail (internal and external), communications, correspondence, memoranda,
confirmations, facsimile transmittal sheets, transmittal forms, telegrams, notes,
sumrmaries, minutes, contracts, subcontracts, purchase orders, leases, amendments,
change orders, proposals, requests for proposal, bids, marketing documents, reports,
studies, drawings, charts, diagrams, sketches, estimates, specifications, addenda,
schedules, directives, records of telephone conversations, staffing projections, records of
meetings and conferences, including lists of persons attending meetings or conferences,
summaries and records of personal conversations or interviews, exhibits, transcripts,
books, manuals. publications, diaries, logs, daily reports, status reports, minutes of
mectings, records, journals, entrigs in journals, charts, financial records andfor summarics
of financial records, work papers, bills, ledgers, financial statements, audit reports,
financial data, status sheets, contract status reports, tax returns, certificate of insurance,
agreements of suretyship and/or indemmification, insurance policics, calendars,
summaries ol investigations and/or surveys, statistical compilations, audio or visual
recordings, photographs, cpm schedules, spreadsheets, computer or magnetic records,
computer memory (including that of any “transparent™ information, information deleted
from the personal computer or file but not from the system), hard drives, floppy discs,
optical discs, CD-ROM discs, Bernoulli discs and their equivalents, magnetic tape,
disaster recovery back-up, compact disks, computer generated reports or summarics,
drafts of original or preliminary notes on and marginal comments appearing on any
documents, other reports and records, any other paper or physical thing containing
writing, photographic, imaged, or electronically recorded data, every copy of such
writing or records where the original is not in the possession, custody or control of the
aforementioned persons, and every copy of every such writing or record where such copy
contains any commentary or notation whatsoever that decs not appear on the original.

“Morabito™ means Paul Morabito.

“Plaintilf” or “Leonard™ refers to Plaintiff William A. Leonard, Trustee,

“Relate™ or “Relating 10™ or “Relative to” means constituting, comprising, containing,
sctting forth, showing, disclosing, describing, explaining, summarizing, concerning, or
referring to directly or indirectly.

“YOU” OR “YOUR™ means Dennis Vacco and Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP
and their agents, employees, heirs, assignees or representatives,

These requests shall be deemed continuing and as additional information concerning the
answers is secured, such additionat information shall be supplied to Plaintff.

You shall preduce all Documents in the manner in which they are maintained in the usual

3of10
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£50 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Wegas, My 88119
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10.

course of business and/or shall organize and label Documents to correspond with the
categories of these requests. A request shall be deemed to include a request [or any and
all file folders within which the document was contained, transmittal sheets, cover letters,
exhibits, enclosures, or attachments to the Document in addition to the Document itself,

In producing Documents and other materials, You are requested to fumish all Documents
or things in Your possession, custody, or control, regardless of whether such Documents
or materials are possessed by You directly or Your directors, officers, agents, employees,
representatives, subsidiaries, managing agents, affiliates, investigators. or by Your
attorneys or their agents, employees, representalives, or investigators.

If any Document is held under claim of privilege, please identify the Document lor which
there is a claim of privilege and a full description thereof, including without limitation:

The date it bears;

The name of each person who prepared it or who participated in any way
in its preparation:

The name of each person who signed it;

The name of cach person to whom it, or a copy of it was addressed;

The name of each person who presently has custody of it or a copy of it;
The subject matter and its substance; and

What factual basis there is for the claim of privilege.

g b

et o el B

il any Document requested to be produced was but is no longer in Your possession or
control, or is no longer in existence, state whether it is (1) missing or lost, (2} destroyed,
(3) transferred voluntarily or involuntarily to others and if' so to whom, or {(4) otherwise
disposed of; and in cach instance explain the circumstances surrounding an authorization
of such disposition thereof and state the approximate date thereol,

In the event that Documents called for by any particular request have been lost or
destroyed, please state: (i) the date on which the Document(s) were lost or destroyed; (ii)
the manner in which the Document(s) were lost or destroyed; (iti) the identity of the
Document(s); (iv) the information contained within such Document(s} and the nature of
the Document(s); and {v) and the identity of any persen(s) who has knowledge of the
contents of the Document(s} or has received a copy of such Document(s).

Pocuments attached to each other should not be separated.

Documents not otherwise responsive to these requests shall be preduced if such
Documents mention, discuss, refer o, or explain the Documents that are called for in a
request.

The term “and” as well as “or™ shall be construed either disjunctively or conjunctively, as
nceessary, (o bring within the scope of these requests any information which might
otherwise be consirued to be outside their scope.

Whenever appropriate. the singular form of a word shall be interpreted as plural and the
masculine gender shall be deemed 10 include feminine,

4 of 10
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GARMAN TURNER GaRDON LLP
G50 White Drive, Ste, 100
Las Vegas, Nv B9118
T25-FIF-3000

11 The fact that a Document has been produced by You or any other defendant in any other
litigation does not relieve You of Your obligation to produce your copy of the same
Document, even if the two Documents are identicai

DISCOVERY REQUESTS

1. Any and all Documents constituting, relating to, or referring to your engagement
as counscl for Morabito between January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2014.

2. Any and all statements from January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010
detailing the descriptions of and amount billed for services provided by you to Paul A. Morabito
or any third party on his behalf,

3. Any and all documents sufficient to identify any and all payments made from
January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010 to you by Paul Morabito or a third party on his
behalf.

4, Any and all documents sufficient to identify any and all payments made by You
to any third party on Morabito’s behalf from January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010.

5. Any and all Documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services
performed by you wilh respect to the transfer of property located at 8355 Panorama Drive, Reno,
Nevada to the Arcadia Living Trust on or about October 1, 2010. This includes, but is not limited
to, opinion letters, written agreements relating to the transfer, including drafts, and valuations of'
the real and personal property located at 8355 Panorama Drive, Reno, Nevada whether ordered
by You. obtained by You, or otherwise in Your file.

6. Any and all Documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services '
performed by you with respect to the transfer of property located at 371 E] Camino Del Mar,

T.aguna Beach, California to the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust (the “Bayuk Living Trust™)

on or about October 1, 2010, This includes, but is not limited to, opinion letters, written
agreements relating to the transfer. including drafts, and valuations of the real and personal .
property located at 371 El Camino Del Mar, Laguna Beach, California whether ordered by You,
obtained by You, or otherwise in Your file.

7. Any and all Documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services

50f 10
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650 While Orve, Sta. 150
Las Vegas, NV B3119
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performed by you with respect to the transfer of property located at 370 Los Olivos, Laguna
Beach, California to the Bayuk Living Trust on or about October 1. 2010. This includes, but is
not limited to, opinion lctters, written agreements relating lo the transfer, including drafts, and
valuations of the rea! and personal property located at 370 Los Olivos, Laguna Beach, California
whether ordered by You, obtained by You, or otherwise in Your file.

8. Any and all Documents constituting, rclating to, or referring to services
performed by you with respect to the transfer of the Arcadia Living Trust’s ownership interest in
Baruk Properties, LLC on or about October 1, 2010. This includes, but is not limited ta, opinion
letters, written agreements relating to the transfer, including drafts, and valuations of the assets
owned by Baruk Properties. LLC whether ordered by You, obtained by You, or otherwise in

Your file. Such asscts include, but are not limited to, the real and personal property located at

1254 Mary Flemming Circle, Palm Springs, California; 1461 Glenneyre St.. Laguna Beach, '

California; 520 Glenneyre St.. I.aguna Beach, California; and 49 Clayton Place, Sparks, Nevada.

9. Any and all Documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services

performed by you relating to the sale of Paul A. Morabito’s 80% intcrest in Superpumper, Inc. to |

Snowshoe Petroleum on or about September 30, 2010. This includes, but is not limited to,
opinion letters, written agreements relating to the transfer, including drafts, and valuations of
Morabito’s interest in Superpumper, Inc. whether ordered by You, obtained by You, or otherwise
in Your file.

10. Any and all Documents constituting, relating to, or referring to Communications

between you and any employee of Matrix Capital Markets Group, Inc. regarding any valuations

requested by You of Superpumper, Ine.
1. Any and all promissory notes drafted by You between January 1, 2010 and
December 31, 2010 at the request of Morabito, or at the request of any third party on Morabito’s

behalf.

2. Any and all Documents related to or referring to promissory notes drafted by You

between January 1, 2010 and Deeember 31, 2010 at the request of Morabito, or at the request of

any third party on Morabito’s behalf including, but not limited to. any ledgers regarding

6ol 10
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1 | payments on such promissory notes.

I3

13, Any and all Commumications between You and any third parly regarding
3 || promissory notes drafted by You between January 1. 2010 and December 31, 2012 at the request

4 || of Morabito, or at the request of any third party on Morabito’s behalf.

5 14, Any and all Documents sufficient to identify any and all payments Received in
6 || any of Your accounts from Sefton Trustees on Morabite’s behalf between September 15, 2010
7 [| and the date of Your response to these requests.

8
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T25-777-3000
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650 White Drive, Ste, 100
Las Vegas, NV 39119

725-777-3000

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE

STATE OF NEVADA )
)
COUNTY OF CLARK )

, being duly sworn says: That at all times |
herein affiant was over 18 vears of age. not a party to nor interested in the proceeding in which
this affidavit is made. That affiant received the Subpoena on the _ day of . 2015,

and served the same on the day of . 2015 by delivering a copy to

the witness at:

1 declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the Statc of Nevada that the foregoing
is true and correct.

EXECUTED this day of . 2015.

Signature of person making service ‘

8ol 10

774



GARMAN TURNER GoRDon LLP

28

B50 White Orive, Ste. 100
Lus Vegas, NV B2118

725-771-3000

EXHIBIT *A™
NEVADA RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

Rule 45:
(c) Protection of Persons Subject to Subpoenas.

1)) A party or an attorney responsible for the issuance and service of a subpoena shall
take reasonable steps 1o avoid imposing undue burden or expense on a person subject to that
subpoena. The court on behalf of which the subpocna was issued shall enforce this duty and
impose upon the party or attorney in breach of this duty an appropriate sanction, which may
include, but is not limited to, lost earnings and a reasonable attorney's fee,

(2XA) A person commanded to produce and permit inspection and copying of designated
books, papers, documents or tangible things, or inspection of premises need not appear in person
at the place of production or inspection unless commanded to appear for deposition, hearing or
trial.

(B)  Subject to paragraph (d}(2) of this rule. a person commanded to produce
and permit inspection and copying may, within 14 days after service of the subpoena or before
the time specified for compliance if such time is less than 14 days after scrvice, serve upon the

party or attorney designated in the subpoena written objection to mspection or copying of any or -

all of the designated materials or of the premises. If objection is made, the party serving the
subpocna shall not be entitled to inspect and copy the materials or inspect the premises except
pursuant to an order of the court by which the subpoena was issued. If objection has been made,
the party serving the subpoena may, upon notice to the person commanded to produce, move at
any time for an order to compel the production. Such an order to compel production shall protect
any person who is not a party or an officer of a party from significant expensc resulting from the
inspection and copying commanded.

(3)(A) On timely motion, the court by which a subpoena was issued shall quash or

modify the subpoena if it
(i} fails to allow reasonable time for compliance;

{ii) requires a person who is not a party or an officer of a party to |

travel to a place more than 100 miles from the place where that
person resides, is employed ot regularly transacts business in
person, except that, subject 1o the provisions of clause (¢)(3)(B)(iii)
of this ruie, such a person may in order to attend trial be
commanded to travel from any such place within the state in which
the trial is held, or

(iti)  requires disclosure of privileged or other protected material and no

exception or waiver applics, or
(iv)  subjects a person 1o undue burden.

(B}  If asubpoena
(i) requires disclosure of a trade seerct or other confidential research,
development, or commercial information, or
(i}  requires disclosure of an unretained expert's opinion or information

not describing specific cvents or occurrences in dispute and

resulting from the expert's study made not at the request of any
party,
the court may. to protect a person subject 1o or affected by the subpoena, quash or modify the
subpoena, or, if the party in whose behalf the subpoena is issued shows a substantial need for the
testimony or matcrial that cannot be otherwise met without undue hardship and assures that the
person to whom the subpoena is addressed will be reasonably compensated, the court may order
appearance or production only upon specified conditions,

Sof 10
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(d) Duties in Responding to Subpocna.

38

{1) A person responding to a subpoena to produce documents shall produce them as
3 || they arc kept in the usual course of business or shall organize and label them to correspond with
the categories in the demand.

4 (2) When information subject to a subpoena is withheld on a claim that it is
privileged or subject to protection as trial preparation materials, the claim shall be made
5 || expressly and shall be supported by a description of the nature of the documents, -
communications, or things not produced that is sufficient to enable the demanding partly to
6 || contest the claim.

7

28

Garman TURNER GORDON LLP 10 0f 10
650 Whita Drive S, 190
Las Vagas, NV 89919
F2h-F77-3000
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1] 2610
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
2 | GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
3 Nevada Bar No. 22¢
E-mail: ggordon@gtg legal
4 | TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9605
5 || E-mail: tpilatowicz@gtg.legal
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
6 | Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
- Telephone 725-777-3000
g | Attorneys for William A. Leonard
9 IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
10 THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
11 || WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the | CASE NQ.: CV13-02663
Bankruptcy Estate of TPaul Anthony
12 || Morabito, DEPT.NO.; 1
13 Plaintiff,
14 vs.
15 || SUPERPUMPER, INC, an Arizona
corporation,; EDWARD BAYUK,
16 || individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST; | NOTICE OF ISSUANCE OF SUBPOENA
17 [| SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual; | TO DENNIS VACCO
and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a
18 | New York corporation,
19 Defendants.
20
2]
Plaintiff, WILLIAM A LEONARD, Trustee for the Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
22
Morabito, by and through his counsel, GERALD M. GORDON and TERESA M, PILATOWIZ,
23
of the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon, hereby provide notice to Defendants of the issuance
24
of a Subpoena to testify at a deposition and produced documents upon Dennis Vacco. A copy of
25
the subpoena is attached hereto as Exhibit “1,”
26
Iy
27
Iy
28
oA TURKER GORDON LLP 10f3
B30 Whila Crive, 5te. 100
Las Vegas, NV 85119
7257772000
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1 AFFIRMATION
R Pursuant to NRS 239B.030
3 The undersigned does hereby affitmn that the preceding document does not contain the
4 social security number of any person.
5 Dated this 29th day of Japuary 2015.
6 GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
7 5/ Teresa M. Pilatowicz
g GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 229 .
9 TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9605
10 650 White Drive, Suite 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
. Tel: (735) 777-3000
Attorneys for William A. Leonard
12
13 -
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
RN TURNER GoRDONLLP 2 0f3
G50 White Drive, Sie, 100
Las Vegas, NV 89119
TL5-777-3000
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araN TUSNER GORDON LLP
650 Whita Drvs, Ste. 100
Las Vegaa, N 89114
T25-771-3000

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
The undersigned, an employee of Garman Turner Gordon, hereby certifies that on the
20th day of September, 2015, she served a copy of the NOTICE OF ISSUANCE OF
SUBPOENA TO DENNIS VACCO, to all interested parties via e-mail and U.S Mail system
addressed to:

Barry Breslow
Frank Gilmore
ROBISON, BELAUSTEGUIL, SHARP & LOW

71 Washington Street v
SIaR

Reno, NV 89503
An employee of Garman Turner

30f3
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GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 229

E-mail: ggordon@gtg legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 5605

E-mail: tpilatowiczi@gtg. legal
650 White Drive, Ste, 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000

Attorneys for William A. Leonard
IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF

THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the | CASE NO.: CV13-02663
Bankruptcy Estaic of Paul Anthony
Morabito, DEPT.NO.: 1

Plaintiff,
SUBPOENA - CIVIL
Vs,

SUPERPUMPER, INC, an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK, XX Regular XX Duces Tecum
individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;
and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC,, a
New York corporation,

Defendants.

THE STATE OF NEVADA SENDS GREETINGS TO:;
Dennis Vaceo
Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP
665 Main Street, Suite 300
Buffalo, New York 14203
YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED that all and singular, business and excuscs set

aside, you (1) shall produce the documents requested below for inspection and copying' on

L Alternatively, the documents may be deliveted clectronically to ipilatowicz@ete lepal prior to October 15, 2015.
If documerits are provided electronically, no appearance to produce and permit inspection is necessary on October
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October 15, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. and (2) shall appear and attend to present testimony on the 20th
day of October, 2015 at 10:00 a.m.. The address where you are required to appear is Key Center,
50 Fountain Plaza, Suite 1400, Buffalo, New York 14202. Your attendance is required to give
testimony and/or produce and permit inspection and copying of designated books, documents or
tangible things in your possession, custody or control, orto permit inspeetion of premises. If you
fail to attend, you may be deemed guilty of contempt of Court and liable to pay zll losses and
damages caused by your failure to appear. Please see Exhibit “A” attached hereto for
information regarding the rights of the person subject to this Subpoena.

Dated this 24th day of September, 2015,
GakRMaN TURNER GORDON LLP

L8/ Teresa M. Pilatowicz
GERALD E. GORDON, ESQ.
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000

Attorneys for William A. Leonard

ITEMS TO BE PRODUCED

DEFINITIONS

1. “Action™ means the above-captioned case pending in the Second Judicial District Court,
Washoe County, Nevada, at Case No. A CV13-02663,

2. “Communication” mcans any contact, oral or written, formal or informal, at any time or
any place under any circumstance whatsoever whereby any information of any nature
was transmitted or transferred, including but not limited to personal conversation,
conferences, telephone conversations, memoranda, letters, correspondence, electronic
correspondence, texts, reports, and publications.

3. “Document” shall be deemed to mean any printed, typewritten, liandwritten, electronic,

{Continued)
15,2015.
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or otherwise recorded matter of whatever character, whether original, master or copy
(whether still active, archived or transparent) and any copies or reproductions that are not
identical to the original, that is or has been in the possessicn, control or custody of you,
your attomney and/or all other person acting in your behalf or of which any of the
aforementioned persons have knowledge, other person acting in your behalf or of which
any of the aforementioned persons have knowledge, including, but not limited to, letters,
e-mail (internal and external), communications, correspondence, memoranda,
confirmations, facsimile transmittal sheets, transmittal forms, telegrams, nolcs,
summaries, minutes, contracts, subcontracts, purchase orders, leases, amendments,
change orders, proposals, requests for proposal, bids, marketing documents, reports,
studies, drawings, charts, diagrams, sketches, estimates, specifications, addenda,
schedules, directives, records of telephonc conversations, staffing projections, records of
meetings and conferences, including lists of persons attending meetings or conferences,
sumunaries and records of personal conversations or interviews, cxhibits, transcripts,
books, manuals, publications, diaries, logs, daily reports, status reports, minutes of
meetings, records, journals, entries in journals, charts, financial records and/or summaries
of financial records, work papers, bills, ledgers, financial statements, audit reports,
financial data, status sheets, contract status reports, tax retumns, certificate of insurance,
agreements of surctyship and/or indemmification, insurance policies, calendars,
surnmaries of investigations and/or surveys, statistical compilations, audio or visual
recordings, photographs, cpm schedules, spreadsheets, computer or magnetic records,
computer memory {inclunding that of any “transparent” information, information deleted
from the personal computer or file but not from the system), hard drives, floppy discs,
optical discs, CD-ROM discs, Bemoulli discs and their equivalents, magnetic tape,
disaster recovery back-up, compact disks, computer generated reports or summaries,
drafts of original or preliminary notes on and marginal comments appearing on any
documents, other reports and records, any other paper or physical thing containing
writing, photographic, imaged, or electronically recorded data, every copy of such
writing or records where the original is not in the possession, custody or control of the
aforementioned persons, and every copy of every such writing or record where such copy
contains any commentary or notation whatsoever that does not appear on the original.

“Morabito” means Paul Morzahito.

“Plaintiff” or “Leonard” refets to Plaintiff William A. Leonard, Trustee.

“Relate” or “Relating to” or “Relative t0” means constituting, comprising, containing,
setting forth, showing, disclosing, describing, explaining, summarizing, conceming, or
referring to directly or indirectly.

“YOU” OR “YOUR” means Dennis Vacco and Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP
and their agents, employees, heirs, assignees or representatives.

INSTRUCTIONS

These requests shall be deemed continuing and as additional information concerning the
answers is secured, such additional information shall be supplied to Plaintiff.

You shall produce all Documents in the manner in which they are maintained in the usuai
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10.

course of business and/or shall organize and label Documents to cormrespond with the
categories of these requests. A request shall be deerned to include a request for any and
all file folders within which the document was contained, transmittal sheets, cover letters,
exhibits, enclosures, or attachments to the Document in addition to the Document itself

In producing Documents and other materials, You are requested to furnish all Documents
or things in Your possession, custody, or control, regardless of whether such Documents
or materials are possessed by You directly or Your directors, officers, agents, employees,
representatives, subsidiaries, managing agents, affiliates, investigators, or by Your
attorneys or their agents, employees, representatives, or investigators.

If any Document is held under claim of privilege, please identify the Document for which
there is a claim of privilege and a full description thereof, including without limitation:

The date it bears;
The name of each person who prepared it or who participated in any way
in its preparation;
The name of each person who signed it;
The name of each person to whom it, or a copy of it was addressed;
The name of each person who presently has custody of it or a copy of it;
The subject matter and its substance; and
What factual basis there is for the claim of privilege.

!\J»—-

S EVIP S

If any Document requested to be produced was but is no longer in Your possession or
control, or is no longer in existence, state whether it is (1) missing or lost, (2) destroyed,
(3) transferred voluntarily or involuntarily to others and if so to whom, or (4) otherwise
disposed of; and in each instance explain the circumstances surrounding an authorization
of such disposition thereof and state the approximate date thereof.

In the event that Documents called for by any particular request have been lost or
destroyed, please state: (i) the date on which the Document(s) were lost or destroyed; (ii)
the manner in which the Document(s} were lost or destroyed; (iii) the identity of the
Document(s); (iv) the information contained within such Document(s) and the nature of
the Document(s); and (v) and the identity of any person(s) who has knowledge of the
contents of the Document(s) or has received a copy of such Document(s).

Documents attached to each other should not be separated.

Documents not otherwise responsive to these requests shall be produced if such
Documenis mention, discuss, refer to, or explain the Documents that are called for in a
request.

The term “and™ as well as “or” shall be construed either disjunctively or conjunctively, as
necessary, to bring within the scope of these requests any information which might
otherwise be construed to be outside their scope.

Whenever appropriate, the singular form of a word shall be interpreted as plural and the
masculine gender shall be deemed to include feminine.
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1. The fact that a Document has been produced by You or any other defendant in any other
litigation docs not relieve You of Your obligation to produce your copy of the same
Document, even if the tfwo Documents are identical

DISCOVERY REQUESTS

1. Any and ali Documents constituting, relating to, or referring to your engagement
as counsel for Morabito between Jannary 1, 2007 and December 31, 2014.

2. Any and all statements from January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010
detailing the descriptions of and amount billed for services provided by you to Paul A. Morabito
or gny third party on his behalf.

3 Any and all documents sufficient to identify any and all payments made from
January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010 to you by Paul Morabito or a third party on his
behalf,

4, Any and all documents sufficient to identify any and all payments made by You
to any third party on Morabito’s behalf from January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010.

5 Any and all Documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services
performed by you with respect to the transfer of property located at 8355 Panorama Drive, Reno,
Nevada to the Arcadia Living Trust on or about October 1, 2010. This includes, but is not limited
to, opinion letters, written agrecments relating to the transfer, including drafts, and valuations of
the real and personal property located at 8355 Panorama Drive, Reno, Nevada whether ordered
by You, obtained by You, or otherwise in Your file.

6. Any and all Documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services
performed by you with respect to the transfer of property located at 371 El Camino Del Mar,
Laguna Beach, California to the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust (the “Bayuk Living Trust™)

on or about October 1, 2010. This includes, but is not limited to, opinion lefters, written
agreements relating to the transfer, inchuding drafts, and valuations of the real and personal
property lacated at 37t El Camino Del Mar, Laguna Beach, California whether ordered by You,
obtained by You, or otherwise in Your file.

7. Any and all Documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services
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performed by you with respect to the transfer of property located at 370 Los Olivos, Laguna
Beach, California to the Bayuk Living Trust on or about October 1, 2010. This includes, but is
not limited to, opinion letters, written agreements relating to the transfer, including drafls, and
valuations of the real and personal property located at 370 Los Olivos, Laguna Beach, Califormia
whether ordered by You, obtained by You, or otherwise in Your file.

8. Any and all Documents constituting, relatiﬁg to, or referring to services
performed by you with respect to the transfer of the Arcadia Living Trust’s ownership interest in
Baruk Properties, LLC on or about QOctober 1, 2010. This includes, but is not limited to, opinion
letters, written agreements relating to the transfer, including drafis, and valuations of the agsets
owned by Baruk Properties, LLC whether ordered by You, obtained by You, or otherwise in
Your file. Such assets include, but are not limited to, the real and personal property located at
1254 Mary Flemming Circle, Palm Springs, California; 1461 Glenneyre St., Laguna Beach,
California; 520 Glenneyre St,, Laguna Beach, California; and 49 Clayton Place, Sparks, Nevada.

S, Any and all Documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services
performed by you relating to the sale of Paul A. Morabito’s 80% interest in Superpumper, Inc. to
Snowshoe Petrolesm on or about September 30, 2010. This includes, but is not limited to,
opinion letters, written agreements relating to the transfer, including drafts, and valuations of
Morabito’s interest in Superpumper, Inc. whether ordered by You, obtained by You, or otherwise
in Yourfile,

10.  Any and all Docurnents constituting, relating to, or referring to Communications
between you and any employee of Matrix Capital Markets Group, Inc. regarding any valuations
requested by You of Superpumper, Inc.

11.  Any and all promissory notes drafted by You between January !, 2010 and
December 31, 2010 at the request of Morabito, or at the request of any third party on Morabito’s
behalf,

12, Any and all Documents related to or referring to promissory notes drafied by You
between January 1, 2010 and December 31, 2010 at the request of Morabito, or at the request of
any third party on Morabito’s behalf including, but not limited to, any ledgers regarding
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payments on such promissory notes.

13. Any and all Communications between You and any third party regarding
promissory notes drafted by You between January 1, 2010 and December 31, 2012 at the request
of Morabito, or at.the reguest of any third party on Morabito’s behalf,

14, Any and all Documents sufficient to identify any and all paymients Received in
any of Your accounts from Sefion Trustees on Morabito’s behalf between September 15, 2010

and the date of Your response to these requests.

7of 10
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AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE

STATE OF NEVADA )
COUNTY OF CLARK )
, being duly sworn says: That at all times

herein affiant was over 18 years of age, not a party to nor interested in the proceeding in which

this affidavit is made. That affiant received the Subpoena on the __ day of 2015,

and served the same on the day of , 2015 by delivering a copy to

the witness at:

MO0 w1 o B W N

I declare uader penalty of perjury nader the law of the State of Nevada that the foregoing

—
=]

is true and correct.

—_—
N =

EXECUTED this___ dayof . 2015,

—
b W

Signature of person making service
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e = A S 2 e = - T T = T
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EXHIBIT “A”
NEVADA RULES OF CIVIL, PROCEDURE

Rule 45:
(c) Protection of Persons Subject to Subpoenas.

(D A party or an attorney responsible for the issuance and service of a subpoena shall
take reasonable steps fo avoid itnposing undue burden or expense on a person subject to that
subpoena. The court on behalf of which the subpoena was issued shall enforce this duty and
impose upon the party or attorney in breach of this duty an appropriate sanction, which may
include, but is not limited to, lost earnings and a reasonable attomey's fee.

{(2)(A) A person commanded o produce and permit inspection and copying of designated
books, papers, documents or tangible things, or inspection of premises need not appear in person
at the place of production or inspection unless commanded to appear for deposition, hearing or
trial.

(B)  Subject to paragraph (d)}(2) of this rule, a person commanded to produce
and permit inspection and copying may, within 14 days after service of the subpoena or before
the time specified for compliance if such time is less than 14 days after service, serve upon the
party or attorney designated in the subpoena written objection to ingpection or copying of any or
all of the designated materials or of the premises. If objection is made, the party serving the
subpoena shall not be entitled to inspect and copy the materials or inspect fhe premises except
pursuant to an order of the court by which the subpoena was issued. If objection has been made,
the party serving the subpoena may, upon notice to the person commanded to produce, move at
any time for an order to compel the production. Such an order to compel production shall protect
any person who is not a party or an officer of a party from significant expense resulting from the
inspection and copying commanded.

(3)}A) On timely motion, the court by which a subpoena was issued shall quash or
modify the subpoena if it

) fails to allow reasonable time for compliance;

(ify  requires a person who is not a party or an officer of a party to
travel to a place more than 100 miles from the place where that
person resides, is employed or regulariy transacts business in
person, except that, subject to the provisions of clause (c)3)(B)ii1)
of this rule, such a person may in order to attend trial be
comimanded to travel from any such place within the state in which
the trial is held, or

(iii}  requires disclosure of privileged ar other protected material and no
exception or waiver applies, or

(iv)  subjects a person to undue burden.

{B) Ifasubpoena
(D requires disclosure of a trade secret or other confidential research,
development, or commercial information, or
(i)  requires disclosure of an unretained expert's opinion or information
not describing specific events or occurrences in dispute and
resulting from the expert's study made not gt the request of any
party,
the court may, to protect a person subject to or affected by the subpoena, quash or modify the
subpoena, or, if the party in whose behalf the subpoena is issued shows a substantial need for the
testimony or material that cannot be otherwise met without undue hardship and assures that the
person to whom the subpoena is addressed will be reasonably compensated, the court may order
appearance or production only upon specified conditions.
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(d)  Duties in Responding to Snbpoena.

(1) A person responding to a subpoena to produce documents shall produce them as
they are kept in the usual course of business or shall organize and label them to correspond with
the catepories in the demand,

2) When information subject to a subpoena is withheld on a claim that it is
privileged or subject to protection as trial preparation materials, the claim shall be made
expressly and shall be supported by a description of the nature of the documents,
communications, or things not produced that is sufficient to cnable the demanding party to
contest the claim,

100f 10
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linsert document code]

LIPPES MATHIAS WEXLER FRIEDMAN LLP
2 Stacey L. Moar, Esq.

E-mail: smoar@lippes.com

3 ]| 665 Main Street, Suite 300

Buffalo, New York 14203

4 || Telephone: 716-853-5100

5 1| Attorneys for Defendants

6
7
. IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
9 THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY QF WASHOE
WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the Case No. ev13-02663
10 || Bankruptey Estate of Paul Anthony Morabito,
DEPT. NO.: 1
1 Plaintiff,
12 Vs, RESPONSE TO SUBPOENA - CIVIL
13|} SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK individually
14 1| and as Trustee of the EDWARD WILLIAM
BAYUK LIVING TRUST: SALVATORE
15 MORABI'FQ, and individual; and
SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a New
16 |i York Corporation,
17 Defendants.
18 RESPONSE TO SUBPOENA
19 Dennis C. Vacco and Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP (collectively “I. MWEF?) by

20 | and through the undersigned counsel, provide the following responses and objections to the

21 Subpoena Duces Tecum to Dennis C. Vacco and Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP with

22 Document Demands (“Document Demands™) of Trustee William A. Leonard, made through his
23 I| counsel, Garman Turner Gordon LI.P.

24 LMWF reserves the right to amend or supplement these responses and objections as may
25 be appropriate, and any objection or failure (o object to any particular Document Demand, or any
26 || response that LMWF will produce documents, is not to be construed as an admission that such
27 documents are within LMWF's possession, custody or control or that such documents exist. A
28 || statement that LMWF will produce documents means that LMWF will conduct a reasonable
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search for and, if they exist, produce non-privileged responsive documents in his possession,

custady or control.
Any documents praduced by LMWF in response to the Document Demands are subject

to LMWI”s right to object to the admission in cvidence of any and all such documents on the

ground that they are imelevant to the issues in this action or otherwise inadmissible,

GENERAL OBJECTIONS

1. Each and every general objection is expressly incorporated by the specific

Responses labeled Response No. | through Response No. 14 below.

2. LMWT objects to each paragraph of the Document Demand to the extent that
paragraph seeks privileged information, proprietary information or other information that has been
gathered or prepared in the course of litigation or which is otherwise subject to the lawyer-client
privilege. the accountant-client privilege, the joint-defense privilege, the hushand-wife privilege,
the work product doctrine, or any other applicable privilege or immunity, inciuding trade secrets,
proprietary information, information that is confidential pursuant to a statute or court order,
confidential business inlormation, or other information subject to an expectation of privacy or

confidentiality. Information described by this paragraph is referred to herein as “privileged.”

3. LMWTF objects to cach paragraph of the Document Demand to the extent it requests
information subject to the attormey-client privilege and attorney work product doctrine. Such
privileged information includes but is not Himited to detailed descriptions of attorney work product

and attorney advice contained in invoices sent by LMWF,

4. LMWF further objects to each paragraph of the Document Demand to the extent it
requests imformation subject to attorney-client privilege held by corporate a client-entity of LMWF

that is not a party 1o these proceedings.

-2- 19139941
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5. LMWF objects to each paragraph of the Document Demand to the extent that

paragraph conilicts with, or seeks to impose any obligation beyond, the applicable rules and law.

6. LMWF objects to each paragraph ol the Document Demand to the extent that

paragraph is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.

7. LMWF objects to each paragraph of the Document Demand to the extent it requests
information that is not refevant to this proceeding. Such irrelevant information includes but is not
limited to detailed descriptions of attorney work product and attorney advice contained in invoices

sent by LMWF,

8. LMWT objects to each paragraph of the Document Demand to the extent that

paragraph secks documents that are not in LMWF's possession, custody or control.

9. LMWF objects to each paragraph of the Document Demand to the extent that

paragraph is unduly burdensome.

10.  LMWF specifically reserves the right to object, as appropriate. to the admission of

these documents or these written responses as evidence at trial or for any other purpose.

11. Anobjection does not mean that LMWF possesses documents or information

responsive to the objectionable paragraph.

RESPONSE TQO DOCUMENT DEMANDS

Reguest No. 1: Any and all documents constituting, relating to, or referring to your

engagement as counsel for Morabito between January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2014.

Response: LMWF objects to this Document Demand as unduly burdensome and turther
objects 1o the extent it calls for the production of documents subject to the attorney client

.3- 19139941
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privilege or attorney work product doctrine, or for the production of evidence not relevant to
these proceedings. LMWF reserves the right to supplement this response upon receipt of a

properly Iimited document demand.

Request No. 2: Any and all statements from January 1, 2010 through December 31_ 2010
detailing the descriptions of and amount billed for services provided by you to Paul A.

Morabito or any third party on his behalf,

Response: LMWF objects to this Document Demand as seeking documents already in the
custody and control of the Trustee. Notwithstanding this objection, LMWT refers to documents
it previously produced to the Trustee in the Paul A. Morabito Involuntary Bankruptcy, Case No.

BK-N-13-31237-GWZ.

Request No. 3: Any and all documents sufficient to identify any and all payments made tfrom
January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010 to you by Paul Morabito or a third party on his

hehalf.

Response: LMWF objects to this Document Demand as secking documents already in the
custody and control of the Trustee. Notwithstanding this objection, LMWF refers to documents
it previously produced to the Trustee in the Paul A. Morabito Involuntary Bankruptcy, Case No.

BK-N-13-51237-GWZ.

Request No. 4: Any and all documents sufficient 1o identify any and all payments made by

You to any third party on Morabito’s behal{ from January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010.

Response: LMWF objects to this Document Demand as seeking documents already in the

custody and control of the Trustee. Notwithstanding this objection, LMWF refers 10 documents

-4‘ [DIRUTAN ]
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it previously produced to the Trustee in the Paul A. Morabito Involuntary Bankruptey, Case No.

BK-N-13-51237-GWZ,

Request No. 5: Any and all documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services
performed by you with respect to the transfer of property located at 8355 Panorama Drive,
Reno. Nevada to the Arcadia Living Trust on or about October 1, 2010. This includes, but is not
limited to, opinion letters, written agreements relating to the transfer, including drafis, and
valuations of the real and personal property located at 8353 Panorama Drive, Reno, Nevada

whether ordered by You, obtained by You, or otherwise in Your file.

Respanse: LMWT objects to this Document Demand as seeking documents subject to the
atiorney-client privilege and documents already in the custody and control of the Trustee.
Notwithstanding this objection, LMWF refers to documents it previously produced 1o the

Trustee in the Paul A. Morabito Involuntary Bankruptey, Case No, BK-N-13-51237-GWZ.

Request No. 6: Any and all documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services
performed by you with respect ta the transfer of property located at 371 El Camino Del Mar,
Laguna Beach, California to the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust (the “Bayuk Living
Trust™) on or about October 1, 2010. This includes drafts, and valuations of real and personal
property located at 371 El Camino Del Mar, Laguna Beach. California whether ordered by You,

obtained by You, or otherwise in Your file.

Response: LMWF objects to this Document Demand as seeking documents subject to the
attorney-client privilege and documents already in the custody and control of the Trustee.
Notwithstanding this objection, LMWF refers to documents it previously produced to the

Trustee in the Paul A. Morabito Invoiuntary Bankrupicy, Case No, BK-N-13-51237-GWZ.

-5- 1913994 ¢
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Request No. 7: Any and all documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services
performed by vou with tespect to the transfer of properiy located at 370 Los Olivos, Laguna
Beach, California to the Bayuk Living Trust on or about October 1, 2010. This includes, but is
not limited to, opinion letters, written agreements relating to the transfer, including drafts, and
valuations of the real and personal property located at 370 Los Olivos, Laguna Beach,

California whether ordered by You, obtained by You, or otherwise in Your file.

Response: LMWF objects to this Document Demand as seeking documents subject to the
attomey-client privilege and documents already in the custody and contirol of the Trustee,
Notwithstanding this objection, LMWF refers to documents it previously produced to the

Trustee in the Paul A. Morabito [nvoluntary Bankruptcy, Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ.

Request No. 8: Any and all documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services
performed by you with respect to the transfer of the Arcadia Living Trust’s ownership interest
in Baruk Properties, LLC on or about October 1, 2010. This includes, but is not limited to,
opinion letters, written agreements relating to the transfer, including drafts. and valuations of
the assets owned by Baruk Properties, [.1.C whether ordered by You, obtained by You, or
otherwisc in Your file. Such assets include, but are not limited to, the real and personal property
located at 1254 Mary Flemming Circle, Palm Springs, California; 1461 Glenneyre St., Laguna
Beach, California; 520 Glenneyre St., Laguna Beach, California; and 49 Clayton Place. Sparks,

Nevada.

Response; LMWF objects to this Document Demand as seeking documents subject to the
attomey-client privilege and documents already in the custody and control of the Trustee.
Notwithstanding this objection, LMWTI refers to documents it previously produced to the

Trustee in the Paul A. Merabito Involuntary Bankruptey, Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ,

.6- 19139941
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Request No, 9: Any and all documents constituting, relating to, or referring to services

performed by you relating 1o the sale of Paul A. Morabito’s 80% interest in Superpumper, Inc.

10 Snowshoe Pciroleum on or about September 30, 2010. This includes, but 15 not limited to,
opinien letters, written agreements relating to the transter, including drafts, and valuations of
Morabito’s interest in Superpumper, inc. whether ordered by You, obtained by You. or

otherwise in Your file,

Response: LMWF objects to this Document Demand as seeking documents subject to the
attorney-chient privilege and documents already in the custody and control of the Trustee.
Notwithstanding this objection, LMWTF refers to documents it previously produced to the

Trustee in the Paul A. Morabite Involuntary Bankruptey, Case No. BK-N-13-31237-GWZ.

Request No. 10: Any and all documents constituting, relating to, or referring to
Communications between you and any employee of Matrix Capital Markets Group. Inc.

regarding any valuations requested by You of Superpumper, Inc.

Response:  Notwithstanding this objection, LMWT refers to documents bates labeled

LMWF00000t —~ LMWFO0030180 for its response.

Request No. 11: Any and all promissory notes drafied by You between January 1, 2010 and
December 31, 2010 at the request of Morabito, or at the request of any third party on

Morabito’s behalf.

Response: LMWF objects to this Document demand as seeking documents subject to the
attorney client privilege and documents already in the custody and control of the Trusiee.
Notwithstanding this objection, LMWF refers to documents it previously produced to the

Trustee in the Paul A, Morabito Involuntary Bankruptcy, Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ.

19139930
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Request No. 12: Any and ail documents related lo or referring to promissory notes drafted by
You between January 1, 2010 and December 31, 2010 at the request of Morabito, or at the
request of any third party on Morabito®s behalf including, but not limited to, any ledgers

regarding payments on such promissory notes.

Responge: LMWT objects to this Document Demand as seeking documents subject to the
attorney-client privilege and documents alrcady in the custody and control of the Trustee.
Notwithstanding this objection, LMWF refers to documents it previously produced 1o the

Trustee in the Paul A. Morabito Involuntary Bankruptey, Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ.

Request No. 13: Any and all Communications between You and any third party regarding
promissory notes drafted by You between January 1, 2010 and December 31, 2012 at the

request of Morabito, or at the request of any third party on Morabito’s behalf,

Response: 1.MWF slates that no responsive documents exist and reserves the right to

supplement should it become aware of any responstve documents.

Request No. §4: Any and all documents sufficient to identify any and all payments Received
in any of Your accounts from Scfion Trustees on Morabito's behal{ between September 15,

2010 and the date of Your responsc to these requests.

Response: LMWF obiects to this Document Demand as seeking documents subject to the
attormey-client privilege and documents already in the custody and control of the Trustee.
Notwithstanding this objection, LMWEF refers to documents it previously produced to the

Trustee in the Paul A. Morabito Involuntary Bankruptcy, Case No. BK-N-13-31237-GWZ,

_8- 19139931
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1 Dated: October 15,2015
Buffalo, New York

3 Respectfully submitted.
4 LIPPES MATHIAS WEXLER FRIEDMAN LLP

7 ,' A1
By: _,.9.‘/,;;,'?’?{.[5’1-/} .’ﬂ TN
6 “Stacey [.. Modr, Esq.
665 Main Street, Suite 300
7 Buffalo, New York 14203-1425
(716) 853-5100

smoaridlippes.com

TO:  Garman Turer Gordon LLP
13 Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq.
Gerlad E. Gordon, Esq,

14 650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
15 Telephone 725-777-3000
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT CQURT OF
THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the
Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony Morabito,

Plaintiff,
- Vs Case No. CV13-02663
SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona corporation:
EDWARD BAYUK, individually and as Trustee of the
EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MCRABITO, and indiwvidual; and
SNOW3IHCE PETROLEUM, INC.,

a New York corporation,

Defendants.

Examination before trial of DENNIS C,
VACCO, taken pursuant to Subpoena, al
Regus Business Center, 50 Fountain Plaza,
Suite 1400, Buffalo, New York, on October 20, 2015,

.r before MARY SCHULZE, RPR,
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DEMNIS C. VACCO - 10/20/2015
Fage 2 Page 3
Atk CTEE S R il ) 1 TEZ RZPGRTER: Are thers any stipulations?
) Fl- 2 ME. GILMGRF: Ne.
- 3 DENNIS C. VYACCO, 665 Nain Strees,
i l 4 Suite 300, Bulfalo, New York 14203, afrer being
trilatovicet 53 duly called and sworn, testificd zs follows:
: fit"ﬁm_:_mmw_r ¥ N EXAMINATION BY MS. ®TLATOWICZ:
By |RANK ©. GIIMORE, ‘ 7 Q. Good afternconr, or morning.
6 71 Waskur i L. Goad morning.
kena, Has ] Q. Good morning, Mr. Vacco. My name is
! aBigk "“:'3:“12 o .10 Tarasa Pilatowicz, T represent William Lecnard in
i it ?'::; I—:o I;Jel;Tendan:e. 11 the case that you're being deposed in today.
5 PHESERT: Bar B MORARITC 12 Can you please state and gpell your name for
10 112 the record?
1 4 A.  Dennis . Vacce, T-E-N-%-1-3, middle
i; 15 frivial €, Jast neme ¥V as in victory A=C=C=0.
1t 16 ¥&, PILATCGHICZ: And 1'll aliow everyone
5 ¢ 27 oelse in the room Lo make Thelr zppearances.
B i 18 MR, GIZMOEE: My name 1s Frank Gilmore. ['m
'P 18 an attorney with the Zirm of Robison, Belaustegul,
T 20 Snarp & Low of Reng, Nevada. T veoressal all the
G 21 defondants in chis case,
al 22 I understanc that M. Vazcco will be -- well
%f fo3 be aeposed today under two different formalizics.
i__‘_ 24 Cne ig as his -- in his individual capanity, having
i 25 been subpoensed directly by the plaintiff, and,
- Page 4| '_- Fuge &
1 secencarily, as & 3Cib) (&) porson most £ A, I7 is not. Oxay. 8o tnis is a
Z  knowledgeshle witness for Supercurper, Inc., whizh 2 depcsition in the ——
3 is z deferdant in this case. "3 Q. State court matter.
4 I wiil he -- I'm not representing Mr. Vacco, 4 A. == Lhe state court case, Ckay.
£ put I ar reprasenting the defondants, and 50 T will 8 Q. 2nd to follew up with what Mr. Gilmore
€ assert varicas cpjections on behalf of the 6 was saying, you -- you are appearing today in two
Y aefendants, corsidering That Mr. Vacco i3 bheing 7 different capacities: In your individual capacity
B oroduced by my client Lo lesbily tgday in the B and also as the perscnal -- person most
% seccrd of those cases. 9 knowledgeable, or tha 30(b) {§) representative of
12 So just wanied to mace that clcar, 10 EBnowshee Petroleum., We're going to handle those
11 BY MS. PTTATCWTCE: 111l two depositions separately. There'll likely he
12 Q. All right., &nd let me -- let me make 12 some owverlap, but we're going to take you as an
13 one clarification., We're going to proceed with 13 individual first, and then later, we'll do the
14 your deposition in your capacity as the attorney -- 14 Snowshoe Petroleun depositicn.
15 and can you -- can you state your -- your firm name |15 Do you understand that?
16 for me? 1€ &, Ckay. Sure.
17 B. EBefore L -- yez. It's Lippes, 1 MR. GITMORE: Ckay.
18 -I-P-P-E-S, M:zthizs, M-A-T-H-I-A-S, Wexler & 18 ME. BCREELTD: I'm Salvateore Merabizo,
1% ZFriecman, F-E-I-E-D-M-2-N. 13 Faoenix, Arizara. I'm a defendant in the case.
2d So just -- “usT a point of clarification fer 20 M8, PILRTOW-CZ: Mari this ag bxkibot 1.
21 me, this iz net the 200£ exam in —he bankruptoy 21 The tellowing was marked fcr Identilication:
22 case, cr is it? 2 EXRIZIT Suhpcena
23 MR GILMORE: Tt is not. k) 3y M3, PILATCWICK:
JxA BY t&. 2TIATCWICZ: |24 Q. Mr. Vacco, you'wve been handed what's
25 Q. Is it not. This ig -- 25 been marked as Exhibit 1. Do you ses recognize
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DENNIS C. VACCO - 10/20/2015
Page &, Page 7

1 Exhibit 17 1 in a deposition?

Z A, TYes. Z A, Rarlier this yeax.

3 0. 2and can you tell me what Exhibit 1 is? 3 Q. When was that?

4 A. It's z =subpoena in this matter, [A A, T —= T just dea't recal.. Sorctime,

s Q. Have you seen this document before? 3 you 4rew, when ne westher was —- after the sngw,

8 . Yes. Scveral times. & but nefore the fall.

7 Q. Is it pursuant to this document that 7 Q. Fair enough.

8 vyou're gppearing today® g L. So sametime withir the las. six nonths.

El E. Well, L —— I'm == 1'm 7ot sure abous - 9. What case was that?
¢ that beczuse I thought that this was a siubpeena for G A,  Ir's 2 federal ccurt matter pending ia
11 docuwnents, but 1w here, in any event, 11 the Zouthern Discrict of New York.

12 Q. Ckay. And so we're on the same page 12 Q. What is your involvement in it?

13 for the depogitien, I'm going to go over scme 13 A, I am a defendanc.

14 ground rulss. | Q. TWho are the parties to that matter?

15 Rave you ever testified prewvieusly in a 15 B deffrey Carn is the plair-iff, and

16 depesitien? 16 ZRcbert 2erman, Robert Werg, ¥-0-X¥-3, and one other

ol A, Ves. "17 are tke deferndants. Probebly some corporate

1B Q. How many times? 18 defendants tco,

14 &,  Several. 19 Q. What's the nature of that case?

20 Q. Mare than ten? Lass than ten? 20 A, I:i's a dispute between shareho.ders ol

21 A, Prokably -- where 1've actuslly 21 a compary.

22 tesiilied? 22 Q. And why are you named as a defendant?

23 Q. Where you've actually testified, yes. 232 Ao That's & good quesilon. I ropresented

24 A.  FProbably -- prodazly “en. 24 the zorpany for a —- a brief period of <lime,

25 Q. When was the last time you've testified |25 Q. Ckay. Pricr to that deposition, when
o Page B i Fage ¢

1 was the last time you were deposad? 1 you understand that?

2z A, T can't recall. 2 A, Ves.

3 Q. Have you taken depositions before? 3 Q. If you don't understand a questicn,

4 A, Sewveral. Mamy. 4 feel free to ask me to rephrase. If you answer the

5 0.  Approximately how many? 5 question, I'm going to undar -- I'l) assume that

£ A I den't know. loo namerous Lo count. 6 ycu understood it. Is that -- do you understand

7 Q. Now, you've been given an cath by the T that?

8 court reporter todsy. Do you understand that that g Ao Yep. Yes.

9 cath that you gave today is subject to the same 9 Q. Now, I don't want you to guess today,
10 penalty of perjury as if we were sitting in a court |10 but I am entitled to your best estimate. Do you
11 of law? 11 understand that?

2 A, Bure. 12 A, Yo the best of my ability, I'1l gqive 1t
13 Q. And so we're getting 2 clear record of 13 tec you.

14 ewverything that's being said today, I'll ask you to '14 Q. Now, at the end of this depeaitiom, the
15 wait for me to finish my cuestions before you 15 court reporter will finalize the transcript of

16 answer, and I will do my best to wait for you to 16 everything that was said today. You'll hava an

17 answer to ask my next question., Do you understand |17 opportunity to review that transcript and make

18 that? 18 corrections, If you do make corrections, then any
13 Lo Yes. 19 party can coment on those at the time of any

20 Q. Algo, aince the court reportsr is 20 hearing or any trial in the matter. Do you

21 taking down everything that we say, it will be best |21 wunderstand that?

22 to use audible answers. A head -- head nods, head |22 A. Yes.

23 shakes don't translata on the record. Uh-huhs, 23 Q. I'm going to try to get through today
24 yh-uhs don't as well. So do your bast, too, to 24 as quickly as possible, but should you need a

25 answer with verbal responses that are clear. Do 25 break, feel free to go ahead and ask me for ona.
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DENNIS C. VACCO - 10/20/2015
Zage 10| Fage 11
1 The only thing that I'll ask is that you 1 EXHIBIT 2 Responge te sabpoena
2 don't ask for a break while a question is pending. 2 M5, PIVATOWICZ: Wheops., 1 may have to --
3 Do you understand that? 3 thal might have been my copy. Just one second. My
q A. Yes. ¢ apologies. Yes. Can you ¢hange This to aumber 27
5 Q. Are you under the influence of any 5 t0iscussicn off the resord.)
6 drugs, aleohol, or madicaticn that would impair -- o 3Y M3, PTILATCHTOE;
7 impair your zbility to be truthful today® 7 Q. Mr. Vacco, you'va been handsd what's
8 A, Mol 8 been marked as Exhibit 2. Do you recognize
9 Q. Are you under the influence of any & Exhibit 27
10 drugs, alcchol, or medication that would impair i A, ics.
11 your -- impair your ability to accurately remember 11 Q. Did you prepare Exhibit 27
12 events today? 12 &, I collaboratec in its preparztion.
13 I No. S13 Q. Who else worked on -- well, let ma ask
14 ¢. Do you know of any reascn why we cannot |14 you, what is -- what is Exhibit 2? Can you
15 go forward today with your best testimony? 15 identify it, please?
16 A, No. 16 A, It's the response to the subpoera
17 By the way, sc T've locked st the suopcena, 17 requesting dacumanls.
18 and | do see row that it wss —- it's both a -- 18 Q. Who worked with yeu on completing
1% request for deaments and my sppearance here. 19 Exhibit number 27
20 Q. Ckay., Thank you for that 129 &, My lizigation team:; Stacey Mear, whc
21 clarification. 21 signed the document, whe's an zssociate in my
22 E. Referring to Exhibi: 1. 22 practice group; Boh WisnZewsk:, who's another
23 M5, PILATOWTCZ: I you cocld mark zhat as 23 associate in my practice group. I'm no: geing te
24 ©xhibit 2, please, 24 rtry te spell chat for you. T zthink it's
2t Taz followirg was marked for ldentification: |26 W-Z-T-S-N-E-W-5-E-T.
T Fage 12 '_ Fage _3
z My Tegal assistant, Stephanie Canastraro, 1 specific client that you're referring to there?
2 and a partrer in the —— In cur firm's corpozate 2 L. Cartainly, it's in refcreacze to
2 group, Christian Lovelace, to the best of my 3 Snowshoe Petrcieum, Inc., and Superpumper, Inc.,
4 krowlcdee, £ but there migat be others that don't immediztely
5 Q. Did you review Exhibit 2 when it was 5 ceme Lo my attention, just reading that -- that
6§ coaopleted? 6 paragrapn 4.
i A.  Yes. 1 -- yes. I worked extensively 7 @,  Okay. Can you turn to page 5 of
& cn responding, s¢ the subpoena, Fxhibiy number 1, 8 Exhibit 27 2And under —- well, lst me ask you to
& which led to Exnibit rurber 2, T werked extensively 9 read -- to yourself is fine -- request number 5 and
it on this, yos. 10 the response to request number 5. 2nd lat me know
11 Q. And is Exhibit 2 a complete response to 11 when you've read it.
12 the request for productions in the subpoena? 12 &, TI've read both the regquest zand the
13 B, well, other than 23 it -- you know, as 13 r»esponss,
14 it's gualified. I'l1l let tne document spezk for 14 0.  Okay. The response indicates that IMWF
15 izgelf. 15 <bjects to this document demand as seeking
i Q.  Ckay. If yau could turn to paga 2 of 16 documents subject to the attornmey-client privilege
17 Exhibit 2 and look down at number 4 of the general 17 and documents already in the custody and control of
1B cbjections. Tt says, IMWF further cbjects to each (18 the trustee.
19 paragraph of the document demand to the extent it 19 Were there any documents that have bsen
20 requests infarmaticn subject to attorney-client 20 withheld because of the attorney-client privilege?
21 privilege haeld by —- I believe there's a typo -- a |20 A, You'd have to zsk Mr. Gilrore rhat.
22 corperate client entity of IMWF that is not a party |22 Q. Did you produce documents to
23 to these proceedings. 123 Mr. Gilmoras in response to the subpoena?
24 A, Correct. 24 &.  well, as tho response indicates,
25 Q. Is there somebedy -- is there a 25 notwithstaneing —- guoTing, aotwithstznding this
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DENNIZ C. VACCO - 10/20/2015

Fage 1é Page 5

i objection, LMWE refers to documerts it previou:;ly 1 1 documents that have been produced to the trustege in
2 produced to the trusltes in the Paul & Morakbizo 2 the bankruptcy case, have they been produced
3 invelocnlary bankruptcy case, and then it lists the 3 directly by you?
& case nurber. 4 . Todon'y recsll.
5 Q. Okay. S0 any document that you've had 5 Q. A&nd as to your request number 6, hawve
& that wotld be raspénsive to request nunber G, & any documents been withheld based on the
7 you've given to Mr. Gilmore? 7 attorney-client privilage?
g R. Well, I don't rocall whether they were 3 A. My arswer that I gave you previcusly
9 given o Mr. Gilmere and Lher he disclosed them to 9 would apply to all of these.
20 you or vour firm, or whether we gave ther directly i10 2. Okay. If you could lock at page
11 to your Lirm. 11 number 7 of Exhibit 2.
12 But tre -- the documents thac are requested 12 A, Ckay.
13 Irn -- you can see in meny of the respconses, we -- i3 2.  Request number 10.
14 we Indicate thal the docaments had been previously |14 &, Correcs.
15 provided te your firm or pehelf of the Trustec, whe |15 ¢. The response indicates, notwithstanding
15 1is the plaint {l In this case, 16 this cbjection, IMAF refers to documants Bates
Ut So ail of these documenis in these —- so it |17 labaled IMWF's 1 through 180 for its response,
18 locds iike requests numper 2, 3, 04, 5, &, 07, B, 9 Bt Do yon know what cbjection is being referred
1% have Leen previously produced. 15 &0 in that response?
20 Q. Okay. And my —- my questicn is, just . 72) A, The cua_ificatiorn is in regard to, Lo
21 to clarify, that yow are not withholding any 21 the extert -hat the derand s seekirg documents
22 documents based on the attorney-client privilege. 22 sibject to the atrorney-clier: privilege and
23 Is that corract? 123 decunents a.ready in ke conirel and custody of the
24 A, My fiom is not. 24 trustee.
25 Q. Okay. So to further clarify, the 25 Q. Did you communicate with anyone about

i - fage 16 ST “Fage 17|
1 Deing deposed here today? 1ooonctaging Lhe pulling fogezher of these docurents.
Z A, The individioals at Tippes Maihlas 2 And, oace again, so Ib wazsn't jusl pulling togecthor
3 Wexler Friedmsn tnal 1 previously menticred, with 3 the deocuments; Lo was reviewing zll the docaments,
4 the exclusicn cf my legal assistant, but the 4 again, o mako sure that Frank, Mr. Gilmere, had
5 ‘awyers, yes. Them. Mr. Gilmore, and brictly ¥r. , 3 the documenls that werc requested and that tiey had
¢ lalvatore Morzhite. 8 been previecsly produced.
7 Q. Do you currently represent Mr, 7 Q. When did you speak with Mr. Salvatore
8 Salvatore Morabito? B Morabito about your depositicn?
4 A, Individua” 1y? 9 A, I don't know., A colplc weeks ago.
10 0. Correct. 10 Q. Was it by phone call?
11 A. Mo, 21 A, I think it was.
12 Q. what did you discuss with Mr. Gilmore 12 Q. What did you discuss with Mr. Morabito
13 about your depositicn today? 13 about your daposition?
14 A.  Mostiy arcund the precuction of 14 A, Wnether | would be the person most
13 documerts that were requasted in The subpoena. 15 knowledgeable Icr Snowshoo Petrolen or aol.
16 Q. When did — 16 Q. Were there any other discussicons?
i7 A.  Almest cxclusively, | mean except for 17 A,  Hope.
18 the loclstics of —— of this and, you now, just 18 Q. Did you review any decuments in
-% irving o separate the barkruptcy preceed_rg {rem 19 preparation for your deposition?
20 this procesding. 20 A, Other than, you krow, the exercisc that
21 Eut mest of our dialegue was regerding Lhe 21 we went through last week, wkicn wis more designed
22 docurents that we had previcisly prodazed. 22 Lo idert iy what's already beon prediced, no.
23 Q. When was the last time you spoke with 23 Q. Okay. Other than the conversations
24 Mr. Gilmore abouf your deposition? 24 with Mr. Gilmore, with your litigation team, and
23 B Frobably last week, as we were 25 with Mr. Morabito, Salvatore Morabito, have you
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DENNIS C. VACCO 10/20/2015
Fage L8 Page 18
1 dome anything today —- anything else to prepare for | A, I'wve always been registered with Lhe
2 your deposition today? ¢ bar of the State of Hew York, Lut there was a brief
i A, No. 2 hiatus when 1 dida't formally practice law.
4 Q. Lat's talk a little bit about your [} Q. When was that?
5 background. Where did you attend college? 5 A, '35 through 2033.
¢ I.. Colgate Uniwversity, RA economics, 1674, 6 Q. What were you doing during that time?
7 Q. And after you graduzted, what did yom i A. T was the regional vice prosident of
g do next? & Llhe MNew York suosidiary of Waste Manzgemenl, Inc.,
9 N Universinty of Bulffaic Law Schocl, ID, 9 & publicly traded ccmpany, bases in Houston, Texas.
¢ 1576, 10 Q. Why did you start doing that in 19997
11 Q. Did you take time off between college 21 A. T wanted a break from the law, and 7t
12 and law schocol? 12 was g grea: cprortunity to run a company.
13 k. MNe. 13 Q. Was there any particular reason you
14 Q. When were you licensed to practice law? ! 14 wanted a break from ths law?
1a . february 2000 — February 1579, 15 AT had just losl aa election to the
16 Q. Where do you currently hold licemses to . 16 Zuture governor of the State of Hew York and
17 practice law? 17 decided thet 7 was going te take a break from
B 4. Szate of Hew York, if public service and practicing taw.
19 0. Is that it? 19 Q. Okay. What made you go back teo law in
20 A, Correctl. 20 20037
21 Q. Have you ever hald a license in any 2 . Bagzuse that's -~ thal's my tzzining
22 other state? 22 and berkground.
23 Ao Moo ‘23 Q. Is there a reason you left the position
24 Q. Between 1979 and today, have you always 24 with the Waste Management cpen, or the Waste
25 been a practicing attorney? : 25 Management subsidiary?
B Zage 20 ] ' o Page 21
1 B, Because 1 Lock 2 positicn with a law 1 formed &n LLC known as Crane & Vaczo.,  And that
2 firm and & consulting firm in Albany, Mew York, ¢ survived frem 2314 to reughly 230E.
3 ©. Is that your current firm? 3 Q. 2And at that time were you practicing
1 &, HNo. 4 law, or were you consulting, or were you -- or
5 Q. What firm was that? 5 Dboth?
[ . The carsulting firm was Crane & 2owers, £ B 3nth.
T oard it was afZillated with the law firm of Crans, 7 Q. When did you leave Crane & Vacco?
2 Greenc, Parente & Cherubin, g &.  HMarch 3isk ol — 32 1 -- 1 —eminated
9 Q. 2nd there was a law firm at the same 2 my affilistlon with the zensuliing “irm Crare &
10 time that you went and worked for? I0 Vazco. By that time it was Crane, Vacco & Sanders,
11 &.  Powers @ Crang was the corsulting “irm. 11 otherwise known as CVS. Sc I terwinated ay
2 Crane -- Crane, Greene, Parente & Cherupin was the (12 aftiliation with that LIC and dissolved it in Marerh
13 law firm. 3 0f 2008, and thet's the same time that I ended my
14 Q.  Ckay. 14 affiliation with the law firm.
HE 4. I was aftiliated with beth. 15 Q. Okay. What was the reason for ending
18 Q. Did you voluntarily leave the Waste 16 those affiliations?
17 Management positica? 17 A, I -- 1T was offered a job to serve as
18 A My contracl ran out. "18 ir-nouse counssl to a New York demiciled insurance
19 Q.  And how long did you work for the firm 19 corpany.
20 that —- the consulting firm and the law firm that 20 Q. what's the name of that company?
21 you went to after leaving Waste Management? 21 A.  Upper Hucsen —— Upper Hudson Waticnal
22 A.  Well, Crane & Zowers imploded seforc 22 Insurance Coopany.,
73 too long after I arrivec there, for reasons beyond 23 Q.  Wars you the general counsel there?
29 @y cerlrol. 24 A, I was the counsel.
23 Mnd the result of thal implosion was we 25 Q. So did they have a legal depaztment, or
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Dage 27
they just had you?

A, Just me.

Q. How long did you work for Upper Hudson
Insuratce?

L, Well, tharks to the econcmic implosion

0 2358, the cempany mothbelled fts surplus in <he
fall of 2208, su I wert from being a W-2 enployes
zometime o Gokcbey, Yovember of 2098, to being an
cutaide coungel, Ard thet roie lasted for a couple
YCAIS.

. So 2008 till approximately --

A, Tha fal! of 2008,

Q. To 20117 PBefore or after 2011?

L. Aeil, it gets & lititle complicated,
because then 1 joined this law fimm, and a Lot of
Lhat work came irfo this aw Iirm.

Q. Ckay. That's a fair distinction. And
"this law firm,” are you talking about your current -
law firm?

A, Lippes Mathias wexler Frledman,

Q. Hhy did you join your current law firm?

L., Bezzuze T was tired of -- of praclicing
law from my -- my heme cifice. Albany was 1o
longer relevant to me and my practice, and Lkis was
1 grear opportanily to grow oy oractice srd the

Fage 24
Do you know Paul Morabito?

I de.

When did you first meet Mr. Morabito?
Hem.  PhysZeslly reet him, I don't
reca’l vrecisely, but T weuld say that

representation of him ¢r some of his entitics began
in arounc ahout Augusi or Septenber 2307, 1 did i
rou irmedZately meet him in person.

Q. Okay. How -~ how did you £irst becoms
acquainted with Mr, Morabito?

A, During =he Reagan administration, I was
the Unived States Atterney for the Western DJistrict
cf ¥ew Yorx.

My Lhen

ol o i S ]

collezgue from San francisce ecalled
me ¢ne day and asked me Lf I was inlerested in
representing a friend of his, who had -- waz —
whose conpanies were the suoject of a complaint in
federal district court here in the Westerr
District.

Q. Who was that colleague in
San Francisco?

2. Jae Russeniel_o,  Frackly, 1 thirk that
Joe at. that time was == 30 {his would have been the
sccond of the -- the tws Bush terms. 1 believe
that Joe was actually back in tac U.3. Attorney's

20

22
23
24

| 25

WDTE el O LD Lo M),
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[
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PEGEe 23
flrm.
0. So at that time did you move from
Albany to Buffala?
A, T never physically moved ouf of Western
Few Yorx.
@, Ckay. Do you have any areas of

concentration in your law practioe?

A, I'ma litigstor., e -- we oo a lot of
work -- we nave a goverrmant investigations
practice grody thal I head vp., 3o while wo try to
zvold representing white collar defendants, | kave
the anility te pick ard choose, bas, mostly, we
represent entitics that arze corparate eatities that
are the subiecl ol some type of governmental
investigation or regnlatery compliance effor:.

Q. Do you have any special certificaticns?

A, Xo. Besides my séamé?

Q. Any -- any sort of special state
designation or licenss --

B b

Q. -- other than a law degree?

L. I don't -- ¢ther thar a law degrec? Sc

outside oI the practice of law?
0. Correct.
A, o,

Pzge 25
seat. §c¢ ho had heen a Reagan svoolntee, _efz, and
then came bacy later z3 a Bush azpoirtes.

So Joa was the .3, Attornay wher he called
me and zsked me if I wss interssted in represenling
Mcrakito's compenies.

Q. Okay. And at that time you were
working from your home office?

E. 8o that at that time I wes still
affiliated with “he Albany law flrm of Cranc, so
nu =~ and oy that tire it probabiv wasa't Crane,
Greene, Parente & Cherubin; iv was orobabiy, at
that noint in time, Crame Parente. Bul T was still
affiliates with the Albany law fixm,

Q. And who ware -- or what were Paul's
companies that you were asked Lo represent at that
time?

L. Uk, war. So there was & -- Tibarom
sticks cot in my mind, T-T-B-A-R-0-¥, and maybe
other Tibarom effilizves. I just don't recall
preciscay.

Q. Ckay. What was the nature of that
litigation?
R, It was a ccnplaint in federal disirico

court brought by a company -- T want Lo sav a
coopany oll of Boston, Massachusetts, that was
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1 suing cver a sale of property. 1 in other matters?

2 0. Do you recall what the dispute was A A&. ¥ell, your -- your gualificazicn “while
3 about the sale of property? 3 ihat litigaticn was opeading” is oresty brosd. So I
4 A,  We -- thz Merabizc entities was 4 would heve to say the answer to thal -- Decause it
5 impleaded into iDe case by the vrimary defendant. 5 was pending for a leng time, for many werths, if

& Sc this compeny sued. And I forgol the name of the ' 6 not longer, so the answer to tnat is yes.

7 ceompany or the Irndividuals who were the primary i Q. Okay. What other ocmpanies of

8 defendarts, ard then they imgpleacded in Morabito's 8 Mr. Morabito's have you represented?

& companies over the value of the -- the property. g A. It would be difficulz —o enurerate

10 Q. Okay. And did you represent . 13 them, I'11 try mw besT but --

11 Mr. Morabitc and his companies in that litigation? 11 MR, GILMORE: Serry. Can I get some

12 i, I don't remomber $f Mr. Morabito 12 clarification on the question? Kr. Morabifo's

23 himsell individuaily was a defsndant, bat the 13 commanies, are you talking aboit ones in which he
14 companics -- to the extent that companies that he 4 had corplete or partial awasrship or control, o2 he
1% centrolled ware defendasnts, ves, I represented 1h was the contacl liaison, or &ll of the anove?

L6 Them. And if he was individually, T represerted 16 Y ME, PILATCWICEZ:

17 him as well. 17 ¢. Let's start with cnes that he had any
18 Q. Okay. How was that litigatiem 18 type of ownership in that you're aware of.

18 ultimately resolved? 19 A, Agair, that's goirg Lo be difficult tor
20 A, Tt was dismissed against the Morabito 20 me Lo give you a corplete and comprehensive 1l1st

21 entities. 21 wizkeur semetiing more o refresh ny recollection,
22 Q Do you recall when that was? 2z But zlong the way to the Tibarem —- Tibarom
23 L. 1 don't. C 23 entities, or sowe iteratict of Tibarom, because
24 Q Did you represent Mr. Morabito or any 24 there were -- you know, There were sevaral
25 of his companies while that litigation was pending |25 Tikarom -- Tikarem entities, many cf which were not

o Page 28 _ “"Page 29|

1 inwolwved in this Western Distric: of Hew York 1 acticn, dismissed by the trial court judge :r

2 litigaticn. 2 round 1, awerded complaint, dismissed in round 2,

3 kEventuzlly, while this case was pending, 3 arng then affirmed by the circuil cours.

4 tThe -- Zhe case in Mevada That Is Lhe -- the rco: 4 Q. SBo other than the litigaticn in the

% czase of these vroceedings, eventually, I 5 eclectic litigation, the litigation with the

€ represented hinm In that case, or represented the 6 Tibarom entities that was pending in the federal

7 company and his irterest Ir that case. T district court of Western District of New York? Is
2 L Superpurper, a Snowshoe Jebtroleom, 8 that correct?

S obvicusly, ret & coppany that he f2 —- controls, 9 L, There are actually two, now that you
10 Ryl Superpuaper, at one point in time he was 16 meatisn ‘b, Two Ln the Westerr District of

11 invelved in Suporpumper. (WZ, CHO. There was = 11 Xew York.

12 Superpumper Fropertiss., 12 Q. COkay

3 Some of =he Californiaz cntities arse escaping 13 A, 3amo result in hoth cases. I [orgot

14 me at this momert. 14 about —-

15 o, Okay. 15 Q. Same results --

16 A, Because there wes also Litigation, as 16 L Dismissed. DJiswlssed -n bhoth
SFoI'mosare you're aware, in I believe the Middle 17 instances.

18 District of -- Central Zistrict of California, 18 Q. Both relating to the Tibarcm entities?
1$ maybe the Nerthern Cistricy, wherewer San Juse ls. |19 L. Yes.

20 Arnd they were entitios in that liticazior that T '20 Q. Okay. 8o other than the two that were
21 represented him in as well. 21 pending and dismissed in the Western District of

22 Q. What litigation are yeu referring to? 22 New York, the eclectic litigaticm, and the

23 A We referred L¢ 't as the ecleclic 123 litigatiom in Rano, Nevada, that stemmed -- that
29 litigation, This was a —- styled as a RIZO claim 24 all of this stems from, which I'll refer to as the
25 trhat Tailed twice in beirg able Lo state & cause of |25 Herbst litigatien, have you represented
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1 Mr. Morabito individually or any of his companies 1 &.  Barbicri.

2 in any other litigation? 2 Q. Barbieri litigaticn. What was that

3 L, Yes. 3 litigation?

4 Q. What other litigation? 4 A, They wore -- 210 of these cases, excepl
L B Aoain, that would nave beern some of the 5 for Herbsat, were ¢Ff the same theory, that somenow
£ Californiaz entities that T just don't reczll. € these pecple that bcught properties from

§ There -- ticre was -- there were —— hesides T individuzis thal Morabite had -- Horabite's

§ eclectic, wiich is -- whick was ir federal cours, 8 entiiies nad seld properties s¢, that scomehew, the
¢ there were -- thers were & couple of olher state 4 proportics were — the value of the propertics were
10 court cases ir Cslifarnia. And while there was 10 artificially inflsted.

11 local comsel in fhose cases, we did also revresent 11 Q. How was the Barbieri --

12 Mr. Vorabitc and the eatities involwved. 12 B. 30 just so D maxe ayself clear, ry -—-
13 And there was ancther Neveda litigaticn. 23 v recollecTien s that in nene of these cases was
14 ©. OCkay. Let's start with the California |14 tMorabite or Mersbitc's entity the entity that sold
15 state court litigatiens. How many -- approximately |1t the property to the zomplaining plaintiff.

16 how many were there? 1& Strikes me that I could be wrong, maybe,

Rl M. Besides eclectic, which wes Lhe federal |17 about Barbieri, for nstamce, but the case here in
18 court casse, Tor sare ong sticks out in my mind. We '18 the -- Lthe two cases here in the Western Districh
1% calied -- we referred To it as the Sarbieri 12 of Neow Yory, the Morgbite entity would have sold to
20 litigation. A0 & third party.

2z Mmd there's —- ry rogollecticn is that there 'n “he third party was ther sued, aleng wizh
22 was one cther, but it jusl deesn't rinc & bell with 22 <he Horabiio ertity, when the thirc party sald thas
23 1e at the moment. 23 property to the eventual plaintiff.
24 Q. Let's start with the Barbieri 24 Q. COkay. Thank you for that

25 litigatian. 25 clarification.

Page 37 rage 33

1 In the Barbieri litigation, do you recall 1 beliewve that that cese was alse in -- in suic.

2 the Morabito entities that were defendants? 2 Zesi Moreno was part of the settlement, T kelieve,
3 A. 1 don*o. Bgairn, it's, you kaos, "3 9% -- of the origiral Zudgment ir the Herbst case.
4 Tibarom Ch. I just don't recall. " 4 But I do believe taat Morero had ar irdeperdent

5 Q. Okay. And there was one cther 5 action Ir MNevada, which may have included the

6 litigation that ycu don't necessarily recall out of « & Herbsts. I just den't recall at vhe moment.

7 California. Was it the same type of litigation? 7 2. Was Cppio Ranches and Desi Moreno,

g i, Yes, g those were two separate cases?

9 Q. Do you know where in litigatien -- 9 A, Correcl.

10 where in California it was pending? 10 Q. Ckay. What was the Oppic Ranches case?
1 Do you know approximately what year? 11 A.  Again, they're all the same. They're
22 THE RZPORTER: I didn't gek an answer. 12 zall anoct walue of properiy. The allegation's that
13 THE WITNESS: Xo. I'm sorcry. Xo. 13 property -- value of property was artificzially

14 BY M3. STTATINTCE: 14 inflated.

15 Q. Do you recall what years? 15 Q. And do you recall what the

N3 A, Scretime beiweer 2007 and 2014, 16 Morabito-ralated entities in Oppio Ranches wera?
17 Q. Okay. And what about the other Mevada 17 . I den't.
18 litigatien that you menticned? What was that 18 0. 2And is Desi Moreno the same type of

12 litigation? 19 case that you've been discussing?

20 k. Betually, there were -- now that you 20 R Tes.

21 jocoed oy menory, I believe there werc twe -- 21 Q. Whe is Desi Moreno?

22 0. Ckay. 22 A. Fe was an individaal who hought

23 A. -- in additior to the infamcus Ferhs: 23 property in a suburb of Reno. I fergoh exactly

74 case. 'here was s case thal we referred to as 24 wheore.  Starks, maybe. T don't kaow., It's 2

25 Ooplo Ranches, ancd I bollove Desi Forere sued, so 1 |25 suburb of Rera.  Bought proverty, and e evertually
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Z was the landloxd to the leris:s. 1 A, It -- It coulz have heosn inte 2312,

2 Q. Do you recall how the Dezi Moreno 2 Q. Ckay. &re you aware of any settlements
3 litigatien concluded? 3 of Desi Moreno after 20127

4 AL Tnere was a settlement, which 7 believe | 4 L, My recollcciion, it was one settleten!
5 was then somehcw inccrporated nto the naster 5 wWwith Dezi Morenc. When it happered, my -—- ny

& settlement with the Herbsts, & recollection Iz that it's -- in's all part of ihe
7 o, Do you know when the Desi Moreno -- "7 same atternt Lo resoive issue -- Morabizo-related

& A. It might have been —- i7 wight have & issues in Nevada.

% been separatc, but there was a seillament. ‘g . Ckay. Do you kncw how the Oppio

10 Q. Do you know when the Desi Moreno 10 Ranches --

11 settlement was? 21 A, Setled.

12 k. 5o the Herkbst settloment, waich is the |12 Q. -- litigetion concluded?

13 set:lerent of the -- che judgment that had beer - A, It was sektled.

14 issued by Judge Adans. 5o, as you know, that that |14 Q. Do you know when that was settled?

I3 was cventually settled. 15 B, My serse is thai it was -—- predated the
T6 Tre Moreno settlement would have been "1€ Herbst seltiement, bul meype net by much. Se

17 centemporaneous. Iither —- either just stiahtly 17 2300 - 2011, Again, it's all xird oF in the szame
J§ before cr slightly after or incorporated. I de {1B time frare. Which came first or second or thirg, [
i% bhelieve it was incorporated inte the Herbst 19 just don't recall.

20 seftlement. But ic's all ip the same time frare, 20 Q. Okay. Do you recall what the terms of
21 which was -- I think that wo had an agreement in 21 the Oppio Ranchas settlement was?

27 wprirciple In Ocicher of 2010, with Jckn Cesmong and |22 4. The defendarnts were going fto pay, cver
23 3rian Irvine and comgany. 23 a period of time, seme amount of morey that was

24 Q. Are you aware of any settlements with 24 embedded ir the seitlement document.
25 Desi Moreno after 20117 125 Q. But as you sit here, you —- today, you

' Page 3% T Page 37|

1 don't recall how much that was? 1 Q. Was it on the plaintiff's side or the

2 Ao N, ' 2 defendant's side?

3 Q. What about with the Moreno settlement? 3 L. Defendart's side. It was origicelly &
4 Do you recall what the terms of that settlement 1 Ferbst obiigation that they reneced on.

5 was? g Q. Who was the dizlogus about the warm

¢ %, The same thing. You kngw. Payment & shell, who was part of that dialogue?

T oover time from some entity. But I thaink there was E A.  Moreno's lawyzr. Three years ags, [

3 & nuance in too Mereno sattiemert that called for & would have beer aple fo give vou &1l of these

5 the build-cct of & "warr shell.” & guys', chaprer and verse, nares, cel_lphone nurbers,
10 0. What is your understanding of what a 1% teleghene mumbers. T just don't recall.

11 warm shell is? 11 Q. Ckay.

12 A, Mas -- It was goirg to he a 1z A, Sharp guy. [ want to say his offices
.3 structure —- there was, you know, some dialegue "13 werc Ir Truckee. § don't remember fls name.  Nice
14 around the definizion of the warm s™ell, but, 14 offices, though.

S ultiwmately, 2 was the company that entersd into 15 Q. Besidss Morenc's lawyer, who else was
6 The settlement was fo build a slructure of so many 16 part of that dialogue?

7T sguare fee: that kad the ability wo serve multiple |17 A, Urn behelf of Morenc?

16 uses. 5o 1T was going To be a structure Lhat was, 1B Q. ©On hehalf of any party.

15 you know, fully -- had ail the utiiitics, all che 1% A, Sc therc's a pilece of me that says Jchr
25 mechanicals in i, which made it warm. Had all the |20 Jesmond anc Brian [rvine nlayed 2 rcle in the

21 rechanicals in it put wes net built for any 21 Mprens settlement because it was part and parcel o
22 speciiic purpcse. 122 the Merbsi/Morabito setilerent. Hezbsts were also
23 Q. &nd who was responsible for building 23 defendants in the Morenc case, o the kest of my
24  that? 24 rcoollecticn.  So Joar Desmord, Brian Irvine,

25 I, I dor't recall the entity. 2% perhans Franz Gilwore and Rarry Bresiow hecause
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1 tncy were locel ccunsel in Nevads. 1 .  There were a colleclion of iiems,
2 Q.  Were you & party to those -- to that 2 inclaaing cellections.
3 dialogue? 3 Q. Othar than collections, what led to you
é A Yes. 4 no lenger representing Mr. Morabito?
5 Q. Was there anyone elss besides, & A. I would say the cutstending AR was tho
6 potentially, Mr. Gilmcre and Mr. Breslow and & issue.
7 yourself on Morabite's side that you were party to? | 7 Q. Bo that was it? Outstanding AR was the
2 &, My team. § reascn that you terminated your relatdionship with
9 Q. Do you still currently represent Paul % Mr. Morabito?
10 Morabito? 19 . Prinzipally.
21 A. HNe. 17 YR, GIZMORE: Well, 2'm scrry. Hs cidn't
12 0. When did you stop representing 112 testify ne terminated h:s relatiomsalp wilk him but
13 Mr. Morabito? 13 Jjust his representellon of hi,
4 A Tdon't recad . 14 MS. PILATOWICZ: That's Zair.
15 Q. Was it prior to Januvary 1lst, 20132 15 THF WITKESS: Principally.
1t h. Ko, N BY M. PILATCWIZZ:
17 Q. Was it pricr to January lst, 20147 17 2. What else led to the decisien to no
18 A, 8o tnat'sz my conlusion. Tt wds either 18 longsr represent Mr. Morabito?
19 April or May 2013 or 2024, I dust dea't recall zs |6 A, We were here In Zuffalo,  The world —-
200 T sit here. 20 kis wor_c was impleding in Xevada. T “us. think
21 Q. Was there something that led te you no |21 thet we beth decided it was fime to —- Zer him io
22 longer representing Mr. Morabito? 22 se=k other courscl.
23 A. L don't thing thero was ary singular 23 Q. 5o the collectiona and the distance
24 item. 124 were two factors. Ware thare any other factors?
25 Q. Were there a collesction of itams? 723 L. 1 ZuaT think thaw we Llost the dialogue.
FPage 40 - T Page 41|
1 Q. TWhat makes you say that you lost the 1 MR, CILMCRE: IMnd, ves, Mr. Moradbito does
2 dialogue? Z intend to assert all appiicable alzorney-client
3 4. TRat's -- thic's just a conclusicn 3 privileges until there's peen a determination oy
4 based upen many conversations that I'monot going to 4 che Ccurt as to the zssertion of waiver.
2 a2t irto that the relaticnship, attorey-client &) BY M3, PILATCHICEZ:
6 releticnshiv, had been frayed. 6 Q. Okay. And based cn that, ara you
7 Q. Were those conversaticns prior to his 7 zefusing to answer questions about conversations
8 involuntary bankruptcy filing or after? 8 with Mr. Morabito relating to the breakdown in
k- A. T believe that our reprasentaticn § dialogus that led to the termination of your
106 terminated pricr to the invelintary. 10 representation of Mr. Morabito?
11 Q. Ckay. Aand are you aware that 1. . Again, I'm golng Te et Mr. 3Gilmore
12 Mr. Leonard, who is the trustee in the Chapter 11 2 spesk Lo the issues of orivilege,
13 case, has waived Mr. Morabito's privilege? i13 MR, GILMIRE: I haven't heard any queslicns
4 A, Yes. I know chat he has asserted a 1¢ that have been asked To which the witncss was nct
1% waiver. 1% akle to answer on the baszis of privilege.
16 Q. Okay. Are you also aware that 14 FEe testified as to general cowunicasticns
17 Mr. lecnard has asserted that the privilege has 17 with a client, which would not rise to the level of
18 haan waived as a result of the crime—frand 8 abtorney-cliert privileged cormanication.
19 exception? Are you aware of that? 19 %0 ho can answer gquesbions unti’ T think you
29 e I am awarc oF that as well. 20 ask one which slight asx him te divalge an
21 Q. 2nd is it still your position today 21 atterney-ciient zcomrunigation,
22 that you're not going to answer questions regarding . 22 Y MS, FIZATOWIC?:
23 conversaticns with Mr. Morabito? 23 Q. Okay. What was the last conversaticom
éé A, ¥Well, it's Morzabito's privilege ¢ 24 you had with Paul Morabito pricr to -- or sorry.
25 asserz, s0 I'lL1 leave thnat fc M. Silwrere. 25 Tet me rephrase that.
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ifage 42
When was the last conversation you had \gith
Mr. Morabito prior to terminating the
atterpey-client relaticnship?
Ao T don't recall, ‘

Q. Do you recall if it was a telephcne
conversation? ‘

A, Mos. Likely.

Q. Ckay. Do you recall what was said
during that conversaticn?

B, I recal’ just general -- the gensrzl
topic.

Q. And what was the general topic?

B Qur guistanding --

¥R, SILMORE: T will -- T would say if it

has anything to do with delivery or seeking of
legal aavice, I'd ask you not %o angwer it., But if -
it has sometnirng cthes thaa that, Those two teoplics,

Lhen yoa're free o answer.
TrER KITSESS:  The ovtstanding AE.
BY M3. PILATOWICY:

Q. Okay. Did you discuss anything else on
that phene call?

AL - don't recall,

Q. Ckay. When did you have a conversation

with Mr, Morabito that led you to believe that the

- Page Iy
M, GIIMIEE: That, I'm going to chiect to.
of fered him advice, that woald be centered
<he atterney-client privilege.

TNE WITHES3:  Mm-hmm.

BY M5. BILRTIWIZZ:

If you
arourd

Q. No. I'm not asking for the advice —
MR. GILMOEE: Wel®, you asked —-

MS. PILATOATCI: -- right now.

ME. GILMORE: ‘You asked, did he {zil to

follow some advice thst Mr. Vacco had provided, and
that does delve intc it.
BY M3, FI1&l0WICZ:

Q. Are you going to refuse to answer --
k. Yes.,
Q. -- based on the privilege? i

Do you still have a personal relaticnship
with Mr. Morabito?

A Yes.

Q. When was the last time you spoka with
Mr. Morabito?

k. Arcund zbont ke middle of Septembar of
this year,

Q. What was the nature of that
conversation?

. He invited me tc Thanksgiving dirmer in

a1

22
.23

24
25
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attorney-clisnt relationship had breken down? :

A. T den's. rememper precisely.

Q. Ckay. What was said during a
conversation that made you think that the
attorney-client relationship had broken down?

B, I dor't recall precisely what was sa’d.

Q. what gave you the sense that the
attorney-client privilege or attorney-client
relaticnship had broken down?

AL I think T took the position that we
werch't going ro conllnue ropresentation.

Q. Why did you datermine that you weren't
going to continue representation?

4. Zecausc of the -- the extent ol the
cutstanding acceunts receivzble.

Q. Okay. But you testified earlier that
there were cther factors that went into that
decisicn, one being that the relationship had
become frayed, I believe is the term you usad.
that correct?

A, But it was around the AK.

Q. Okay. Was there any advice that you
provided to Mr. Morabite that he refused to follow
that led to your decisicn to terminate your
relaticnship with Mr. Morabito?

Is

Fage 45
Canadi .

Q. Was that a -- how was that
communication? And let me --

A. T den't understang.

Q. Let me rephrase.

Was that a telephone conversation?

A, Yes.

Q. COkay. How often do you speak with
Mr. Morabitc?

A, Now, infreguenily.

Q. Ckay. By infrequently, do you mean

more than -- I'm sorry. Less than every three
months?

A, Tden't -- I don't think that we
communicale on a monthly nasis

Q. Okay. Do you plan on attending
Thanksgiving in Canada?

A, It's passed. Canzda Thanksgiving has
vassad.

Q. Thank you for that clarification. When
was -- when was Canadian Thanksgiving?

4. Canadian Thansagivine was Jcioner 12tk
U believe, which is cur Colurbus Day. And I dic
not atiend.

Q. What was the reason you didn't attend?
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1 A, Actuslly, the invilaticn was for the 1 me spell that for you so I make sure I'm saying it
7 weex belore, and my 20-vear-old son was planuing on | 2 correetly. G-A-U-T-I-E-R.
3 cuning keone from college o attend a football game 2! L. I believe ne was, I7 not still dees,
4 with his frisnds and ne, so It was a confiict. 1 revreseny Morzbito In the inveluntary bankruptcoy.
5 Q. When did you first meet Mr. Gilmore? 5 Q. Did you have any comnecticn with the
& Mr. Frank Gilmore? 6 retention of Scott Gautier?
1 A. I think that we —- T -- T angaged his 7 A. No.
g8 law firm in 2010. Wren vrecisely Franx and I 8 Q. Have you ever met Scott Gautler?
9 perscrnzliy met wenld have hoon sometine after the 3 A.  Peraonally, no.
10 engagement . Llrecisely when, 1 don't rememcer. ‘10 Q. Do you know -- and I'm probably going
11 Q. Who made the decision to hire 11 to ask for your help on this one -- Sue --
12 Mr. Gilmere's law firm in 20107 Lz L. Sujata Yairamsznchili,
13 A, Wel:, after the debacle af the trizl in |13 . Okay.
14 froms of Judge Adams, Mr. Morabito was dissatisfied |14 Mo She is in Lke 27tommey direcicry hers.
15 with his then Rero counscl. FEa turnec to re for S I'mnot ever ceing to trv to spell Yaamanchiti for
1t advice and counsel on a succeszor oounzel in Renc, le vou.
17 This lew firm was reierred te mic by some other 17 I do xrow her,
18 lawyer whose name now escapes me. 18 @. When did you meet her?
13 o Lken I vetted the law firm, proposed the 13 &, In 26C7,
20 law firm te Mr. Morabite, and, obwiously, he's the 20 Q. How did you meet her?
21 u¢lienl; ‘e made the deciszion. "2l A, Well, after Joo Busscniclio connactsd
22 Q. Do you know Jeff Hariman? 2 me to Mcorebito on the case hers In the Westerr
23 L. The nane Hartmen seunds familiar. T 23 Lliavrict anc Mr. Morabito and I had some
24 don't krow in what cortexi. 24 preliminary discussions abeul Lhe background of
25 Q. Okay. Do you know Scott Gautier? Let |25 that case, [ was plessed to learn That it was a
- Tuge A6 - Pags 49
1 3uifalec atzcrney, Sujata ¥Yalamanchili, who wes 1 Ao Well, IT wes en $85 mitlion Judgment.
2 principally Involved in the anderiying 2 The judyment that was entered was -- I couls be
3 transactiers. I didr't know her perscnally prior 3 wrung, but that wes the scttlement srouns.
4 to then. 4 Q. Okay. There was a substantial judgment
5 Q. And did you work with her in the 5 at some point, though, entered.
6 litigaticn that was pending in the federal court of | 4 &,  Tnere was a substantial “udsment,
T the Western Drstrict of New York? ¥ correct.
f A,  She was an inwvaluablo reasource for thia B Q. Do you recall when that was entared?
S metser, the Western District of New York case, moth ] B. Scpterbar 20105
1¢ Western District of New York cases. Ind she was 10 2. And how were you advised that the
11 also & resource 1n the sc-called Herbst livication. |11 judgment was entered?
12 ¢. Have you worked with her in any other _Z . Fhone call frem Leif Raid.
13 cases that deal with Paul Morabite or any of his 13 Q. And who is Leif Reid?
1{ entities? 14 A, Trial counsel on the case in Renc,
k= A, bBayend the thres thal 1 just mentioned, |15 Newada
1¢ L don't believe ao. 16 Q. What was your reacticn to that
17 2.  Eave you worked with her on any '17  judgment?
18 transactional matters ralatad to Paul Morabito or 18 L, Uster surprise.
13 his entities? 13 Q. Did you or your office start taking any
23 E. o {20 acticns with respect to Morabite's assets?
21 Q. MNow, we've been discussing a little bit 21 4, Thers came & peint In time when -—-
22 the Herbst litigaticn, which is the litigatiem that 22 &fter haviag analyzed the decisior, so it wes a
23 was pending in Reno, MNevada. There was an 23 wrlitter ceclsion, we —— we worked with Paal and
24 approwimately $140 million judgment entered. 24 other owners cf propertics —o get veluaiiens on
25 Do you recall when that judgment -- 75 oroperties and ¢ -- Lg -- the -- the goal was wvery
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Beach, California, that was jointly owned, again

&nd then there was Superpamper, where all
tares of them had an swnership interest,
egzertial y tage sl of
ident fy tie value ¢l
assats, and to transfer
him, and then zeparate
the equity, if you will, to the extent it existes,
for Edward znd Sam, because they were now relievead

And in ar effort to net croroil them,
iromiceily, as “hey are now, in litlgation, the
properties were, again, valued and moved so thal
everybody, a. the enc of the day, &% vou took the
whole ana you toor the pereentages that each ore of
them owned in the whele, the gcal was to have
Murabiio welk away with the same value that he had
in the whale, while separating from Morabito the
inlerest that Edward and Zam alao ownod.

Q. When did you start that process?

4. Mid -- mid —o late Sentewber of Z010.
Who ultimately decided to camence this

M. Well, the parties.

Fage 0
simple. The decisicn enzered by Judge Adams, f[or 1
as much as Herbst and their litiyslion team wanted 2 not in egual proporziens.
~0 wave that decisicn zround as it related Lo Faul 3
Mozabito, they were not as willing Lo wive it g
arcungd as Tt relsted to Salvatcre Morabiteo ang 5 S0 the goal was to
cdward Bayuk, both of whom were excnerated, if you &  those assots and o -- Lo
will, by Judge Adams, 7 Merahiie's stake in those
cudee Riams foung that chey wers rof € =hat valus exclusively to
invelved in sny of the alleged fraud that was the G
sabjert of the judgment, and the -- the declision of |10
Judge Adans dismissed the claims, rejected the 11 of this lawsuit.
clains sgainet Selvanore Mersbita and kdward Rayuk. 12
The -- the effort was beczalse tnoy owned -- 13
all chree of them, in maay instances, owisd assets . 14
tocelher, the gozl, after researching Nevasa law ih
and consuliing with Nevada counsei, was to N2
right-size the investrment so thet everybody walked 17
gwdy with their oroporticnate share of the 18
investmerl, including Paul A, Morabitc. =)
For imstance, the Pancrame property, which 20
wes lecatad in Reno, my recollection serves me That |21
it was owned by & Morzbitc entity and an Rdward 22
Rayuk entity kul not in equal oropertions, if I 23 Q.
recall correctiy. 24 separation of the assets?
Ihere were proverties in Califorria, Legurns 25
- Fage 52
Q. The parties being Paul Morabito, Sam 1
Morabito, and Edward Bayuk? 2 phone calls?
A, Sure. hkdward and Sam didn't wart to 3
be -- be chaszad becauss they had an egulty incerest | 4 time, Edward and Sam.
in properties tha- were also atteched to Baul. S thar -- than Edwesa:xd,
Q. So who raised the idea of separating £ toc. Delaustequi pecple.
tha azssets? 7
A, 1 ogen't recall, ]
Q. Do you recall the first discussicon 9 you?
regarding separating the assets? 10
B, Mo L=
Q. Do you recall any discussions ragarding 12 Saw had been excrerazed.
separating the assets? 3 property's a perfect ocxemple.
A, Tes. 14
Q. When was the first discussion that you 13 Faul controlied that were the
can remember? 14 properiy.
Ao I don't resell, .7 cerrected on this 1f you show
Q. Do you recall what that disoussion wag? |18
A No. 1%
0. Do yon recall who was present during 20
any of these discmssicons? 2.
I, Ecap in ming, most of These ciscussicns |27
were telephonic. 22
Q. Okay. 21
L Su, eqain, I dea't remenber 25

vage 53
Q. De you recall whoe was cn any of the

L. Well, certainiy Pzul and, from time tc
1 would say Sam less sc
Erd the —— the Breslow pecple

Q. Do you recall whether you raised the
idea of separating assets or if it was raised to

A. It mighl bave come from me, wostly
because I was fixated on the fact that Bdward and
Sc the Panorams
Again, T den't
remember the Lwo speciiic entitles that Edwaszd and
actaal owners ¢f the
and 1 coulc stand
me a decerant -- s
thnat the split wasn't 50/3C; it was elthor &0/40 or
0730, includirg, you know, mortgage cbligation.

We sepavated Edward's interest, cwnership
irterest, in that so thal the property loczied ir
Newvads would be & ripe farget for the Herbsts and
their cellecrion ettorts, minus the satisfaction of
the underlying mortgage, because “hey dida't have
to then deal witk Edward, ang Foward wes Uired of

My recgllection —-
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1 the litigauder, and bdward didn't want to be 1 A, TYes. Ex that time. Yes.
2 embroiled In any more linigatior wath Lhe Herbsis. 2 Q. Did you have a retention agreement with
3 Judye Adams exoneraled him.  He wanted ont. 3 Mr. Bayuk?
L] An? this effcrs was to —— to mainizin valus, 4 4, T don't bellsve zo.
5 maintain value -- meintain the walue ¢f Morabito's 5 Q. Is it your normal practica to have
€ owrership interes:z, while separating the ownership & retention agreements with clients that you
T interest of the two individuals who were excnerated . 7 represent?
§ oy Tudge Adams. 8 L, Tsually.
2 Sc guing Dack to the Farorama property, just . @ Q. Is there a reason why you didn't have
10 for illusirstion pucposes, 1f i was worth 2 10 cne with Mr. Bayuk?
11 mwillion cellars, but because =dward's cwrersaip S 11 E, 1 den't reca’l.
12 interest —- leu's just say it was 30 percent as 12 Q. Did you represent Sam Morabito during
23 opposed to 50 percent. That means tha. the best 13 this separation of assets?
14 that the Herbsis could do, free ard clear of the 14 A, T -- T den't remember whather San had
15 mortgage, waz 300,000 or 3zul's interest in the 1b  independent counsel ar net.
16 Panorera properiy. By wirtve of what we did, they ‘16 C. Do you recall if you had a retention
17 now had access te the frll miZlior doliar value. 17 agreement with Mr, —- with Mr. Sam Morabito?
18 0. Do you recall any of your discussicns 1k A, Xo.,
1% with Paul Morabito regarding the separation of 15 Q. No, you don't recall, or no, you do —-
20 assets? 20 B, Iid not.
21 E. There were nany. 21 Q. Did not have cne?
22 Q. Do you recall any specific discussions? |22 4. CZorrect. Tec the best of =y knowledge.
23 . Ne. 23 Q. Do you recall any of your discussions
24 Q. Did you represent Edward Bayuk '24 with Echard —- with Sam Morabits ragarding the
25 individually? 25 separation of assets?
Pige D6 o Fego 5
1 L I den't recall particular 1 there. 8o it was more technical nature with —
2 corversations. 2 with —- whether 12 was leif or with the Belauszagui
3 Q. Do you recall the general sense of your | 3 2i:m, a’though, eventus_ly, the Belaustegui Zirm
{ discussions? 1 got more imvaived in the mechanics, if voa will.
5 Ao Again, i was -- so, vou know, I have s We were wvesy cognizant of the claims that
6 an swnership intersst in property X or in asset X, £ are made in chis lawsuit now. Ard we went Te greas
T dow am T goirg to get chat guly T lengrks To avoid thesc claims, whick is why --
8 Q.  Other than Paul Morabito, Sam Morabito, § eventually, vou'll get Lo It becacse you asked Sor
9 and Edward Bayuk, was there anycne else that you 2 it —- why we wen: to Matrix to got an independent
10 discussed the separaticn of assets with? -0 third-paroy anpraisal of the so-called Superpumper
11 A, 8o 1 mentioned the Belaustequi people. 11 asset. We just didn't sticx a firger in the wind
2 But mayze oven kefore then, Teif Reid. 1¢  becanse Mevada law said thal you can maze these
13 Q. HWhat was your conversation with Leif _3 trarsflers, 25 leng as they're arm's lengli and for
14 Reid? 14 fair marxet vaiue. That wzs our understanding of
o5 MR. GILEIRE: I'1L ask you not toc disclose 15 dMevada _aw.
lé  attorney-client cormurications —- 1€ Ard that's how we tried Lo arrange each one
1 THE WITNESS: Yesn, -17 of lhese separaticas, 3¢ you will, of the various
if MR, ZIZMORE: -- buf vou can lestily as tc 18 eguity intersst.
1% nonattorney-ciiert comrunications. .18 3Y MZ. PILATOWICE:
20 THE WITHNZSS: We — we were researching 20 ¢.  When you say the —- and I can never say
Z1 Wevada law on these Types of trznsfers. We were -- 21 the name of Mr. Gilmore's firm,
27 w2 werc -~ woe were spend —- obwiously, we weren't 22 A, Belauslegui.
23 Nevada attorneys, sc we were rosearching Hevada 23 Q.  -- Balaustegui were involved in more
24 law, and we warted a betier cnderstandiag of what 24 the mechanics of it, what do you mean by that?
25 the —- tre, you know, bedy of caselaw was oul 25 A, Well, ewentuaily, sc¢ as the -- the
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7 Lewis & Roca Zirr transitioned cur of 1 dated September 27, 2010

2 representation and Barry Breslow and Mr. Oilmore P2 DY MS. PILATOWTCR:

3 stepped Inioc the role of primary Nevada cornsel, 3 Q. Mr. Vacco, you've been handed what's

4 you ¥ncw, we woried on a variety of Issues 4 been marked as Exhibit 3. Do you recegnize

53 coliaboratively. 5 Exhibit 37

i So when I sey they -- thoy were riore —— they £ A.  Yes. Gencrally, T do.

7 got more involved in the mechanics, it wasn't just 7 Q. And what is Exhibit 3?

& & matter of plving us their assessment of Hevada 3 & Ir's & purchase and sale agreement.

4 law. We were working collaborztively te — for g Q. Did you prepare Exhibit 37

16 instance, these -- these scttlemerZs or, you know, 17 4. My law firm did.

11 I zecall therc was -- you angw, thers was evern some |11 Q. Do you know who in your law firm did?
12 deposivicns in these -- | want to say thet there 7 &, T don't recall specifically.

13 wss a deposizion, for instance, in the Morernc case 13 Q. Did yem: represent Paul Morabito with
14 thet Mr. Breslew —- 'cause J'n net admizied in 14 respect to this purchase and sale agreement?

5 WNevada, so we wcrked very closely wilh this law 15 he Yas.

s firm, 16 ©. Cdd you represent the Arcadia Living
17 Q. Was there any specific work that 17 Trust dated February 14, 2006, with respect to this
18 Mr, Gilmore's law firm did with respect to the |18 purchase and sale agreement?
19 separaticn of assets you've bheen describing? 19 A. Yes.

24 A L gon't —- 1 don't think that they were 20 Q. Do you have a retention agresmant with
27 that deep in ths weeds. '21 the Arcadia Living Trust?

22 M3, EILAZCWICA: Would you mark this as é2 A, 1l don't -- I don't recall.

23 Exhibit 3, ploase. 23 Q. If you reviewed your internal records,
24 The fellowing was marked for Identification: |24 would yon be able to locate whether you have a

25 EXIBIT 2 urchzse ard sale agreenent 25 retention agreement?

fage &C Page &l

1 L. Yes. 1 E.  Edwzrd ¢r Paul broughi him ta my

2 Q. Did you represent Mr. Edward Bayuk with 2 attenticn.

3 respect to this purchase and sale agreement? -3 Q. Did you represent the Edward William

4 A, I don't recall whethor Fdward had 4 Bayuk Living Trust dated 6/18/2008, with respect to
5 indsperdert counsel Jook at this or noz. I cdon': 5 this purchase and sale agreement?

¢ recall. 8 A, I've -- I've already said that T

? Q. Do you recall if you were representing Yodom't —— I don't recall.

8 Mr. Bayuk, though? g Q. I'msorry. I was asking you about

g A.  On This transaction, I just -~ I ‘us= 8 the — the trust as opposed to --

17 don't recall. There's -- Zhere's -- there's a 0 A, I'm sorry.

12 piece of re that says that Edward was consulting 11 Q. -- him individually,

12 counsel in Zalifornia. 12 h. Yeah. T den't recall

13 Q. Do you have any idea who that counsel 13 Q.  MNow, this documant represents the

14 would be? {14 transfer of multiple properties —-

15 A, I'm guessing Marx Lekman ‘15 A, Right.

16 Q. VWho's Mark Lehman? 16 Q. -- one being 371 E1 Caminc Del Mar,

7 A. A lawyer in Los Rnosles. 17 another one being 370 Los QOlives, and the other one
18 Q. Did he work at a firm? 18§ being 8355 Panorams Driwve,

19 A, T tkink 22 hac his cwn firm. 18 Do you recognize those properties?
20 Q. Okay. Had you worked with Mr. Lehman? 2 4. T da.

21 A, Dbid [ work with him? 21 Q. What do you -- what was your
22 o. Yes. 22 recollecticn about who ownmed the Fl Camino

23 E.  Whet de you mean by that? 23 preperty?

24 Q. Did you —— how were you aware of 24 Ao Well, I'm Jeokirg &t lhe decumenc, so
25 Mr. Lehman? 25 it's refrested my recollection.
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Q.  Okay, 1 Tren the nexi plece of nroperty, the

A. 1 mean, the property —— | 7 373 Los Olivos, was owred 30/50 notween the twe of

[+B 8o who owned 1it? 3 cheom but did net save the same vaiue, 1if yea will,

A. -— aceorcing to the document, &1l of 4 a3 the -- the E1 Caminc property.
these —— 50 it appears as theugh the Bl Caring ard 5 Ang then the -- it appears from this
Tos Dlives propersty ware both owned, in some £ agreecent that they then individually owned
proportiosn or percentage, by khe Arcadia Livirg 7 interests, two-thirds and one-zhird, as tenanis n
Triat and the ¥illiam Bayck Living Trust. 3 common in the Zanorama Jrive property.

Q. Okay. &nd how did -- how was it g 82 as you were trying fo issess, what did
datermined who would receive which preperties “10 the Arcadia Living Trust cwr, it -- it -- Ir was --
through this purchase and sale agreamant? 1T se thal chet could be segregated and -- and put in

Ao Well, s oearller, witheut this ggoument | 12 Morakite's name, wversus what did Lhe Bayuk Trusl —-
in frert ol me, 1 gave you ust the rough cxamnle 1% and Sdward ang -- again, was cxcrerated ir Judgs
of the Panorams property In Nevads. Ho this 14 Mdanms' decision, wnat porrior ¢f these properiies
document speaks for itsclf. Dot it -- it lays out 125 did he owr s¢ Lhat nis interosts could ke
mere particularly the fegic that I -- thau T ygave 16 separated. It -- it was Just & watter of simple
YOU IR my -— MW examsle response a fow mements ago. |17 math based upon irdevendent third-narty property

5c as you ooule see, in Lhe cecilals, one — |18 wvaluations.
ane of the big proolems here was that Paul aag 15 411 of —hese properties, tncse three —- 50
Bdward, if weou will, through their trusts, did not |23 ler's stick with those Chree —- 2l three had
own Lhese properties even-steven. They did not owr *2]  independent third-psrty appraizals,
them egually. 22 So we nad a IZeir market walue, il vou will,

S0, for instarce, the 271 Il Caniro in 73 &s derermined by & third-party appraiscr, Zor each
Laguna Beach was owned 75/25 by —- 73 Merebite, 25 74 of the properties. We then took the ownership
by Bayuk Trust. 2% interest of ezch of Lhen, of each of the vrepertics

Fage &L T Page &o
an¢ of each of the entities, to come up wizh the L embroiled.
proportiongie value of —— in doliars of -- Zor ooth | & if the property —- 1Z the property had
the trust -- the Morabite —- the Arcadia Living 3 not -- zed been taken cub of Ldward's rawe, it was
I'rust and the Bayuk Trust. 4 clear thal, sooner or laier, throwghk collecticn

Q: Was there — how was 1t determined that 5 efforts on the judgment against Paul, that Rdward
the Arcadia Living Trust would get the Renc € was —— Fdward's interest in that property was going
property, and Edward Bayuk's Trust would get the T to ke implicated.

California properties? 8 So we made it easier for the Ferbsts, if you

Ao T -— T mentigaed earlier that because 9 will -- ard I know you understand thaw -- by == hy
coward, either individually cr threugh his wrast, P00 sayiny that the procerty in Xevada that iz nost —-
wanted to, Ty words, shake ths dust of Rerg f{rom 11 most reachable by the Herbsts, belongs to the
his szndals 35 a result of Judge Adams’ decisicn 12 judgmert debior.
and get as far away from Lhe Hevbsts as poussible, 13 ©. Who retained the appraisers to appraise
it made perfect sensc, since the Zudgment was & 14 the properties?

Nevarda Judgment, tha. the -- the judgmeni debter, i A, Go do yeu mwear whe found ther?
Daul Morabita, should own the Xevada property. 16 Q. Yes. ¥ho found them?

Why would we nave given the Fevada property (17 Ao T -- Tden't recall. | want to say
te Edward, who was leokirng to ot -- sewver his tles |18 that —- that Ib strikes me that the then sherifi =-
witkh Nevada and distence himsell {ron the Zerbst 19 I don't knew If ne 51111 is or not, bul —he sheriff
_itigation machine? 20 cof Washes County, Sheriff Jaley, rccommended the

Q. So the decigicon was made based on it Z1  eporaiser for the Reno properby, &nd 1 Con't know
being a Nevada judgment and Edward Bayuk not 27w came Up with the appreiscr for the California
wanting to be affiliated with Nevada anymore? 3 provesties.

A.  And —- and ihe Herbsts. He had been 24 Q. Did you have any conversatiens with the
excnerated. He didrn't want to continue o be :25 appraisers?
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1 AL Yes, T did. 1 was ceaing I & little kit Llower on lhe walue
2 Q. What was your conversaticn with -- ‘ 2 oeocause of the urfinished rature of the -- the
3 let's start with the appraiser for the Nevada 3 auxiliary -- auxiliary huildiag.
4 property. Do you recall specifically who that was? ’ 4 Q. Was this an amxiliary building that was
8 L. Iodon't. 5 en the Pancrama property?
6 0. Okay., Do you recall having any 0 k. Ycah. Yes,
7 conversations with the appraiser for the Reno 7 M3, PILATOWTCY:  Ckay.
8 preperty? & The following was meérked [or Tdentifization:
a A. I -- I would have had & conversazicr o EXHIBIT 4 Firsl amendrent to purchase and
0 with both appraisers, just giving thew the genezal |10 sa’e agreerent dated
11 outlizes of -- 2f what we were leoking for &nd that |11 Seplemuer 28, 2010
12 was, you kiacw, a comparszole [air marxet value for 12 EY 45, PILATOWICE:
13 these properties. 13 Q. Mr. Vacco, you've been handed what's
14 Q. Do you recall if it was somsbody from 14 been marked Exhibit 4. Do you recegnize Exhibit 47
15 yeur office who retained the appraisers? 15 A.  5c¢ T genersl’y recognize -—- recognize
16 A. I don't rerember, CIE i, [ o-- yes.
17 Q. Ckay. So you don't recall if it was 17 Q. What is it?
18 Edward Bayuk or Paul Morabito? 8 A, It's a first amendment te the purchase
ih A. L con't romemker. T don't remember 25 ard sale agreemcrt, which i[s Exhibit 3 iz cnis
20 Low —- how they were pgid., 1 just —- I romember —— '20 depcsition.
21 I do -- s0 sspeclally the Feno appraiser, becauss 21 Q. Do you recall the reason for the first
22 I -= 1 seew. to ramenber & conversaticn with adm <22 amencment to the purchase agresment?
23 abcut -- there was g -- an auxiliary boildirne that 23 k. I don'w. 3nt, ! mean, it spsaks for
24 wasn't finishod, and what sticks out inmy mind, a 24 itself as ['m reading it.
25 rconversalion witi hin about how the -- you ngw, he 2§ Q. It indieatss that there's a change in
' Pace 68 - T Pagc 69
1 the fair market value based on appraisals that wera | 1 Panorasz Prive property valucd at apgroxinately
2 conducted in Section B -- well, in Sectien 27 Do 2 $300,0CC.
3 you see that? 3 Sc Lhe promissery note thet's reforenced in
9 A, I do. 4 paragraph 0 of $R00,600 represents the value of <he
5 Q. Do you recall where these amcunts came 2 eguipment of $300,000, plus, witheui doing the
6 from in number 27 & rath, the differenzial of the dollar value of the
7 H Just, 1 mean, reading paragraph 2, it 7 respective nlerest of these threo nroperiies.  So,
8 says MBD appraisals werc corducted. 5o these, T'm ¥ in other words, when -- when we had added up, you
3 assuming —- 1 -- 1 don't know wiere they came fror. 9 ¥now, ihe property —— the totzl amount of the
10 Q. Do you know whara the wvalues in the 10 wropcriies, the velue, Lhe net value, so it weald
11 original purchase and sale agreement came from? B e been net value, dediacting the morigage
12 A. I cdon't. T thougnt they were based on |12 liabilitics. So tag ned eyuliy waluc of each of
13 +he appraisals. 13 ke Lhree, and then you tosk sach cwmers'
14 Q. There's a raefarence in number 3 to the |l1& respective interest, whether it wes ano-third or
18 deletion of a premissory note based on the new 15 two-thirds, 75/25, 30/50, you came up with
16 appraisals. Do you see that? le Morzoite's cguity heidings ‘o the whole and Bayuk's
1 A, 7 ode. 1T equity interest in the whale,
18 Q. Do you know why there was supposed to 1§ hrd witnoul deing the math, the aote lecked
19 bhe an exchange of a promissory note as opposad to a 19 like ihere was proebably $200,000 differential,
20 cash payment in ths original purchase agrecment? 20 In other words, 3ayuk was getting $204, 00
21 A. 56 I'm just referring back to Exhibit 3 21 mere in value than Merabito wss getling, and that's
22 to help refresk my reccllectich here. 3o 22 why Bayuk :then ertered into the note, whizh alsc
23 Fxhinit 2, which was the purshaze and sale 23 then ircluded the eguioment.
24 zgreement, in varagraphk D, ! refererces the 24 Q. Do you know why it was deme through a
25 chealer eguipment that was personalty inside the 25 note instead of a cash payment?
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1 L I com't recal:. 1 it's rot qust c—he Sctober --

2 2. Do you know if Mz, Bayuk had the funds 2 Q. Correct,

3 to make a cash payment? £ A, -- 201C involee. Ckay.

q A, ITdor't -- 1ldon't -- 1 don't know, 4 ¢. Can you turn to page 7 of the -- of

e e following was rarked for Identifizetion: 5 Exhibit 57 Do you recall at some point the

£ EXHIEIT 5 Invzices, seversl pages & Panorama property was sold to a third party?

? BY 45, PILATONICZ: 7 A, You went me to _ock at page 7%

8 Q. M™r. Vacoo, you've been handed what's 8 Q. It's page 2 of Pill 5 -- 45028 or

9 been marked as Exhibit 5. Do you recognize S page 7 of the exhibit.
10 generally what Exhibit 5 is? “10 MR. GIZMORE: There's a Bales stamn in the
11 A, Yes. 11 top corner too.

12 2. What is Exhibit 57 iz 1S, PILATORICZ: Correct. The ——

] B. It 's & Lippes Mzathias Woexler Friedman 13 THE WITNESS: So J0CEA4T

14 invaice dated Octeber Sth, 2010, for profesgicnal 14 3¥ NS, PILATCWICE:

1% services rendersd through the morth of Septenber 15 Q. Correct.

16 Z0LC, 1€ &, Oxay. What do yoa want me to look at?
17 Q. Qkay. I'll represent to you that the 17 Q. Do you recall that in 2012, the
18 antire exhibit is a group of involces == 18 Panorama property was listed for sale?

& A Oay. 15 A, Yes. Puorsaant Zo the seltlement
20 Q. -- over different periods 20 agreement.
21 5 1'm sorzy. 21 Q. What was your involvement in the
22 o] -- that we'll talk about at varioms '22 listing of the sale?
23 times. 23 A, B¢ I might have nisspoke earlier, Then
24 But can you -- 24 T invokec Sheriff Ealev, it's possible that 1t was
25 A, So tha! -- okay, Zet me just —- sc : 25 Sheriff Haley whe recommended the realtor to sell
0 Page 72 l - Sagc 73 |

1 <he property as opoosed to the appralsex. 1 bowe was vecant new.  So Paol didn’t want the

2 Q. Okay. ¢ intecrior of the heme displaved on the Internet, and
3 A So my role was tarcugh the course of ¢ 3 maybe 1t was hecause Liere was ro furnitire in it.
4 the setilement agreement. 1 mean, this was selling & But as you can see, Kichard zlso spoke to
> the vroverty, ths Farorams property, thet Morakito 5 John Deswcrd about it. So whatever was declided was
& or his trast now oswnzd a hundred percent of, £ convoyed Lo John Desmend conzemporanecus with this
T sellirg it wes 2 condition oI the —- the settlement ~ 7 decizic:, And Desmond was reprosenting at that

3 agreemen:. Herbst wanled to monetize it. 8 txme, as you krow, the Herbsis.

9 Q. Do you know why there's a reference to 9 Q, Mn-bmm. {(an you turn to page 5 of
10 marketing it without pictures? On the last time 110 Exhibit S, which is Bates number -- Bates number
11 entry dated 3/28/12, locks like the biller's RMS, '11 5367
12 who I believe is Richard Scherer? 12 B, Ckay.

23 A, Richard Schover was an asseciate in the 13 Q. And there's a list of disburzements,
14 fimm. _q E.  Okay.

f Pacl, z very privale individioal, <id rot 15 Q. Do you see on 9/22/10, there's a

16 want photos of —he intericr cf the acwae, ard I 16 dishursements to Alves Appraisal?

17 don't remember whether there was Iurniture then In |17 A.  Rlves Mppraisa’s, ves.

13 tre heuse or nect. C don't remember the disposition |18 Q.  Alves Appraisal?

1& of the furniture. PRy, orirmarily, 2sul did not wart {19 Do you know who that is?

20 phetos of the interior of kis hemo in Rero exposed | 20 A. T —— 1 would jast be gusssing. It's
21 on tke Internet, especially since there was robody |21 one of che appraisers Zor tha properties. Whether
22 liwing zhkers, 22 it was the Rero preperty or the California

23 T zeem Lo recall, in Lhe bacx of ny mind, 23 properties, I den't recail.

24 that there was scme unwantcd -- 7 don'T want to say |24 Q. Do you know why you were paying them
75 it was a break-in, bul there -- trere was —- the 25 direetly through your firm?
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R Todon't. 1
Q. 2And the next entry is 5/27/10, for the 2
retainer for Mark Lehman? 3
R, Right. 4
Q. Is that the attorney that you 5
represented before you believe may have hean &
represented Ed Bayuk? B
A, SBame persan.  Richi. 8
Q. Ckay. Do you know why there's a 9
$25,000 retainer being paid through your firm to 10
Mr. Lehman? i1
&, I don't recall. 12
Q.  And the next entry iz %/27/10, to i3
Justmann & Asgociates, Do you know who 14
Justmann & Aszociates are? 15
A. Iden't. I — T don™t. I'm-—- I'n 1t
thinkirg that they're appraisers ss well. I just 7
den't —— I don't now. 18
¢, Do you know why Justmann & Associates 14
would be paid threugh your firm? 20
L. Todon't recall, "7
Q. If you look back at Exhibit 4, which 25
was the amended and restated -—- 23
L.  Righi. 24
Q. -— amended and restated agreement, 25
- Tage 16
:Discussion cfs <ke recoxd.) 1
A lunchecn recess was taken.) I 2
3Y M2, PITATONICZ: '3
Q. Back on the record. Mr. Vacco, we're 4
back from our lunch brezk. Do you understand that 5
yaour're still under the same -- [
A, Yos. 0
Q. -- penalty of perjury that we discussed ;| &
previcusly? 9
A. Srill under cath. 10
Q. Pricr to the break, I handed you what |11
was marked asg Exhibit 6. Do you reccgnize 13
Exhibit &7 13
A. Generally, yes. 14
Q. What is Exhibit 6% %)
A, IL's a merkership interest transfer 16
ayrapment 17
Q. For Baruk Properties, LIG? g
AL Correct. 18
¢. Did you prepare this membership 20
interest transfer agreement? 21
. Somebody ir my law firm did. 2é
Q. Do you know who in your law firm did? 23
A. Xo. 29
Q. Did you represent Arcadia Living Trust |2%

Fage T2
there was a payment that wes to be made from B:yuk
to Morabito -- let me make sure I have the parties
right.

Under Section 3, there's a paymsnt of
$60,117 from Ed Bayuk to the Arcadia Trust at
closing?

k. Correct.

Q. Did you have any -—- did that payment go
through your trust aceount?

R, I @on'T reczll,

Q. Ckay. Do you normally at closings have
clients make payments through yeur trust account?

L. 1 don't de real estate, so0 L really
don't know thc answer to Lhat.

ME. PILATOWICE: Okay.

The fellowing was marxked for ldentiZiczat ion:

EXSTRIT € Membership Intcres: transter
agreement. daled Uctober 1,
2010

WR. GILMORR: IT's neor. !s this a good

time? o you wiant to go through this or -- just
patting that on the radar.

M3, PILRTOWICE: We 2in take a break right
row! We're moving inte a different sibject, so we
can ge aff the recerd.

Lage 77
with respect to this membership interest transfger
agreement?

&. Ardfor Paul A, Morabite, yes.

0. Woemld you normally have a separate
ratenticn agreement. for an individuwal and their
trest, or would you put them all under cne?

E. Ia this instance, 1 would probandy
ke -- ik was proksbly a jeirt retainer.

Q. Did you represent Edward Bayuk with
regpect to this membership -- membership interest
transfer agreement?

A, Idon't recall.

Q. What about the Edward William Bayuk
Living Trust?

A, T don't recall,

Q. Do you know if either of those were
represented by cutside counsel?

A. I -- 2 dor'z reecall.

Q. Can you tell me what the Baruk
Properties, LLC, is?

L. Well, this is refreshing my
recollection. It was an LIC owned in equal
ncroership interest by the Bayck Trust anc the
Arcadla Living Trust. BRnd the assels of The LIC,
Barux dreperties, LLC, were properties in
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1 Califcrnia. 1 . Correct.
2 Q. Do you know where you got that list of . 2 Q. Do you sea that?
3 properties that's in the fifth paragraph of the 3 Do you know how that number was arrived at?
4 menbership interest transfer agreement? 4 & I believe, mush like he ather
5 A. From Enward or Zazl. £ properliss that we've discasscd, thers was an
6 Q. 2nd that's your understanding of all of | € aporaisal of these three, and because the
7 the assets of Baruk Prcperties, LLC? 7 rembership interest was split down the middle,
B W I don't recail If it owned other asscts 3 BO/R0, it was ezsier to arrive at the Arcadia
9 besides thkis. Besldes Thesc three, % Tiwirg Trust interest versus the 3ayuk Tris.
10 Q. Do you know if there's a reason why 11 irterest net of any encurbrances.
11 other properties owned by Baruk Properties, LLC, 1 S the §1.&17 nillion would represenl the
12 wouldn't be in this list? "17  Arcedia Living Trags value in cthe collechive —-
)1 A.  There probanly wouldn't be any rcason 13 the -- the three collective propertics togebher.
14 <o ot Inciude them, sa, T mwean, 1 — T zan't Lell 14 0. When you say "easiler to arriwve at the
15 you definizively, as 1 logk at this document, 15 Arcadia Trust interest than the Bayuk Trust
1¢ whether there werc other properties. 1 don's 16 interest,” what do yon mesn?
17 believe Lhere wers. L A, 7 -- I either misspoke cr you
18 KR. GIIMORZ: Lre we zzlking real 18 misunderstocd me. S¢ in the othar properties that
9 prcpestbies? 19 we talked akout, where yow had & 75/25 splis, 2
20 MS. PIIATCWICZ: Real properties. 23 30/50 split as individuals as opposed to avergst
21 BY M3 PLLATOWTCZ: "2l the trust, and ther I thisk there was a two-thirds,
22 Q. 1 point -- Section 1.1 of the agreement 27 gne thords, individvally, a 75/25 and a 30/5C, jusl
23 has a -- a transfer of the property -- of the 25 made the math more diffion’t based upen the
24 interest in LLC in raturn for a promissory note in 24 ounership vercentzgos.
25 the amount of $1,617,050. 25 Here, the maih was mich ezsier. Yoo had an
N o B Page BO - Tage HI
_ appraisal for all three oreparties, and you netied 1 Well, becanse, as T think apout ‘t, the —-
2 out. —— frankly, T don't recall. I den't see any 2 the owrership of the properties wasn't going to
3 reference nere to any debt. 3 charge. The ocwmersiip of the properlies wes geine
4 8o it —- it strikes me, ‘ust leoking a* this ¢ to stay ir the name of Lhe Baruk Properties, LLC.
5 documert, that this $1.617 million was a 50 pervent 5 Q. Okay. Do you know why the Bayuk Trust
6 interest in the value of all tarce opreocrties i 6 cbtained all the interest in Baruk Properties, as
1 comoined. 7 opposed to the Arcadia Trust cbtaining the interest
B Q. Ckay. If there were other properties B in Baruk Properties?
9 with value not included -- other properties cwned G A, 'Cause pursuant to Lhis agreement, Lhe
10 by Paruk Properties, LIC, with value not included, LU Areadia Diving Trust is surrengering -- Is
11 would that increase what should hawe been paid for |1l tranaferring its interes. Lo the Bayuk Livieg
12 the membership interest? Y12 Trust.
13 KR, GIIMORE: Object ta Jorm. 13 Q. Do you know how it was decided the
14 TEE WITKESZ: Loglually spoaking, ves.  So, 14 interest would go to the Bayuk Living Trust?
13 earlier —- I den't want to conluse yeu with oy .15 Ao T odonto,
1€ earlier answer. 1 -- as I =it here, locking a2t 16 Q. Do you know if appraisers were hired
1Y tlis documenr, I say Lhat these three orevesties 17 with regspect to these properties?
C8 are Lhe sur Lolal of the assets of the —- of Baruk 18 A. 1 can't say with abselute certairnuy,
i% Freperties, LIC. 2ut I just den't recall that with 19 but that was the standard operaling procedurc. Get
20 precise clarity. A0 a third-party indegenderz value, appraised value of
21 ' BY M3, PTIATORICZ: 2l the progerties. Sc I can't tell youa whether it was
22 Q. Do you know why the interest in Baruk 22 Alves. e s5aw, yoo1 iew, 1n the nvoice Rlves ang
23 Properties went to the Bayuk Living Trust as 23 Justmann and whatevar,
24 opposed to the Arcadia Trust? 24 I -- I --1'ncontident that there were
25 &, M, [ den't. 2> appraiszls dore. T don't know whe did them.
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Q. Bad you worked with Alves bafore these
transactions?

AL Mo,

¢. Had you worked with Justmann before
these transacticna?

A, Ha,

Q. Okay. In Section 1.1 thers's a
reference to the 1.6 —- approximate $1.6 millien
nota.

Do you know why there was a note in
consideration instead of a cash payment?

A, 1 don't.

Q. Did you diseunss Me, Bayuk's ability to
make a cach payment?

. D den't believe that we regoliated the
terns, sc the -- whetner he had the wherewithal o
meke & $1.6 million cask payrent or not was unknown
to Tic.

Q.  Negotiated the terms of the agreement
or the promissory note?

L. The agreepent,

Q. Who negotiated the terms of the
agreerent.?

Ao D odidatul

Q. Do you know who did?

Fage 84

BY M8. DITATCWICE:

Q. Mr. Vacco, you've been handed what's
haen marked as Exhibit 7. Do you recognize
Exhibit 77

! Tes.

Q What is Exhibit 77

A It's Lhe promizsory rota,

8] The promisscory note --

B The premissory note Lhet's refercnced
in Exbibit €.

Q. Okay. 3o for the transfer of the
interests in Baruk Preoparties?

L. Tes,

Q. Did you draft this nots?

A, I believe cur office did.

Q. Do you knew who in yeour office did?

B. Mo,

. Do you believe it may have been
Christian Lovelace?

-- lt's —— it's posaible. '

g. Do you know who negotiated the '
promissory note?

L. o

Q. De you know how your office got the
terms of the promissory note?

S st
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4. Ho.

Q. Who gave yon the informatiom as to —-
or do you know who gave your office informaticn as
to what terms should go in the membership interest
transfar agreement?

A, My zssumpticr is Pavl and Sdward boih.

Q. Okay. Who in your office could have
drafted this transfer agreament? And —-

R Tnris == Chrig --

Q. -- and let ma rephrase. Sorry.

I'm not talking about ability. Who do you
think, of the pecple in your office, may have
drafted this?

A, Yean. 1 understoca that. Christian
Lovelace.

Q.  2Anyone else?

A, Based vpon the invoices embedded in
Exhibit %, Il could have been, in addition to
Levelaze, Paul Wells, whe's cur -- in our real
astate group, may have assisted, or Greg T.
“vancle, who Is also in oar ccrporate group,

S, PILATOMTCE:  Okay.

The following was marzed Jor Identification:

EXH1Z21T 7 Prowisscry note dated
Dztober 1, 20LC
“2age 3%
A, He. T den't recall.

Q. Did your office have any involvement
with respect to follewing up on payments on the
promisscry nota?

K&x. GILMORE: Chiect t¢ form.

CEE WoTH=S5: T -- T den't recall. T just
don'z rezall any speciiic follow-tp regarding the
mentaly payments. I don't recall it being brougit
to wy stfenticn that it was not happening.

Y M. PILATCHICE:

Q. Okay. Are you aware of any paymants
that were made?

4. That were made?

Q. Yes.

4. Sovrmy -- my recollectics or this i —-

iz fuzzy as o whether or not there wes Scllow-—up
or -- my sense 1§ that payments were made, yes.

Q. What gave —- what gives you a sense
that payments were made?

A, DBorcause Pdward from time Lo tike would
ask me acout when the paymen: was due.

. Did the payments go through your
office?

N Hoo Cartainly not.

Ihe {ullowing was marked for Idantification:
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vages BE Tage BY
FXAI31T 8 Vemtership intersst purchase 1 a1 interactive sociel media comnectad, of you will,
agrecacnt dated ODotoher 6, % necighkorkood nlock clik, 1f you will.
2010, with resignation 3 So, you inew, ir the old dayas, wher — T'm

BY M%. PLLATCHICT: 4 much older than you, byt wher T was a Kid, you

Q. Mr. Vaceco, you've bheen handed what's S know, peopls watched out for themsclves by, you
been marked as Exhibit B. Do you recognize ¢ irow, kind of shouting off Lhe front porch.
Exhibit 87 T Watched et [or their neighberhood.

A. General v, 1 recognize 1t ves, 3 5S¢ the ccneept hiers was to protect the

Q. What is Exhibit 8% G meighborhood, protect the bleck, if you will,

K. It is & merbershin interest purchase 13 targsugh interactive sccisl nedia.
agresment 11 Q. Do you know if it -- if watchmyblock

Q. TWhat is it a membership interest 12 1ILC owned anything?
purchase agreement for? 113 A. 1t owied zero, other than the idea,

A, watchmyblock LLC. 14 whick, you tnow, was at thet point ir time jusf ar

Q. Do you know what watchmyblock LLC is? IS idea.

A, I don't krow 17 it still exists, ko it |16 Q.  Did you incorporate watchmyblock LIC in
was & —— zn LIC Zcrued by Zdwerc end Paul at some 17 Mew York?
point in Zime. T don't recall when. 18 &, I don't know if we irncorporated iz. T

I mear, are vyou asiing re what watchmyblock 1% don®t recali thas. [t may have besn a preexisting
157 20 erniity. My sense is that it was a preexisting

Q. Yes. Do you know vwhat it is? 21 enzity.  In cther words, preceded cur

A, It was a cocnoedt. '22 represerlallion of Morabite interest. I dn rot

Q. What was the concept? 23 believs it's a New York LI

A, I will do it z cisservice as @ otry to 24 Q. Do you know if you'ra listed as the
deszribe i, bul, esseatielly, it was going to he 25 resident agent for a New York LLC?

- Page @& 7 Page 8%

2. T dea's. But if you're locking af 1 were hellow shells, wirtually worthiess.,
coreorate documents, and se Lf vou're —- if wvou 2 Q. Do you know why, if it was a hollow
keow that's been Incorporates in New Yory, Then 3 shell, there was a purchase agreement to transfer
show me sowething to felresh my recoliectien, out T 4 the interest in it?
just den's recall. 5 &, Because I belizve it was at lts nascent

Q. Ckay. Do you know how you came up with £ stage, whore there wes some sense thet, sooner or
the valus of the —— 7 later, it was ycing to decome & robust sccial media

Well, let me back up. Did you draft this 8 security device for reighborhocds.
agreemant? © 8 Q. Did you have that belief, or that was

A, Somebody in my olffice did. 10 Just conveyed to you?

Q. Do you know who in your office? i B, Did I have whet belief?

A, I den't. 12 Q. That this was on the verge of

Q. Do you know who negotiated the terms of |13 potentially being scmething at scme point? That
this agreement? 14 that --

4. T do not. i A,  ¥Well, on the verge of being something

Q. Do you knosr how the purchase price of 6 oat some point is kind of coniradictemy. [ --1
$1,000 was arrived at?® 17 understcod the concept. It weg an interesting

B, I con't, Dot wnat  do know fs thas 18 concept.  Jut even though my -- ay residence is
10is wasr't -- the LLC owred 271 idea, It cowned no | 1% Erie Ceanty, State of Hew York, T'm irtel_ eclually
assets. It owned ne Tradewarss. Tt owmed w0 S from Missouri. Shew me. Sg o-- the Show Me State.
palent rights. It owned an amcrphous idez. 21 Q. Mo-hmm.

Fransly, as yoo ressarch Paul A, Morzhito, vy B.  Zo thers was a lot of ideas. A lct of
yer'1l find that there's a plethwra of L.Cs, 23 eonconts.  3ar most, 99,9 porcent of the Ideas and
because cvery time ke bzd & pusincss idea, he 24 gonceots nevar, ever cape to fruition.

Zfermed en LOC.  These LLCs, much like this ore, 25 Q. Do you know if there were other LICs
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that were in existence, at the time that you were 1 A, The rembership interes. directlon would
doing the restructuring of Morabito's assets, that 2 have come From Paal and/or BEdward,
you didn't do transfer agreements for? 3 Q. TWere thare any entities that they

A, That's a -- I don't mean to be 4 brought to you that you didn't do a mesbership
oritical, but there's a let of qualifications in 5 interest transfer agreement for?
that -- i that sentence, stariing with during -- & A, L == T dom't recall.
during these transfcors. 7 And, by the way, I -- I cdidn't mear my

Q. Ckay. So —- & answer thrce arswerz ogo to be snarky o snlde,

A, B0 I can't -- S Fut it is -- there was a big fime Zrame there and a

Q. -- between -- 0 Lot of diffcrent elements, se 1 -- 1 apclogize

A I zen't — I can't, with any sense of 1. for
c.arity, say precisely whsn., 3o, you know, 12 ¢. No. That's -- that's fair. I --1I
probably nct diering these transfers. 113 will happily rephrase my questicn anytime --

0. Okay. Between September 1st of 2010 14 . Ckay.
and September 30th of 2010, did somecme fram your 15 Q. -- you misunderstand it or think it
office do an investigation as to what LLCs 16 needs to be narrcwed. Just go ahead and ask me.
Mr. Morabitoc had an interast in? 17 The following was marked for Identificaticon:

k. ¥o. 18 EXHIBIT 9 Four-page document

Q. Okay. How did you decide -- 8 THE WLINxS55: Thanx you.

4. Hot vthay L zecall, s BY ¥S5. PITATOWICZ:

v} Ckay. How did you decide what entities |21 Q. Mr. Vacco, you've been handed what's
to create membership tranefer interest -- 22 been marked as Exhibit 9. Do you recognize
membership interest transfer agreements for? 23 Exhibit 9?

&, I dide't decide any of that, 24 E.  I'wve seer it before, surs.

Q. Whe gave you that information? 25 Q. Do you know where you'we seen it?

) Page 92 T Page @3 |

A, In our files. * 1 and Superpumper Prcperties, it says net amount owed

Q. Do you know who creatad it? 2 by Edward Bayuk to Paul Morabito, see

R, Weol, 8o just for the record, 9 s - 3 regoociliation, below,
iz one, Lwe, three, four vages. The first page 4 A, Right.
leoks like a recoaciliaticn -- for iack of & better 5 Q. Do you know what that is referring to?
wey to describe it, 2 roconciliatien page.  Arnd 5 A, well, we'we seen that, so the
ther. the -- ‘ke other —- the rerainirg Bates 7 cverresponding amount is $1.EL7 miliion that we'ee
mmber CMIC2 throurk 4 appear o be an arortization | 8 scon in the aote, which was Fxhibit 7 ard Lhat we
schedale, & zew referred o in —- in vrior exhibits. What was

So, frankly, I -- I -- they were separately |0 t? dor f, c¢r 3 and 4. I'm scrry. 3 and 4.
created. 3o you've -- you'we made It ore exhibiz, |11 Q. Okay. Do you know what the actual
cet in oy ming, they're -- they're not recessarily |12 reconciliation that he's referring to, though, is?
connsctad, 13 A, Sece reconciliation, belew. S0 this may

Q. Ckay. Let's talk about tha first page |14 b= more grachically than whal | iried to do carlier
of Exhibit 8. Do you know who created the first 15 Is -- is the recenciliation around -- slarting,
page of Exhibit 9?2 1€ first and forerost -— 1 xnew 2'm repeazing Tyselt,

A, This is -- this is a document provided |17 but starting first and foremest wich the appraised
tnous by facl AL Morabite. 18 walve of These preperties and then separating the

Q. Do you know if Paul Morabito created 1¢ debz, which woald be mortgaces,
it? 22 Sc I'm lookirng under bullet poins mmber 1.

A, T don't. I know Lhal we did not. 21 Perscnal residences. 5o, for instance, the ret

Q. There's -- about two-thirds of the way 27 wvaluve for Los Clives, apprazised walve minus the
down the page -—- *23 mertgage was §94,%%4.  Seme amounl for El Camiag

H Kignt. 4 wes -- Lhe same category, net eguity fer EL Cawmirc

Q. -- under -- between Baruk Propertias 25 was 1,078,641, And {cr Pancrama Zrive, 3,270,136,
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Page 92

Thar, as you can ses, working down on the
sheet, the rex: colurn was for eagh of those
properties oe divwy up the eguify interost parsaanrt
to the corresponding owizrshinp interest of Merabite
and Bayux,

22, you znow, the -- The -- Lthe alcely of
the Lrust was ~eft out. Bot the trast actaally
ownoed -- wel®, The trusl didn't own Pancrama, but
Lne Lrust owned the Czlifornia oroperties. The
respoective trust. o you come op wilh the —-
the —- the net n2t value owned by cach interest of
zhese ¢ollective proporsics.

Ther you Inplicazed the
Properties, whnich we've telied
the Mary Fleming Circle and the 1461 Glenneyre in
Lacurs DGoack,  Same methodology,  And the math
comes ao Lo Lhe 7.6 million.

Q. Mo-hmm.

B T don't know —— well, so
roeconciliation, bDelow, s¢ thon thore was the
Superpurper Properties, 112, These were known in
my -— my worlc as the card lock propertics.  Thaey
were all in Nevadz, sC you car ses Lhe adoresses.

Ivankly, this mornirng, that -—- you know,

the Barcx
aboat now, waich was

wher [ was sti1l lying In bed thinking aboub thas,
o Page 9E |
o8 Similar =-=- a document that locks like
Exhibit 8 but has something else below where it
cuts off now?
&, I doa't -- 1 dor't know. T den't
xccall.
L. Do you know when Paul Morabito provided

this to your offica?

A, D owould ke cuessing,  But, havine s:sid
that, I mean, the nurbera, especially, you mow,
the numgers under bullet poinl 1 and 2 we've zesn
erhedded in these documents, so T weu'd say that
with These doouments.
to bg some -- scmo similar
-— vou've asked me to testify

it's contzmporanecus

And there has
dozuments that we've
tz for <he perscrnal residence and the Baruk
Properties, I believe similzr docurents exist for
Superpumper Propartles, LIC.

Q. Do you know if your office drafted
those documents?
A, If they cxist, I would say yes, bub if

you con'c have them, ther they most not exis.,

0. Do you know if the BEVA Compass
mortgage that is referenced is a loan that waz made
to Superpumper Propertiss, LLC?

AL ] pelieve, yes, Az

3

opposed Do

bPage A%
1 1 was uryirg to figure oot what card rock mears. I
2 ogoa't know. You knew, I -- I thinx you had to
3 like, you know, put a -- like a credit carc into a
4 opreperty to go in and get somc gas or fuel or
5 whatever.
£ Dut these were proporiics that ware ownec oy
Y Superpumper Properties, LLC.

g And yoa can see that they were avpraised Zor
93 B3VR, sc boy, Doy, victor, apple, Corpass 3ank, |
id thirk there was indebtedness on this propsrty.  And

I} zhat debt was &g recent as February of 2010,
12 Se there's -- Lo Zurther tae regcacilistion,
13 so this is an indeperdent reccneiilztion from the
A I.g, besause as you can see now, Zam and Zdward are
1% partrers with Prul.
1¢ 3o wher it says see reconciliation, below, I
7 don'T know what It means.
18 0.  Ckay.
12 . A long exolaration to ast —- I thought
20 1 was geing to, you know, just work dows the math
21 and T wes golng to get there, ot it didi't happen.
.22 Q. Have you ever seen a document that has
23 anything below -- that -- that has more information
24 on it than Exhibit 97
Ao A, You mear similar to this documen:?
Page 97
1 Supsrpumpsr, Inc.
2 Q. Correct.
e A.  But there was a comwrensnsive -- I know
4 that we're kind of now morphing into the next
O topic, bubt there was a comprelensive banking
¢ relasticnship between Superpomper, Tro., and 3BVS as
7 well. BB -- BBVA.
8 Q. What was Superpumper Properties, LLC's
9 relaticoship to Superpumper, Ing,?
13 AL Tast 2 rame. T pelieve It was just the
11 name. Thers was O ~- Lhe Cowmon ownership were
12 the -- the three sharekoldsrs. Bul you can see the
13 peroertages heve.  The percentzces were not to the
24 =zeme percentages that they were involved in
% Superpumper, Ine,
16 Q. Did you form Suparpumper Properties,
17 LIC?
18 A, Nn. Wor Supernumper, Inc.  They were
T8 preexisting entitles. Pricr to our representatior.
20 Q. 5S¢ going back to the overall transfer
21 of Morabito's assets, the corporate --
7 A.  Paul A. Forabito.
23 Q. ~-—- Paul Morabito's assets, we'va talked
24 abcut the Panorama property, the two California
25 properties, Los Olivos and El Camino, the
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Fage 98 fage 4%
1 membership interest in Baruk Properties, the 1 Q. -~ are there any other transfers of
2 membership interest in watctmyblock LIC and then 2 asesets that you're aware of that tock place in
3 there was an interest in Suparpumper that was 1 3 September cr COctcher of 20107
4 transferred. 4 A, Well, the zompiicated CHWC,
5 Besides thoze -- 5 Suaperpunper, Iac., Snowsace.
[ i, Superpumner Properties, LLC, 3 ¢. Okay. Other thapn that and the ones
7 Q. Superpumper Properties, LLC -- 7 I've mentioned, is there anything else that you're
B A, == 1Inc. 8§ aware of that was transferred?
9 Q. - and Superpumpar, Inc. £ A. Ll cen't pelieve g0,
13 Ao S0 I'm == 1'r == T'm oot sure about 10 Q. Why was —- all of the —— it — it would
11 Superpumper Urogerties, LLC. There's & picce of re 11 appear, locking at the documents, that
12 that says that —- that chose properiies went uver 12 September 30th was a target date to have all the
13 fe the Ferbsts in Lhe settlement agreoment. I 13 properties transferred. Is that fair?
14 war't —- T —— I just der't recall Lhe dispesiticon 14 Ao It coes look like evervihirg's
2% of the Superpumper, LLC, propertiecs. 15 hepeening in, you know, 28th, 2%th, 3J0:h frem the
16 Q. Qkay. So -- 1€ deocuments, surc.
17 5 I'm— I'm-- 1 -- I belicve - ard you |17 Q. Do you know why everything happened in
18 have to have g settlement agresment, I think, that |18 that time periocd?
12 tkey wenl over ‘o :the Herbsts. 12 A, Zdwarc wanted guU.  Edward was Iree and
20 0. Okay. So -- 20 clezr, as far as he was concorned, from Lhe Herbst
#1 E. T could be wrong aboul that, .21 lizigastion, and he warted out. Sam ecually bur not
22 Q. Of the preperties I previously 22 a5 —- vou krow, fdwzrd is a hand wringer. He's —-
23 menticmed, taking ocut Superpumper Proparties, 23 hc werries abcul, yol Xnew, whethsr the sun's going
24 1LLC -- 24 1ic come up i the morring.
zZ5 A. Right. 2% Sam 13 -- 13 -- 1 concerned, bubt Sam wasn't
- Page 10 | '_' Page _91
- calling me every day wencering how he's going Lo be ' 1 action. So the net worth -- tho net worlh
2 free and clesr of fhe Herbels, Edward wes. ¢ depozition, in that context. 2o as pow Brian and
3 Q. BSo the —— the fast timeline was based 3 John have the judgment at hand, and row thay begin
4 on Bayuk's insistence? & erfeorcement actions, my recelleclior is Chat theze
5 A.  Yes., He was the primary mctivator, as 5 was an awful lot of discovery around that, and
&€ far as my recollection serves me. & Lhere was a nel worth desositicn of Forazito, ard
7 Q. Wara thaere other motivators? T 1t was in that context that 1 became aware of it
il A Thel was the prine one. I don't -- if 3] Q. So the first time you heard of it was
% thero werc secondary or tortisry, I odon't racal” ¢ when Morabito mentioned it at a depeositiom? Is
10 what Lhey were, but Edward warted out. 10 that accurate?
11 Q. Do you know what Sefton, S-E-F-T-0-N, it He Tt was in The nontext of the et werin
12 Trustees is? 12 eilker discovery or deposizion.
13 i Well, I zame to -- to know il, yes. 13 Q. Do you recall when that deposition or
14 Q. What iz your understanding of what 14 discovery was?
15 sSefton Trustees is? 15 Lo I'm just going on {es] here. I wocla
6 A I'moglad you couched it in —ems of my |16 say that il was early 2]11, It was somezime in
17 understanzing, because | der't know precisely. 3uz ‘17 20611, But shet's —— I jusl don't believe that it
18 my urdersTanding Ls that Sefton Trustees is an 18 happened in 2070,
1¢ iIrterrational repository of -- of zssets. 15 Q. Ckay, Do you know why Paul Morabito
20 Q. How did you became aware of Sefton 20 transferred $6 millicn to Seftcn Trustees on
21 Trustees? 21 Septembar 15th, 20107
22 A,  From Paul Morabito. 22 A, MNo. On what date?
23 Q. When did you becems aware of it? 23 Q. September 15th of 2010.
24 A,  Pestjudgment ard probably —- 124 A, Yo
23 posljudgmert ir the context of the enforcoment 25 ¢. Do you know why Morabito transferred
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1 any funds at any time to Sefton Trustses? 1 ¢. Okay. You're aware that Mr, Lecnard

2 4. I know whas he testified to i the w7 2 has waived Mr. Mcorabito's -- or has waived the

3 worth depositisn. 3 attorney-client privilege, correct?

4 0. But you don't have any indspendent L] a. Yes,

5 knowledge? 5 Q. And you're aware that —

4 A. Mot that would be indoperdert ol £ MR, GIIMOBE: Well, these aren't guesticns

T ocomrarications direcily with hir. 7 that should be direczed to Mr. Vacco., Thase -- yeua
] Q. Well, commmications cother than what B can direct them Lo me.

9 was said in the deposition? Let me back up. B We are aware -- T am, both as Vr. Moranito's
h 1] Have you had conversations with Paul 1% counsel onossveral maliers, az we=ll as the
11 Morabito about transfers to Sefton Trustees? 11 defeondants' counsel in this ratter -- that the

12 . o have, 12 trustee has sen. a letTer to debuor's counsel

13 Q. When did you have those comversations? i3 purporsing to waive the applicablo attcrrney-ciienc
14 . Cererally, in the context of -- 14 privilege of iLhe debter, both in the perscnal ard
15 sometime in the Time frane of the discovery or L% corporate cspacliiy.

1% depesit-on arcund the net worth. L6 Ind, of couvse, naving cited no Ninth

17 Q. Okay. DBut have you had conversations 17 Circuit or Hevads jurisorudence to sJappors such a
18 that weren't -- 18 walver, we are not in the pesition te sccept thal
29 k. vriviloged? 213 walver at this tine,
20 Q. -- weren't on record in the deposition? 20 %o as far as l'm concernsd, the
2l A, Yes, i2] attormey-cllent privilege exists, and I'm going to
22 Q. Okay. What were those conversations? 22 assert it.

23 M2, ZIIMORE: I'm golng to chject on the 23 BY K3Z. PILATCWICE:

24 nasis of attorney-client privilege. 24 Q. Okay. Did you also receive a letter
25 BEY MS. PILRTOWICA: 25 from John Murtha regarding a waiver of the

Pace 104] Fege 10G

1 attorngy-client privilege? 1 on beralf of kiz ol lents, yas,

Z b, We did. 2 BY M5, PILATOWICEZ:

3 Q. Okay. Did you -- did that latter also 3 Q. Ckay. Did -- de you know what happened
4 indicate a waiver of the privilege -- privilege 4 with -- well, do you understand that $6 million was
5 based on the crime-fraud exception? 5 transfaerred from Paul Morabito to Sefton Trustees?
& A, I heliove It did. € Ao T know that genera !y, yes.

7 Q. Ckay. Are you going to refuss to 7 Q. Okay.

8 answer the question based on the attorney-client & B, 1 don't know it particularly.

9 privilege? ] Q. COkay. Do you know what happened to

10 B, I an. 10 those funds?

11 MR, CILMORE: And the recerd shouid reflect, 11 MR, GILMGSZ: Yoo snew, I'm going Lo insert
1 dit's nos Mr, Vacoo's privilege to waive or to 12 &n czjecsicn hore.  Is the Sefton clain part and
13 assert. It's Mr, Forabito's cr other clients cf 23 parcel to the state ccuri litigaticn, or are we now
14 the firms that are here to waive or assert the 24 walkirg into the —- the kanzruptcy --

15 privilege. 8o Kr. Vacce's neither waiving nor s M3, FILATGIICA: Mo, The --

16 assertirg privilege. Tt's the clients that are 15 M2, GIIMORL: -- claims?

17 asscrting the privilege. IZves that make sense? i M5, PITATCAICZ: The Seften trustee, the

18 MS. PTLATORICK: 1 understarc your pesizion, | & S4 millicn transfer is cne of the allegaticns ir
1% oet so that ths record's clear, my client, wo'wve 19 the stale cour:y complszing.

20 taken tho position, holds the privilegs and bhas a6 MR, GIIMZRE: As o which defencanls?

21 waived it. I am simoly asking if you are refusing |21 M3, PIZAIGWICE: As to Paul Morakito,

A2 to ansver based or counsel's assertion of the 22 VR, GILMCRE: #ell, ne's rol & deferdant.

23 privilege. 23 VS, PITATONICZ: wWell, the -- the transfer
24 MR, CUIMORF:  Thank yeu. 24 cof the funds has to do with the sverall Trauvdulen:
23 THE W_TNESS: Iiis assertion ol the orivilece 25  transfer.
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MA. GTIMCRE: Well, there's no allecatior i MR. GTIMORT: —- Zf this wiilness doesn':
that any of the defcndant recipierts had anything 2 have thet kind of teslimeny, then ['m going to
ta ¢o Witk it. Wou —- you get my deifty 1 oblect that we're orossing the streams neve.

So Lhe ¢rigina- complairt had a Seften 4 BY M5, PILRTONICZ:
allegation becausc Paul was a cefendant..  HNow 5 Q. So do you have any understanding of
Paul's zot & pariy o thc lawsuit. The cnly 6 what happened to the $6 million that was
parties te the lawsuit are Mr. Bayuk, ¥Mr. Sam 7 transferred to Sefton Trustees?

Morabite, and the respective Superpumper and g N T really dor't.
Snowsroe entities. 8 0. Did any of that mmey come back through

2o T'w having 2 kard Cime understanding why |10 your trust acoount?
we're crossing the streams here on the Seflon il 4. Well, so that's why I hesitated =
Trustes Lrarsfars that have nolthing o do —— 12 moment age. The record docsn't reflect my
there's no allega~ior ir the corplaint skat has .3 hesization. But recpanizing that money's funoible,
any-hirg Lo do wiih the pending defendants. 14 and never havirg access to Scftan's records, whal

ME. PILATCNICZ: Well, there was a transfer 15 | — what T do “now with clarity is whas was
cf 38 millicrn to Sefton rrustess, and we are 1  transferred into our trust account from Seflian, or
invesiigating where iz went. And we'vre ertizled in I]? Tasud and Dash, which, you know, I believe
the litigatior to irvesligate whal happensd to that '18 represertec Seftar or had something to do with the
money . 13 Seftan noney.

MH. GTLMOKE: If =~ 7f the -- if you're 2zt NS, PIIATCOMICZ: Dhay.
tellirng me thal the line of guestioning is intended | 21 TER REFURTER: How do [ spell Lekud znd Zask?
to determine whether cr nol these transfers have 22 FR. GIIMORE: Actuzlly. It's Libuxd,
some relation to the defcondsnis, then I suppesc 22 L-T-B-N-E-D.
you're going to cef some latitude, but -- 24 {Discussien off che record.’

45, PILATCWICZ: Mm-hrm. s e fotlowing was marked for ldentificatzion:

T Page 108 T Page —09 |

FXHIZTT 10 Trust Ledger History, siz pages | 2 A, Yes.

BY M5. PILATCWICZ: 2 Q. Why was it?

Q0. Mr. Vaces, I'we handed you what has 3 &, Zecause 1t was goling <o form the pasis
been marked as Exhibit 10. Thank you. Do you 4 of the first rash payment under che Hersbst
recognize Exhikit 107 5 settlement tc the Merosts.

L. I do. 3 Q. Do you know how it got from Sefton

Q. What iz Exhibit 107 7 Trustees to your trust acccunt?

A. lt's a trust ledger hiszory of Lippes g B, Wire Lransfer.

Mathias Wexler Friecman for natrer numosr 3540, o] Q. Do you know who initiated that wire
whicn is Paul A. Moralbito. 10 transfer?

Q. Is the 3540 number, does that reflect 11 A, Sefron Tristees.
all matters of Paul Morabits, or ig that just a 12 Q. Do you know -- do you know -- let me
Paul Morabito general file? 113 back up.

A. I pelieve iT's —— T doa’s krow with 14 Did your firm have any centact with Sefton
clarily, 30 some of the entities, you inow, I'n 15 Trustees to have that money transferred?
thingirg of some of the -- the LLC0s might have had 18 A, Xao.
zeparaie mwatter numbers. 17 Q. Okay.

Q. The second entry of that trust ledger 15 &.  Orther than, you knuw, receiving the
appears to be a deposit of 5449%,975 from Sefton 13 wire transfe-.

Trustees Limited. Do you see that? 20 Q.  When you saw it —- did you see the

A, T odo, .21 deposit from Seftem Trustess come in?

0. Do you know what that money was? : 2é L. 1 was aware of it.

A, fnat do you mear? 23 Q. Okay. Did you question who Seften --

0. Do you know why it was deposited into 24 Sefton Trustees was?
your trust acoount? 25 Ao Weli, kv this Lime, T knew.
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1 Q.  Ckay. and you also menticned that 1 Bam Morabitc of 35%, or roughly 360,
2 Liburd and Dash was gowmecne who you believed to Z But ther cn Noverber 30th, a day before the
3 represent? 3 paynenl was dae, 2.5 -- 2.564 milliga goes oul Lo
4 B Yag. 30 exguse we for Lhe 4 First American, which wes the escrow agent for the
Eomispronunciation previecsly. It's L-I-3-U-E-D and 5 Herbasts,
& Dash. & 5c of the -- of the $2,4RC, 000 that came in
7 2. And there's a receipt of 1,5%5%,9507 Y frem Soften and Liowrd ancg Zash, il Zoraed the
8 L. Correct. Ten -- ten days afller the £ llon's shers of the mency that woent io the ilerkazs
¢ receipt of Lne half willion, Se the awounts that ' 2 for <he first payment.
13 are reccived arc net of the wire irarsler feas, 10 Q. Okay. Aare ycu aware of other deposits
11 Q. Okay. 11 from Sefton Trustees into your firm's trust
12 M. So the 44%,97% is reaity 453,000 112 acomunt?
12 b=cause you acdd che 75,000 —— the $2%, it becones 13 A, %Well, in thec interest of time, can vea
14 500,000, I'm sorry. 450,000 14 poirl o me where thney exisi?
15 0.  &nd do you know what that ooney was 15 Q. I don't see them on this ledger.
16 for? 3 A, Ch. Sure. Zoogo to 5/11. %o it would
N &, The Liburd and Lash? 7 bpe page Batos number (CU48), and go down ane, two,
18 0. Yes. 18 three, four up Zrom the botton.  Ard you can see a
la B well, sure. ¥Giu can see thal -- just 1% receipt on May 11tn, 2012, arotizer $2.274,389.53.
2C fellow thc trust ledger dowm.  So the amount — the 21 50, again, that's essentially 52,275,200 once you
21 receipt amounts awl thea -- 2o oo the TECh dg the Z. met out the — the -- the transfer fee.
22 44%. So fust Zor casy discassicr, the 4450 an 7] Ard thal zame from laburd aand Jash, anc Lo
23 Weovenber 18 from Befton and then on Novemper 28(k, 23 &nd pehcld, 14 days later, that 2.274 forms the
24 Ten days later, is the Liburd and Zash, essentaelly 24 lion's share of ihe rext cash payment to the
25 32 mllicon on that day. 2nd then z deposit from 25 Herbsts of §2.5 millicn. 350 the Sctton moroys, the
T 2age |12 Page 113
1 Herpsts get. 1 more careful abeut this from my perspective.
2 Q. Do you know if there were any other 2 Q.  Okay.
3 deposits besides the -- the 2.5 -- thers -- 3 A, 3o lef's go back Lo page 1, or 478 of
4 there —- there would appear to be another million 4 Bales stamp of the trust ledger, Exhinit 13. So
5 dollars that was transferred to Sefton Trustees. 5 now as I lock at Lhis documert more thoroughly, 25
6 Do you know what happened to that money? € opposed to resvonding te vour questions just new,
ki A, I don't krow how mich was transferred T oaralyz2ing It, there iz a Sefton itransfer on
2 into Seftan. I never knew that. 8 MNovember 18th of -- if we —— if ycu den'ft wning, if
g Q. Okay. ¢ we could just round it oup te the ~- to the full
i0 A, ALl 1 krow is what we received. 10 anwant minas Lthe fes, or hefore the Zoe is
11 ¢. Do you -- are you aware of any other V1D deducted, of $45C,000.
12 receipts, from Seften Trustees or Liburd and Dash, 12 So for the record, <hat's the seccnd ertry
13 other than the omes that we'wve just gone over? 13 en this psge 1,
14 &, 7f they're net on this kxhinit 10, they 14 Q. Mo-hmm.
15 didn't kappen. 15 A, ERight? [c you ses that?
16 ME. GLIMOER: Thers iz acrua_ly anctihker 16 0. Yes,
1V Tippes zrust ledger, whick yew know abeut. o A, Okay. Then we yo Gosn to
18 MS. PITATOAICZ: Right. That deals with 18 MNewvember 2fth. And there's essentially a
1% UcH 19 £2 millier transfer fros Libuxd and Dash on
9 WR. GILMORK:  USKFCC has ore as woll. It 2C Movewber 28th.
27 ray nave Liburd money in It 21 And thner we see Lhe erlry or the -- the
22 BY M5, PILATCWICZ: 22 alsbursement of $2,584, 067,21 on November 30:th
23 Q. Yoah., ILet me be clear. I'm not trying |23 drawing down the Sefton and Liburd deposics,
24 to trick you. I didn't pull that cne because it -- |24 Ther on Cecember 130 1s anather 750,000
25 A, Well, okay. 5o let's be a little bit 28 receip. from Liburd sad Zasa. 2o on this page, you
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heve 2.75 -- veu have ower 3 million of -- you got 1 seT=lemont pavrent, but I could be wrong about
clese to 33.2 million on this page from Seftan cor 7 that.

Zibard ard Cask. I chat §750,3400, as veu could 3 Gut my point is, 50 between —— this trusc
see, was then dishurssed, for the most part, towerd 1 ledger reveals over $5 aillion, sunstantially more
settlement obligaticns. 5 than $5 miliion coming in from Softon and Tiburd

Avd why T gualify “for the most part,” & and Dash. What happened o the rest cf iz, if it
bezause as you go dowh and roconcile the trast 7 didn"l hit here, T don't know.
az@reements, so -- the trust ledger, tihere was a 8 Q.  Okay.
payment to my firm for fees. 2wt 2]l cke other . A, Bnd by "hero, " T mesn Exhibit 10,
entries, Serry-finckley I'rust of 53,000 cn 10 ¢. Are you aware of any offshare accounts
Janvary 3rd, that's & setrlemant payment. 11 that Paul Morabito held?

The Marine Midland wire gcoounis, so Lhe 12 B, Cther than this ona, =0,
disbhursemert on 1 —- Ccaruary 3:st, 7122, that's a i3 Q. Do you currently represent Edward
scttlement payment.  And wien | osay, "settlemenz" 14 Bayuk?
becesuse there were cther coligaticrs ir the i A, I purrently represent Snowshce DUL not
settlemcns besides cash To the Harbsis. So 1€ Edward personally.
there's —- the -- -hose are -- those ronies ave 117 0. Do you currently reprasent Salvatore
coming out cf the §750,0)0 that came “rom Liourd 18 Morabito?
and Dash on Novemnber 30th. L 14 A, Ne.

Ind we coulc just xeep going here.  You 20 M5, PFLATOMICR: Ckay. 1 am through with
tnow, washoe County Treas.rer is a settlzmont. 21 the pertion of the equestions that —- other than the
Thaz's tax payments. fgain, ¥idlard wire account 22 guesticns that deal with Sunerpumper and Snowshoe
on 2/27. Gettlement paywert., Straight_ine 23 and ZHC.

Merchant Capital. OfF the top of oy head, that 24 At this time T am going to suspend the
doesn't ring a kell, kuat T believe that alsc was a 20 depesitior Dased on the zsserted privilege, as T
o Page 11£ o Zage 17
think it's an issue that the Ceurt's going to nave ! 5 EPRE laiial i i RS e o
Lo decide.  So we're rel conclading the depesition : e g0 GREER CHEIR S EFRS 6 S 6
today o you pcrsonally; it's being suspended wi<h I OAC{UTATE fransorlioy g LeELLImULy given by var oLn
1M poz.enLia1 of bri:lging Yot forYels ded o Or , .2 the zbuve-eniilled ziulon on Quickoer 20, 27204
deterrired that the zitorney-client orivilege is f
nroper’y waived by Lhe tristee, T

MR. GILMOEE: But you have corcluded ' T e
rgnaltorney-client privileged guestions with a
respect “¢ the sukpocna of this wiinesa? 6 Sworn to selors me fhiis

IS, PILATOWICH: Correct. 10

ME. GILMCEE: Okay. Le.'s cless chis 17 any of 2015
reccrd, ther. B

M5, PILATCEICE: If wou have ne questicns, e
we can close this record.

iDepositicn corcluded at 1:45 p.m.; e METRRY IR L

* £} v '_s\
13
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0
-
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF KEVADA (RENO)}

IN RE: . Case No. 13-51237-qgwz
PAIJL R, MORABITO, . Chapter 7

Debtox. .
WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR., . Adv. No. 15-05046-gwz

Chapter 7 Trustee for the Estate
cf Paul Anthony Morabito,

Plaintiffs,
V.

PAUL ANTHONY MORABRITO, an
individual; MEADOW FARMS TRUST,
a Delaware Trust; EDWARD BAYUK,
an individual and grantor and 5
trustee of Thc Meadow Farms Trust;.
VIRSENET, LLC, a Delaware
limited liakility company; ’
USHF CELLULAR COMMUNICATIONS, LLC,,
a Delaware limited liability 8
cempany; and LIPPES MATHIAS . 300 Booth Street
WEXLER FRIECMAN, LLP, a New York . Reno, NV §39101
limited liability partnership,
. Tuesday, December 22, 2015
Cefendants. . 9:13 a.m.

- . - - - - . . - . . . + -

TRANSCRIPT OF MOTION FOR SCHEDULING CONFERENCE RELATING TO
TRUSTEE'S MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION (11 U.S.C. 105)
FILED BY JOHN F. MURTHA ON BEHALF COF WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR.;
MOTION TG CCMPEL RESPONSES TO DEPOSITION QUESTICNS FILED BY
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ ON BEHALF QF WILLIAM A. LECNARD, JR.
BEFORE THE HONORARBLE GREGG W. ZIVE
URITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT JUDGE

APPEARANCES CONTINUED
Budio Cperator: David Lindersmith, ECR

Transcription Company: Access Transcripts, LLC
10110 Youngwood Lane
Fishers, IN 46038
{855) 873-2223
WWW . ACCeSSTranscripis . com

Proceedings reccrded by electronic sound recording,
transcript produced by transcription scrvice.
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APPEARANCES:

For the Zebtor:

For Edward Bayuk
and Meadow Farms
Irrevocable Trust:

For Virsenet, LLC:

For USHF Cellular
Communicaticns. LLC:

For Berry-Hinkley
Incdustries, JH Inc.,
and Jerry Herbst:

For Chapter 7 Trustee:

ACCSS TRANSCRIPTS, [1LC

Rcbhison, Belausteguil Sharp and Low
By: FRANK C. GILMORE, ESQ.

71 Washington Street

Reno, NV 89503

(775%) 322-3151

Eartman & Hartman

BY: JEFFREY L. HARTMEN, ESQ.
510 W. Plumb Lane, Suite B
Feno, NV 89509

Walter & Wilhelm Law Group
By: HOLLY ESTES, ESQ.

205 E. River Park Circle,
Fresno, CA 93720

{559) 435-9800

Suite 410

Kaempfer Crowell

BY: JANET L. CHURB, ESQ.

50 W. Liberty Street, Suite 700
Rero, NV B9501

{775) 398-4740

Holland & Hart

BY: TIMOTHY A, LUKAS, ESQ
5441 Kietzke Lane, Suite 200
Reno, NV BS9511

{(775) 327-3000

Garman Turner Gordon

BY: GERALD M. GORDON, ESOQ,
650 White Cr., Suite 100
Las Vegas, NV 8911%

(725) 777-3000

Woodburn & Wedge

BY: JOHN F. MURTHA, ESQ,
6200 Neil Road, Suite 5C0
Reno, NV 89511

{(775) 688-3000

111 1-855-USE-ACCESS (873-2223)
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TELEPHONIC APPEARANCES:

For Virsenet, LLC:

ACCESS TRANSCRIPTS, LLC

BakerHostetler

By : JOSEPH M. ESMONT, ESQ.
1500 East 9th St., Suite 3200
Cleveland, CH 44114

(216) &21-0200

BakerHostetler

BY: PAMELA &. JOHNSON, ESO.
811 Main St., Suite 1100
Housten, TX 77002

{713} 751-1600

I_[l 1-855-US):-ACCESS (873-2223)

855



10
Ll
12
13
14
15
ie

17

13
20
21
22
23
24

25

(Proceedings commence at 9:13 a.m.}

THE COURT: In the Matter of Paul A. Morabito, the

yi- ) | iTCEaE I L ILE i LEROAT 1 iN ACVECSary,

May I have appearances in that matter, please?

MR. GORDON: Good morning.

MR. ESMONT: Ycur Honror, Joseph --

TEE COURT: In the —--

MR. ESMONT: -- Esmont on behalf --

THE COURT: 2Zxcuse me. In the courtroom first,
please. Thank you.

MR. GORDON: Good morning, Yocur Honor.

MR, ESMCNT: Apclogies.

MR. GORDON: Gerald Gordon of Gordon Silver -- I'm
sorry, of Garman Turner Gordon; I keep on doing that -- on
behalf of the trustee, special counsel to the trustee, in the
adversary matter.

MR. GILMCRE: Good merning, Your Honor, Frank
Gilmore and Jeff Hartman cn behalf of the debtor.

M5. ESTES: Goed wmorning, Your Honecr. Holly Estes on
behalf of Edward Bayuk and the Meadows Farm Irrevocable Trus:.

M5. CHUBB: Good morning, Your Honor. Janet Chubbk
for Virsenet, LLC, and on the telephcne are my co-counsel,
Pamela Johnson and Joseph Esmont. His pro hac has been
granted; her application has been filed, but I don't know if

it's been granted vyet.

ACCESS TRANSCRIPTS, LLC =—'|—'~ 1-853-USE-ACCESS (873-2223)
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THE COURT: All righz.

MR. MURTHA: Good afternocorn, Your Honor -- good
morning, Your Honor. John Murtha appearing on behalf of the
trustee as the plaintiff in the adversary.

MR. LUEKAS: Good merning, Your Honor. Tim Lukas on
behalf of the USHF Cellular Communication.

THE COURT: By telephone, please? May I have
appearances?

MS., JOHNSON: Your Heonor, Pamela Johnson cn behalf of
Virsenet.

MR, ESMONT: And, Your Honor, Joseph Esmont on behalf
of Virsenet.

THE COURT: Are there any other counsel on the
telephone? I thought yeou were going to have a couple lawyers
from your firm, Mr. Gordan.

MR. GCRDON: I thought they were. I thought I heard
Mr. Weisenmiller earlier. They're not going to say anything,
Just --

THE COURT: Well, I'm assuming that ail argument is
goling to be made by counsel in the courtroom. Is that
accurate?

MR. GILMORE: That's accurate from my end, Your
Honor,

TEE COURT: All right, because that's what I assumed

All right. On November 24th, T signed an order

ACCESS TRANSCRIPTS, LLLC '—'—I—- 1-855-USE-ACCESS (873-2223)
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shortening time in the adversary, Docket Number 21, to conduct
ling nfereance. And chat? ill I'm going to do. I am
actua SUDSE .

I know that there was a complaint filed on Cctober
13th of this year. T have the complaint in front of me. I've

I certainly haven't studied it. I have read the
answer that was filed by the debtor on December 3rd, Docket
Number 25, I read Virsenet's answer filed on Cecember 10th,
and I read USHF Cellular Communication's answer filed on
December 1.

The -- all of the answers demanded Jjury trials, and
if I read them correctly, there's no consent to the Bankruptcy
Court conducting the jury trial. And cbvicusly at some point
there may have tc be a determination of whether this matter and
the issues are Stern-related issues, and if so, this Court
would not then have ceonstitutional authority to enter & final
judgment.. And in the absence of consent, either implied or
express, and certainly none that I can see so far that rise to
the level of implied, then the United States District Court
would have to enter fipal Judgment. This Court would functieon
in a manner analogous to a magistrate judge and could prepare
proposed findings and conclusions and proposed order, and then
the process would be dictated by 28 U.S.C. 157{(c), Federal Rule
of Bankruptcy Procedure 9033, and that would be the steps that

wouid be taken.

ACCESS TRANSCRIPTS, 1T .C Ili 1.855-US1:-ACCESS (873-2223)
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That, of course, is not in front of me today. The
1 L LOE a pIi I H 10N, W L its
K ELT i 1 1
And T have read the motion for prelimirary
njunction, Docket Humber 11, a I read the di ytion of
John Murtha filed in support therecf, Docket Number 12, and it

contains exhibits that I believe are identical to the exhibits

that were attached to the complaint. Is that correct?

ME. MURTHA: That is correct, Your Eonor.

THE COURT: Yes. &11 right. It is the movant's

belief that there is geing te be discovery that must be taken
pricr to the Court conducting the hearing on the preliminary

injunction and that the hearing itself might take some time.

Is that accurate?

ME, MURTHA: That 1s correct, Yocur Honor.

THE €QURT: Is there any disagreement with that by

any of the defendants?

MR. GILMORE: I gon't believe sc, Your Hornor.

MR. LUKAS: Ycur Honcr, in terms of USHFCC, I don'l

believe that the issues -- because the claims essentially are

prohibitation, bar scught against the receipt of furds --

THE COURTY: Well, what it does —-
MR. LUKAS: -- directed to the debtor.
THE COURT: What the -- really, what the motion for

ACCESS TRANSCRTPTS, LLC -'Ll~ 1-855-USE-ACCESS (873-2223)
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preliminary injuncticon, in shorthand, means to me is that the

MR. MURTHA: That is correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: BAll right

MR. MUORTHA: And then can I update the Ccocurt on
30Ire —-

THE COURT: Wait, I just want to make sure that =--
I'm not sure I understood what you just teld me, Mr. Lukas.

MR. LUKAS: The issue is, Your Honocr, there's no
allegations against USHFCC per se in terms of trying tec get any
ownership interest or anything. It's an indirect vis-a-wvis
Virsenet -- it's kind of upstream, if you will. What they're
trying to do to USHFCC, which is similar to Lippes, is saying
don't make any payment distribution --

THE CQURT: That's exactly what they're sayving,

MR, LUKAS: Right, to Morabito, but iz's not a claim
of cwnershig.

THE COURT: And I'm all -- asking do you need any
discovery before I have a hearing on the motion for preliminary
injunction? That's all I'm asking.

MR. MURTHA: The answer to that, I believe, is ves,
although we've made some progress in getting it resolved by
stigulation.

THE COURT: All right. And then %tc hear from counsel

ACCRSS TRANSCRIPTS, LLC —I—“ 1-855-USLE-ACCILSS (873-2223)
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from Virsenet, please.

M5. CHUBB: Yes, Your Honor. We agree that -- I
don't know whether we'll be taking any discovery or not. I =--

THE COURT: All right.

MS. CHUBE: But it deperds tc some extent on what the
trustee --

THE COURT: Mr. Gilmore, first you said you thought
you didn't disagree, then you stood up.

MR. GILMORE: I don't disagree with the Court's
assessment &s to Mr. Murtha's regquest for the necessity for
discovery. If Mr. Murtha -- the trustee wants to cbtain the
reiief they've sought in the motion, there's certainly going to
be required depositions and exchange ¢f discovery.

THE COURT: I totally agree wifth that.

MR. GILMORE: From the debtor's perspective, 1 agree
with that. Frem the perspective of USHFCC or Lippes or perhaps
the Meadow Farms trust or whomever, I don't believe any
discovery would be regquired because, as I understand, there's
likely to be a stipulation that no pavments will be forthcoming
from any of those perscns or entities to the debtor, indeed,
and there 15 a possibiiity even a stipulation vis-a-vis the
trustee and the debtor that would likely cccur pefore the
discovery even takes place.

TEE COURT: Well, that certainly would be the

preferable way of doing it. It would holid down the

ACCESS TRANSCRIPTS, LI.C ;I-'L 1-855-USE-ACCESS (§73-2223)
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administrative expense for the state and, of course, eliminate

Ms. Chubkbb?

MS. CHUBB: Well, we're trying very hard to work all
of that out.

THE COURT: Good.

MS. CHUBB: But there might be distributions. They
would be

THE COURT: I'm not here Lo -- I don't want to know
about distributicns. All I havc in front of me is the request
for a scheduling conference so that the motion can come on.

What T will tell you, my time is pretty well taken up
for the next three months, sc you have plenty of time to do
whatever discovery you need, plenty of time to enter into any
stipulations that you need. We really don't have any time. 1In
fact, I have a two-week trial set that I had to shorten to one
week, and I'll make sure it only lasts one weck, that —-- I
don't think I have any time until April now. Is that correct?

THE CLERK: That's correct, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. What -- give me a date in April -
if you do not arrive at a consensual resolutior, I think you
need at least a day.

MR. MURTHA: I agree. Maybe two.

THE COURT: Yeah. 3et aside two days, please.

THE CLERK: Your Honor, that would be April 7th and
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THE COURT: April 7th and 8th, and that's when we'l
have it

MR. MURTHA: At nine o'clock?

THE COURT: We'll start at 10:00 on the 7th because
always get late pleadings and I like tc read them. That's a
Thursday and a Friday.

THE CLERK: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And I don't give up my Fridays. That's
my retirement are my Fridays, so try to get it werked out.

That -- anything else, Mr. Murtha?

MR. MURTHA: DNo, I don't believe sc, Your Honor. We

will start discovery and there righ:t be issues that arise
that

THE COURT: I really encourage =--

MER. MURTHA: -- we have, but --

THE COURT: Okay. I strongly encocurage the parties

to work at it, at some Lype 0f resolution. Maybe there's some

mardatory type of distributions Lhat have to ke made in some
amount . I have ro idea, but I kneow I'm troubled when I see
money go away before we've had a --

MR. MURTHA: Sure,

THE COURT: -- chance o look at the underlying
facrs,

MR. MURTHA: I guess I do have one other issue, You
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Honor.

THE COURT: What's thaz?

MR. MURTHA: With the nearing on April 7th, under the
rules, no opposition to the preliminary injunction motion will
be needed until two weeks previously.

THE COURT: Well, let me set up a schedule. 1I'd want
opposition -- on BApril's -- I'm not going to push it right away
because I want the parties o continue to negeotiate without
incurring the fees that would be incurred in preparing
oppositions at this point. But I would like an -- if it can't
be agreed to, I'd like an opposition filed by Friday, February
10th, and then replies filed by March 10th. And knowing that
there may be discovery, i1f you can't arrive, I will allow
supplements from both sides simultanecusly, and no later than
March 24th. All right?

And the point of the supplements is nct to restate
every argument you've made. Tt's just if there have been any

I nt cetween HMarch Eh and that final date.

Prepare the order, please, Mr. Murtha. Have opposing
counsel sign off under Local Rule 2021.

MR. MURTHA: Yes, Your Honor, will do.

THE COURT: Thank you. The next matter I have on
caiendar was sef pursuarnt tc a notice of hearing on order
shortening time that I signed on November 24, 2015. Of course,

here we are on December 22nd, so it wasn't really all that
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short. And that was Zocket 256 in the main case. The motion
is Docket 452, I've read it, it was filed on November 20th,
and I've read the exhibits attached thereto,

Now, that motion was filed by special counsel for the
Chapter 7 trustee, and then the trustee, through his counsel,
filed & jeinder. Sc in a sense the trustee has filed twoe
pleadings regarding this motion, 1f I've read it correctly.

MR, MURTHA: That s correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: From the -- in the future, do what you
did with the reply. Give me one pleading so I know what the
trustee 1is saying.

ME., MURTHR&: Understood, Your Honor.

TRE COURT: Thank you. There was a limited objection
filed on December 14th, Docket Number 460, con behalf of USHF
Cellular Communications. There has to be an easier way of
referring to that client because I find that it becomes a
tongue twister with all of the initials. So let's see if we
can come up with something that makes sense.

MR. GILMORE: I'll work on it, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yeah, it's just difficult. The debtor
filed an cpposition on December ldth, Docket 461, supporzed by
the declaraticon of Mr. Gilmore, Docket 462. I1've read it ard
I've read the exhibits., There was a stipulaticen for extension
of time. T denied it becavcse it wouldn't have given me any

time to prepare, but I think I also agreed to allow a shorter
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Then I read the declaration of Teresa M. Pllatowicz
filed in suppeort of the motion to compel, that's Docket 464,
There was an omnibus reply filed on December 17th, Docket 466.
and that's 2 far more preferable way for the trustee “o advance
his arguments. I read Docket Number 487, which is another
declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, and there's -- I read 4635,
which is the service.

Are those all the pleadings that have been filed in
support ¢of and in opposition to the motion?

MR. GORDON: Yes, Your Honor.

ME. LUKAS: I believe =0, Your Honor.

MR. GILMORE: I believe that's correct, Your Honor,
yes.

THE CQURT: 0Okay. I did not see any pleadings filed
by Virsenet. 1Is that correct?

MS., CHUBB: Yes, it 1is.

THE COQURT: All right. Then I won't listen to
Virsenet today. Then I have also read the order partially
granting the metion to compel producticn of documents that I
entered on June 12th, 2015, fellowing a hearing on May 13th,
2015. And since there are references to what cccurred at that
hearing of May 13th, I've rezd the transcript, which is Docket
Numper 339, I've annotated it.

I must say that the issues that were before me in May
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are not the same issues that are before me today, factual
&g | ss1e rEEe f i ki ime | L Ehe analys: is

must be different, upon my reading f th ages, and I"11 go

I've read the following cases, among the many that
have e it I by the partcies, and 1f I d not refer t ne,
it just means I don't have it in front of me today. It does
neot mean I didn't read them,

The first is Commodity Futures Trading Commission v.

Weintraub. I'm not going to give the cites. You know what the

cites arc. In that the Supreme Court allowed, after the
applicaticn of balancing test, the trustee to have the ability
tc waive the privilege on behalf of a corporate debtor, and
expressly indicated that it was not making any determination in
the event of an individual debtor, said that iz would be
different considerations,

I've read Swidler & Berlin v. United States. In

fact, I referred to this at the May hearing. It was decided in

1998 and raises some interesting points. I've read In Re

Kincaid, a Ninth Circult case in 1990, which I think clearly

indicates this Court has Jjurisdiction over this matter today.
Page 1165, the Ninth Circult noted:
"Moreover, as the BAP pointed out, determining the
nature and the extent of the case is alsc a

fundamental function of a bankruptcy court and
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1 fundamental to the administration of a bankruptcy
case."

Mereover, you know, when one looks at the Fietz

7|l effect cn the administration cn the estate of the debtor. And
8|l clearly what's before me today does. This is -- involves
9l potential fraudulent conveyance and transfer of property that
10k would be property of the estate and available to debtors.
11 I also read the Murdoch case. Now, this case, which
12| is at 60% F.3d 983, it's a 2010 Ninth Circuit case, refers to
13f| Swidler, and specifically at Page 994, it did not held, I
14] believe, that the balancing test is totally inapplicable in the
15§ Ninth Circuit. Tt is limited, and I think Judge Tighe's
16l reading of it is, T zhink, perhaps broader,
17 And it simply held that the United States Supreme

18| Court in Swidler, guote:

19 "Explicitly stated that it was not deciding whether
20 the attcrney-client privilege micht have to yield to
21 a criminal defendant's constitutional rights.,"

22 It had neothing to do with the crime-fraud exception

23| which the United S3tates Supreme Court in Swidler recognized was
24|l one of twc existing excepticns to the attorney-client

25)| privilege, aleong with the testamentary exception
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411 Swidler dealt with was a posthumous waiver of

testamentary exceptions. And I weuld notice that Murdoch has
not been cited for that proposition except by Judge Tighe, and
thar idge Tighe's decisionm in Girzburg, which I also referred

ANl &8y, 1 1Nd 4 E B.H, i + W

time, and I'm inceorporating by reference, the analysis that I
placed con the reccrd on May 13th of this vear.

This was & motion for reconsiderztion where Judge
Tighe changed her decision based on Swidler and that the
balancing test could not be applied regarding waiver of the
attorney-client privilege. It has not, so far as we can
determine, been followed by any other course. It was not
appealed. 1t's not precedential. It's well-written and I
understand the reasoning.

And Judge Tighe, based upon Swidler, held that there
was no balancing test. She noted that:

"In Swidler, Independent Counsel argued that existing

exceptions to the privilege, such as the crime-fraud

exception and the testamentary exception, make the

impact of one more exception marginal. The Supreme

Court rejected this raticnale.™

She's correct. But that -- but the Supreme Court did

not say there was nro halancing test for either of those two
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exceptions. It just said it wasn't going to create another
gxception. Then, at page 182, as well, in the Ginzburg

P v T i T L] o 5 i =
¥ Ila ENE LB E Wl - =

"Even when faced witk the cuestion of whether a
criminal defendant's constitutional rights teo cause
the attecrney-client privilege to yield, the Ninth

Circuit also relied con Swidler to upheld the trial

court's refusal to waive the privilege."

Well, that's not exactly correct. What it said was
the Supreme Court hadn't decided it, and then held that the
privilege couldn't be waived, over & strong dissent by a number
of judges on the Ninth Circuit, including Judge Kozinski.

And thus I think it may be a reach to say, as this
cpinion states at Page 182:

"Federal commen law simply prohibits the balancing of

the trustee's duties and the need for the information

with the debtor's attorney-client privilege.”

think that's too much. We know that's true for the
creation of a new privilege -- or, excuse me, for the creation
of a new exception to the privilege in Swidler, and Murdoch was
trying to fill the void because it found that the United States
Supreme Court didn't deal with a waiver of a privilege when it
affects a criminal defendant's ceonstitutional rights, including
a right under the confrontaticn clause, pecause that was a

murder case where Mr. Murdoch was convicted when Mr. Dinardo
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kind of pointed his finger at him and -- even though ne had

wl il L8N 8 I - R el o o il ] Tk ITic

that ldentif ition. And one only 18 read Judge Kozrinskil's
#nt to see, in my opinicn, how important that letter was,

but the MHinth Clroult Fuled it wouldn't in. It has

By the way, the only portion of crime-fraud exception
in front of me is fraud. I do not have any criminal -- it's
fraud. It's fraudulent conveyance transfer.

I've alse read Jnited States v. Graf, 2010, Ninth

Circuit case, where it indicates what is covered by the
privilege. There's an eight-part test. I've employed --—
applied that. RAgain, I've read Cutuli, which deals with the
crime -- this is a case out of the Socuthern District of Florida
Bankruptcy, deals with the crime-fraud exception, Page 3 of the
opinion. I've read it. Bazmore out of the Southern District
-- Bankruptcy Court, Southern District of Georgia. By the way,
this involved a state court action.

I've read In re Hotels Nevada. This is a decision by

Judge Markell found at 458 B.R. 560, decided in 2011. Now,
reliance on this case I think has to be careful. First of all,
iz deals with a 2004 exam and certain documents that were
requested to be produced. If you remember, what I -- the
matter that was in front of me earlier in this case were

documents, and the documents themselves are property of the
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estate.

The matter before me today, so far as I can
A= | rmine, Dased I il p | TLLE CL0ONS CThaL Were
Mr. Vacco in his October deposition, and that he refused to
answer upon belng ordered rot to do so by Mr. Gilmore on behalf
of the debtor, because it is not Mr. Vacco's privilege. It is
the debtor's privilege that the debtor invcoked, the same debtor
who 1s not a party to the state court action in which the
deposition was being taken, but is clearly a party in interest
here and it affects property of the estate in the sense of the
distributicns if they are returned to the estate. If the
allegations can bhe proven, this would appear to be the only
court that would have jurisdiction cver Mr. Morabito.

And its jurisdiction over Mr. Morabito is asserting
the privilege that is the critical issue before me. I'm not
going to order Mr. Vacco to say anything cr not to say
anything., Any order I issue will just be dealing with the
privilege that's being asserted of Mr. Morabito.

Then if Mr. Vacco determines that he deoesn't want to
answer, believes it would be inappropriate to answer, I think
then the citation to the -- it's kind of ironic, Federal Rules
of Civil Preocedure that I read, even though it’'s alleged that
it really should be under state law, but assuming that the same
type of provision appiics, then it probably should be

deternined by the court in the district where the depositica is
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being taken, even thcough I believe that there was —-- it was
issued pursuant to state law, the summons was issued pursuant
to -- and subpoenas were issued pursuant to state law.

But nevertheless I'm not determinirg anything
regarding Mr. Vacco except that he was undisputedly counsel for
the debtor and for a number of other clients who are
represented here today. So this may only be the first step in
the process.

I've aisc read In Re Andrews, 186 B.R. 219 (Bankr,

E.D. Va.). 1It's got a good analysis of the crime-fraud

exception. I've read Napster (In Re Napster, Inc.}, 479% F.3d

1078 (9th Cir. 2007); In Re Grand Jury Proceedings, 87 F.3d 377

{9th Cir. 1996); KL CGroup, 829 F.2d 909 (9th Cir. 1987); and
others. So I think I've made the reccrd. I've given you scome
indication of how I've analyzed this matter.

I'm geing to allow some short argument because I have
cther matters that I need te attend to this merning and I just
squeezed this matter in. But -- so I think I'll provide a
tentative conclusion, and I believe that the eight-part test
applies, that there i1s an attcrney-client privilege.

You'll note that in wmy prior decision I ordered a
privilege leg. I still don't see a privilege log here, so all
I have are some disputed guestions. I'm also being asked, I
think, tc find that the waiver is applicable to zll counsel in

-— who may have represented the debter., 1Is that correct?
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MR. MURTHA: That's absolutely correct, Your Honor.

I bel:eve that there has been a prima facie showing
that has nct been rebutted regarding the existence of the fraud
excepticn to the attorney-client privilege. There's certain
badges of fraud that exist -- Cutuli talks abcout those -- to
determine if the moving party has met its burden to make a
prima facle case, and I believe that that has been established.

Remember, we're not -- or I'm not in any way making
any finding regarding the deponent, Mr. Vaccc's, credibility cr
not saying he participated in a fraud. As we know, the case
law says he doesn't even have to be aware of it; it's just if
the atterney's assistance was cobtained in furtherance of the
fraudulent activity. And I'm not even convinced that timing
makes any difference or, in fact, was -- the attorney's
asslistance was closely related.

The query is what the client wanted to accomplish,
whether the client, Mr. Morabito, intended to further some
fraudulent activity and that he engaged counsel to assist in
that activity. The debtor is not subject to the motion to
compel because he was not the deponent, but he is the holder of

the privilege. A&nd that's why there is jurisdicticn, and
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that's why this motion isn't brought under Rule 37. and I'm
not making any determiration of Rule 37,

Moreover, I'm not being asked to enter any type of a
final order or a judgment against Mr. Vacco. Not aware of law
that says there must be in personam jurisdiction over a
deponent whe'’s not a party. And Mr. Vacco himself, who is a --
obvicusly a skilled and knowledgeable practitioner, indicated
that he needed & judicial determination so he could make his
own Jjudgment whether or not he was goling to answer the
gquestions. I don't know of any other court that can make that
determination.

In other words, while related to discovery, what I'm

really being asked to do is not to participate in the discovery

precess except to find whether or not there is a privilege —— I
think there is -- and whether c¢r not it's been waived. By the
palancing test, I think it may -- it has bheen, and whether the

crime-fraud exception applies, and I think it does. But I'm
not going te go any further than find -- making these findings
applicable to this particular deponent. That’'s why it's not an
advisory opinion.

Moreover, this is a procedural issue. It's not
really substantive, and state law does not supply the rule
decision for privilege determination. Moreaver, bpased upon the
citations contained in the opposition, it would appear to me

that both New York and Nevada have a very similar exception
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based upcon fraud, which is the eguivalent of the federal law
crime-fraud exception.

aAnd federal law, and the cases so hold, does
determine the scope of the privilege as it relates to estate
property, and the allegation is that this is estate property
that was improperly or fraudulentiy transferred by the debtor.

Moreover, there are a2 number of issues, even if
timirg was important, that Mr. Vacco already testified to that
he had no knowledge of, or didn't, at least, until scmetime
near the time that he terminated his relationship with
Mr. Morabito, which was in 2013. Specifically I'm talking
about the septen {phonetic) transfers by Mr. Morabito.

OCne thing that is a little bit perplexing tc me is
the state court action in which the deposition was taken. It's
not been removed. It's not in this court. Is that correct?

ME . GCRDONM: Your Honeor, we were not able to remove
it pursuant to the rules bhecause of the manner by which it was
filed in that gap periocd between -- we were noi able te do it,
so it had to stay in state court. So what we did was we
substituted in the trustee =-

THE COURT: I know. The trustee is now a party. I
read that.

MR. GORDON: And we substituted ocut Mr. Morabito.

THE COURT: The adversary in which I cecnducted the

status conference this meorning, does that contain similar
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allegations to the allegations that are in the state court
action?

MR. MURTHA: Only in that it's a fraudulent transfer
case, Your Heneor. But it has nothing to do with the Zssues
that are in place in the state court issue -- state cour:
matter. For example, we're not addressing rcal property
transfers. We're not addressing the payment of --

THE COURT: In the adversary.

MR. MURTHA: 1In the adversary, that's correct. Our
adversary focuses on the transfer of whatever interest the
debtor may have had in USHFCC, and it deals with that cnly.

MR. LUKAS: TIf I can correct, you mean in Virsenet.

ME., MURTHA: In Virsenetf.

THE COURT: Virsenet, okay.

MR. MURTHA: Genericaliy, I refer to it as the
USHECC.

THE COURT: All right. You've heard my tentative
conclusion. I'll hear argument from the trustee,

MR. GORDON: Again, good mecrning, Your Honor. T will
keep it very short given the Court's comments and summary
conclusicons. Just a few things. ©One is the Court is
absolutely correct, we were trying tc be very careful in that
this is not directed at Mr. Vacco. This is directed at the
holder of the privilege, and in this case i1t's the debtors.

and I use the word "debtors™ as CKNC and Mr. Morabito.
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THE COURT: I forgot to mention pecause CNC 1s also z
debtor. That's a corporate debtor and Weintraub makes it very
clear that the trustee has that privilege.

MR. GORDON: The second point I'd like to clarify is
the Court has talked about the privilege log. In fact, when
the CTourt reviewed the transcript of Mr. Vacco's deposition,
there was a lengthy discussion with regard to both Exhibit 1
ard Exhibit 2. Exhibit 1 was a subpoena for documentation
issued to Mr. Vacco. Exhibit 2 was the response from
Mr. Vacco. And they're both attached to the deposition.

In the response, Mr. Vacco -- in the subpoena
response, Mr. Vacco states in paragraph LMWF, which is
Lippes --

THE CCURT: That's Lippes.

MR. GORDON: -- objects to each paragraph of the
document demand fto the extent that paragraph seeks privileged
infermation, preprietary information, or other information that
has been gathered or prepared in the course of litigation or
which is otherwise subject to the lawyer-client privilege, the
accountant-client privilege, the jeint defense privilege, the
husband-wife privilege, the work product doctrine, or any other
appiicable privilege or immunity, including trade secrets,
proprietary information, information that is confidential
pursuant to a statute or a court order, confidential business

information, cther information subject to an exception of

ACCESS TRANSCRIPTS, LLC '—l—? 1-853-USE-ACCESS (873-2223)

878




10
11
12

13

18
18
20
21
22
23
24

25

27
privacy cr confidentiality, information described by this
paragraph as referred tc herein as privileged.

Now, he did in each -- Mr. Vacco and Lipoves did, in
each of the responses, assert that privilege subject to
whatever documentation that's already been produced, which is
basiceally billing records and that -- the two twc-page Lrust
account documents for USHFCC and Mr. Morabito.

In fact, in the deposition, in response —o -— on
Page 12, beginning at Line 16, here's a question from
Ms. Pilatowicz.

"Q Ckay, if vou could turn to Page 2 of Exhibit 2 and look

down at Number 4, the general objections, it says LMWA further

objects to any -- each paragraph of the documert, and to the
extent it requests information subject to a client -- attorney-
client privilege held by" -- I believe that's a typoc -- "a

corporate client entity of LMWA that is not a party to these
procesedings?"
" Correct.™

So there is no privilege log, as the Ceourt said.
There has keen response whatscever, obviously, from Mr. Vacco
since he's nct the target cf this motion.

THE COURT: The privilege log shculd come from the
debror,

MR. GORDON: That's exactly right.

THE COURT: Well, maybe both debtors.
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MR. GORDON: But when the Court salid there wasn'it a
-—- there is a subpoena, there were deccuments reguested. There
-— Mr., Vacco did --

THE CCURT: Okay.

MR. GORDCON: -- refuse to produce any of those
documents.

THE COURT: That's -- the documents, I —-- ir that
case, I believe the documents then would constitute property cof
the estate. The Ninth Circuit has seo held.

MR. GORDON: Not Section 541. T mean, there's no
Section 542, turnover by the trustee, but it's clear, the
exception to Section 541, and as we cite back to the very
genesis of that, which 1s 28 U.S5.C. 157(2) (b} {1), which is
administration of the case,

I appreciate how limited this is, and basically,
based on what I believe will be the Court's order and the
clarity of the Court's order, we will g¢ back and depose --
further depose Mr. Vacco since his deposition was suspended,
not concluded.

However, I would point out something, and this is
really where the trustee needs to go, but I will point it out.
This -- as the Court comrtented, this is not going to be the
first or last hearing in this regard. If the Court locks wvery
clear -- carefully at the objection from Mr. Gilmore, he made

the objection on behalf of the debtor, which I assume was
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Mr. Morabite, not the debtor CHNC.

THE COURT: That's what I assumed, as well.

MR. GORDOW: But he alsc made the objection on behalf
of the other defendants. So I imagine we're going to be bhack
here on the issue of the joint client exception, which --

THE COURT: I don't nave it in front of me.

MR, GORDON: And we will gc further on that. But

that's basically what I believe is where the Ceocurt is. T would
also point cut the Ginzburg case. In Ginzburg, they -- this is

what the Court saild with regard to the crime-fraud exception,
this alsc has no bearing aon the well-sstablished crime-fraud
excepticn, which the trustee has stipulated does not apply
here. So in Ginzburg, all the Court had was the balancing of
the equities. I think we meet both tests, but the crime-fraud
exception 1s clear. A& fraudulent conveyance matter is crime-
fraud.

THE COURT: The balancing is for the waiver of crime-
fraud is the exception --

ME. GCRDON: And with regard to the balance, I mean,
ultimately what it comes down to on the balance is pretty
simple. You balance the —-

THE COURT: Well, my tentative conclusion was a belt
and suspenders.

MR. GORDCN: Yes, But in essence, in the balancing

test, ¥our Honor, vou look at the interest of the debtor and
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tne preservation of the privilege versus the interest of the

tea. The debtor iz not party t this. We're not seceking

THE COURT: The transferees,

MR. GORDON: Pardcen me?

THE COURT: The transferees.

MR. GORDON: The transferees. The interest to the
estate is to maximize the estate for the benefit of the
creditors, to provide -- and to carry out the burden and the
cbligations of the trustee, and that is to maximize an estate.
We bkelieve that the interests of the debtor are minor in this.
He did this transaction back in 2010. He has nothing coming
back te him. He has nothing that he has to give up. As the
Court said, we said, he's not a defendanrt. Therefare, I really
think the balancing of the -- balancing test is met.

THE COURT: As to the objection filed by Mr. Lukas, I
believe you've addressed that ir the reply and his concerns
have been --

MR. LUKAS: It avpears toc be so, yes, Ycur Hanor.

THE CCURT: Thank vyou.

MR. GORDON: Yeeh, we're --

THE COURT: Yeah. I --

MR, GORDON: -- not focused on USHFCC, In fact, to
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pe candid with the Court, we look at USHFCC as being the golden
goose, or the golden egg in this case. That's where we believe
the value is as --

THE COURT: The licenses and such.

MR. GCRCON: And where the trustee is going in the
adversary.

THE COURT: Qkay.

MR. GORDON: We have no intent to have any impact
whatscever on USHFCC. We wish it well and we hope it thrives.

THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Gilmore.

MR. GILMORE: Thank ycu, Your Honor. Your Henor, I
think the debtor has the right to rely on the reguest sought in
the motion. What we have here is a motion that's very clear as
to what relief it seeks, and then we have an about-face by
counsel at the table.

The moticn says we are seeking -- the trustee is
seeking an corder directing Dennis Vacce to respond to
categeries of questicns asked in a deposition, paren, in the
state court, for which Vacco was instructed not to respond by
counsel for the debtor. That's what the motion seeks, and that

is what the debtor resvonded to,

The Court is absolutely correct. In the deposition
transcript, T was very clear. I said to Ms, Pilatowicz, den't
direct those arguments at Mr. Vaccoc. It's not his privilege.

He doesgn’t have a deog in this fight. If Mr. Morabito wishes to
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waive the privilege or assert the privilege, that's a
Mr. Morabito issue. She said, well, I'm gcing to instruct Mr.
Vacco to answer, and T said, I'm going to assert the privilege
on behalf cf the dektor. She said fine, we're going to have a
meticn. I said, okay.

I was alsc very careful to asscrt only the privilege
where I was confident and assured that it applied. If you want
to talk about general things that the debtor and ccunsel did or
that Mr. Vacco did with other defendarts, have at it. But as
soon as she sald, what advice did you give to which
Mr. Morabito did not follow, I =zaid, well, I'm sorry, counsel,
there you are asking for advice and that's clearly attorney-
client privilege and I'm going to have to assert the objection.
So this motion is entirely premised on those disputed guestions
raised in the deposition.

Then the trustee comes in and bootstraps everything
it wants Into this motion and intc a joinder that essentially
says, Your Honeor, I'm going to refer you to the February letter
which was sent to me, it was sent to Mr. Hartman, it was sent
te Mr. Vacco, that basically says since you represent the
debtor, I get everything you've ever said or dene with respect

to advice you've given to the debtor.

L]

THE COURT: I'm not making any finding in that
regard.

ME. GILMCRE: Okay. The point I'm meking on that
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tcday, Your Honor --

THE COURT: The big fear that I read in your

P ition would be even -- not only the matters that Mr. Vacco
raered to testify to, but perhaps what your firm
bght Be reguired o testify about, and I'm not going there

MR. GILMORE: Sure. Okay.

THE COURT: Not at all. Done.

MR. GILMORE: And so I would ask the Court net to go
there. I would ask the Court --

THE COURT: I just salid I wasn't.

MR. GILMORE: The -- to address the issue that is
raised in the moticn, which is is this Court willing to compel
Mr. Vacce, who has not received a subpoena in this matter, to
answer guestions in a state cour: depositicn --

THE COURT: The answer is yes.

MR. GILMORE: The answer is the Court is --

THE COURT: I am.

MR. GILMORE: The Court is -- I think what the Court
said, respectfully, was it's going to issue findings that
essentially render the objections meritless.

THE COURT: Here's how -- here's my thinking. The
cnly reason Mr. Vacco didn't answer the guestions is because he
was teld -- he was instructed rot to by you on bhehalf of your

client. Obvicusly, a lawyer is ¢oing to follow the
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instructions that are giver by you because that was his client.
Done. He even said, I need & ruling from a court. I am gcoing
to give him that ruling. What he chooses to do thereafter is
within his purview, and as I've already said, at that time,
maybe Zclks have to go back to state court and figure out how
to solve this problem.

But I believe that the administration of this estate
is implicated, property of the estate is implicated, that I
have the Jjurisdiction to enter this order, and then what
Mr. Vacco wants to de with it is up to Mr, Vacco. That's why
I'm not telling -- if Mr. VYacco still refuses teo answer the
question, I'm neot willing te say at this time that he'd be in
contempt of this order.

MR. GILMORE: Right.

THE COURT: I'm nect -- understand, I think it was a
limited motion. My order is going to be limited.

MR. GILMORE: Okay. So --

THE COURT: I did it the last time we were here. I
think the attorney-client privilege 1s extraordinarily
impcertant for all the reasons cited by the cases. At the same
time, in a bankruptcy conrtext, when you read the cases, there
can be even a greater necessity for scme -- for discovery
either under the fraud exception or if you're taking a look at
whether or not the trustee has the ability to walve the

privilege on behalf of the debtor.
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I -- in this instance, I found both. If I'm wrong on
cne, I'm probably right on the other because I just want this
matter to move forward in a way that I think is efficient and
econecmical and protects the debtor's rights.

MR. GILMORE: With tha= clarification, I interpreted
the Court's tentative ruling to essentially sav nothing more
than the Court finds a prima facle showing which would then
potentially open the docr te subsequent proceedings, either in
New York or potentially the state court where that then --

THE COURT: And cnly regarding Mr. Vacco.

MR. GILMORE: Okay. With that, I'1ll skip down and
address only a few other things. The Court's reference to the
privilege log, I think, was first with regard to the May
proceeding and then secondary with regard to

THE COURT: But if I --

MR. GILMORE: - today's proceeding With May, it
didn't really matter, if Your Honor remembers, becausa —-

THE COURT: ©Oh, I remember well.

ME. GILMORE: -- there was no privilege asserted,
There —--

THE COURT: I know why I ruled.

MR. GILMORE: Okay.

THE CCURT: I read the transcript.

MR. GILMORE: There would be no privilege log

previded in this proceeding because the motion says we want
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Mr. Vacco to answer twe guestions and nething more.

THE COURT: And everybody has given me those
questicns. I've read the —-

MR. GILMORE: Ckay.

THE COURT: -- declaraticns. 1I've read the
transcript. I understand that, but I'm alsc well aware that
cne of the recascns this motion was filed and gne of the reasons
you've opposed 1t 1s everybody is trying to find scme guidance
so you're not back here the next time there's a third question
that's asked. And that's what I've tried to do.

ME. GILMORE: Okay.

THE CQURT: And if you want to come back, great.
That's what I'm here for.

MR, GILMORE: Now, I understand the Court's tentative
ruling c¢n the prima facie showing. I certainly don't want Lo
concede that. I don't think my oppositicn —--

THE COURT: I'm not asking you to.

MR. GILMCRE: -- concedes that, so -- but I won't

disputed questions, the ==

THE COURT: The disputed guestions, those that were
actually asked at the deposition.

MR. GILMORE: Correct, correct. And I understand the

Court's tentative ruling to say, well, the Cour<'s tentative

ruling weould involve any other pctential guesticons where we
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coculd have been there 211 day and she would have beer asking
various guestions and I would have been asserting the
objection,

THE COURT: &nd I -- and there are number of cases
that say there bas to ke a specific question and a specific —-—
but usually those arise in the Fifth Amendment areas and not so
-- not 2ll the time when you're raising attorney-client
privilege. I think there can be just we're going to assert the
privilege. I think in the ciwvil action, the courts understand
the eccnomics. That's how T took it.

MR. GILMORE: Okay. So my reguest for a further -
te further box exactly what the Court's ruling today is,

Mr. Vacco's depcsition involved a very discrete set of
transfers that are not in any way implicated by the adversarial
proceeding.

THE COURT: Which is why I asked the question,

MR. GILMORE: Ckay. So if I understand the Court's
tentative today, the Court's suggesting that with respect to
those discrete transactions, what we call sort of the
Superpumper transactions

THE COURT: The ones where thers were appraisals and
why they were done and who -- and I know -- that's why I kind
of wonder what this fight is really about because I alsc read
what Mr. Vacco did answer, and he was trying tc separate

Mr. Morabito's brother and Ms. Estes' client from Paul Morakito
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ard distribute them fairly. Well, I think that's a real good

question for the trustee to examine is Just how fair are these.

MR. GILMGRE: Okay. And --

THE COURT: I thought Mr. Vacco tried to answer the
gquesticns to the best of his ability subject to the limitation
that you impcsed upon him.

MR. GILMORE: 5o did I. And I kelieve discovery has
only somewhat commenced in the state ccurt action, the
Superpumper action. What the trustee, Mr. Murtha, seeks is
something totally unrelated to what was geoing on in the state
ccurt action. BAnd what I'm primarily here today to understand
for the Ceurt's tentative ruling is the letter that I received
and that Mr. Vacco and Mr, Murtha received from the trustee
that essentially says I'm trying teo find out what the financial
condition of the debtor 1s, and in my effort to do so, 1'm
waiving all of your client's applicable privileges.

THE COURT: Then --

MR. GILMORE: That's not where the Court's going

today.

THE COURT: I do not -- as I'm saying, if you take a
look at the case law, if you take a lock -- I can't remember
the particular case now, put the one in which there was a —- it
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was turnover, it was a 542 action that also implicated 541

turnover i undes 12, hat"s a little bit different than what
I have here, That's why I'm not willing tc go as far as the
joinder zsked me to go.

MR, GILMORE: Okay. If the Court has no further
questions of me, that would be my =-

THE COURT: I don't think so. Anybody else?

MR. GORDON: You're absolutely right, Your Honor.
This is -- there's no 542 actiocn before you. That would be
brought by the trustee in the case in chief, and we'll see what
the trustee does in that regard.

I would make the following: That the Court -- and I
think we're very clear in our points and authorities. We're
locking te Mr. Vacco to answer the questions. The privilege
has been imposed. We short circuited --

THE COURT: And let me give you a hini, if you want
te avoid some of this. Maybe yvou don't, maybe bhecause it's a
state law issue. But since it affects the debtor's privilege

and assertion of that privilege, I weculd do the same thing that

I do in matters that are -- in any adversary pending in front
of me. If you have a questicn on privilege, pick up the
telephone.

Mr. GORDON: And, Ycur Honor, what T was --
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THE COURT: We'll go on the record right there,
MR. GORDON: What I was going to say as a suggestion

toc the Court was exactly that; that we will recommence the

;k Aaddit nal gquestions. I would --

THE COURT: I'm not campelling anybody te do that.

MR. GORDCN: Wopc.

THE COURT: There may be --

MR. GORDCN: Nope,

THE CCURT: -- other issues that I'm not aware of.

MR. GORDON: Necpe, we will alsc very clearly, in that
record, deal with the subpoena and the refusal to produce
documents and try to figure out what documents there are. Part
cf it was short circuited. I don't even know what documents he
has. I assume communications, et cetera. We don't really
know, and that's fine.

I will tell the Court that I would expect that
Mr. Gilmore will reimpose the -- or assert the privilege on
behalf of the joint, and that will bring us back here.

THE COURT: Then I would -- my only guidance I'd
provide is that 1f that is going to cccur, I mean, discuss it
in advance. You folks be ready at the time of the deposition
to make cogent argument at that time. If I can't resoclve it on
the telephone, I'll set a briefing schedule. But let's not --

we're all -- I've got nothing but good lawyers in this rocm.
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Let's not -- I don't think anybedy's playing hide the ball.
Let's not do i1t. Make your positions known Lin advance, and
then if you can't work them out and 1if I can't -- I'il attempt
to do it telepheonically. If I can't do it, then we'll come
back here.

MR. GORDON: Understood.

TEBE COURT: Tet's try to be efficient and rnot Incur
any administrative expense on the state's behalf or any
urnecessary attorneys’' fees on behalf of any of the other
parties in interest, if we can avoid it. That's what I'm
seeking to do.

MR. GORDON: 2And I understand that. We'll
caordinate, obviocusly, with Mr. Gilmore. We put our positions
on the record in terms cf the brief. We know what it is.

THE COURT: &nd so to Mr. Gillmore, I have no
problem --—

MR. GORDON: TUnderstood.

THE COURT: -- with the conduct of -- with any
counsel, including Mr. Vacco, up to this point, no preoblem at
all,

MR. GORDON: No. And by the way, as we said in our
pleadings, this has nothing to do with Mr. Vacco.

THE COURT: 1 already =aid that.

MR. GORDON:; Yeah. Aand we'wve said that also, Your

Honor.
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THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GILMORE: One last thing, if vou don't mind, Your

Hecnor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GILMORE: One -- ten seconds. When —-

THE COURT: Don't ever say that because you can't do
ita

MR. GILMORE: It will be ten seconds for me, I
promise you that. When the Court says it would like cogent
arguments in the event of & further dispuze, would the argument
be related tc the relationship between the advice sought and
the fraud asserted?

THE CCURT: Whatever you want.

ME. GILMORE: Okay.

THE COURT: I'm not going to limit what your argument
can be.

MR. GILMORE: Well, I'm thinking in terms of pointing
it to where --

THE COURT: I —-

MR. GILMORE: -- the Court would be going.

THE COURT: I don't know. And it might be helpful --
and you can think about this. I won't do an adviscry opinion,
but you could be -- both folks could submit to me a short brief
in a&dvance of deposition if you think these issues should come

up so that I could be briefed gn them. Not that I would issue
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an opinion -- I wouldn't -- but at least then I’d have your
authority. And I*'d limit you each to ten pages, tell me what
you think may come up at the deposition, and let me read it.

And then I cen do it by telephcne rather than brirging you back

here.

MR. GCRDON: That's --

MR. GILMORE: Urderstoocd.

MR. GORDON: From our standpoint, that's an excellent
idea. It would be in the joint -- whatever the defenses are,

whatever the claims are, and -

THE COURT: Do a joint or you can do separate, I
don't care.

MR. GORDCN: Qkay.

THE COURT: Just simultaneous. Let me have it, let
me read it before your deposition. Get it to me in plenty —-

MR. GORDON: That's fire with us.

THE COURT: -- of time so0o I can read it. That way we
can save scme time and money.

MR. GILMORE: 1I'd prefer to not do the briefing and
noet have the cbjecticns, and not have objecticnable guestions,
BibiEN==

THE COURT: Yeah, and I'm sure he'd just as scon --

MR. GILMORE: -- I don't always get my way.

THE COURT: Well, you know what? That choice is

yours. Ckay.
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MR. GORDON: Thank ycu, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Gorden, I'm going to order you
T, e - - & - T Tl i ki i . = 1 it b}

| | [ = H 3 i d

the cdialogue that has occurred since I entered that tentative
reccerd pursuant to Federal Rule of Bankruptcy Procedure 7052
that incorporates by reference Federal Rule of Civil Proccdure
52. And we'll go from there. You're scheduled. B&nd I'd put
ir the order that the preocedure that we've established for
assertion of any privilege in future deposition of Mr. Vacco,
and that way it's clear and we can go forward.

MR. GORDON: Will do. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I wish you all the happiest of holidays.
Thank vyoun very much.

THE CLERK: All rise.

(Proceedings concluded at 10:13 a.m,)
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The ungprsigned has reviewed the objection to
proposdH order, the response, the transcript of
the Decgmber 22, 2015 hearing and the
underlyihg pleadings prior to executing this

by 17

Honorable Gregg W. Zive
4 United States Bankruptey Judge

Ek}ered on Docket
Fepruary 03, 2016

GARMAN TURNER GORDONI,LP
g || GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 229

9 | E-mail: ggordon@gtg.legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
10 [ Nevada Bar No. 9605

E-mail: tpilatowicz@glg.legal
MARK M. WEISENMILILER, ESQ.
12 || Nevada Bar Neo. 12128

E-mail: mweisenmilleri@@gtg.legal
13 || 650 White Drive, Ste, 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 80119

14 1 Telephone 725-777-3000
Facsimile 725-777-3112

P Attorneys for William Leonard, Chapter 7 Trusiee
16
17 UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEVADA
18
Inre: Case No.: BK-8-13-51237-GWZ
19 Chapter: 7
PAUL A. MORABITQ,
20 Hearing:
Debtor. Date: Deccember 22, 2015
7] Time: 9:00 a.m.
22 ORDER GRANTING MOTION TQ COMPEL
RESPONSES TO DEPOSITION QUESTIONS
23
24 The Moiion to Compel Responses to Deposition Questions [ECF No. 452] (the |
o “Motion™), filed by William [.eonard, Chapter 7 Trustee (the “Trustee”), by and through his
26 counsel, the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP, with regard to the deposition of Dennis i
27 Vaceo (“Vacco™) in the State Court Case' came on for hearing before the above-captioned Court
28 ! Terms not otherwise defined in this Order are as defined in the Motion.
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Case 13-51237-gwz Doc 502 Entered 02/03/16 10:55:36 Page 2 of 5

on December 22, 2015, at 9:00 a.m. (the “Hearing’). Gerald M. Gordon, Esq. of Garman Tumer
Gordon LLYP appeared as special counsel and John F. Murtha, Esq. of Woodburn & Wedge
appeared as general counsel on behalf of the Trustee. Frank C. Gilmore, Esq. of Robison
Belaustegui Sharp & Low and Jeftrey L. Hartman, Esq. of Hartman & Hartman appeared on

behalf of the debtor Paul A. Morabito (the “Debtor™). Timothy A. Lukas, Esq. of Holland &

Hart appeared on behalf of USHF Cellular Communications, LLC and Janet L. Chubb, Esq. of
Kaempfer Crowell appeared on behalf of Virsenet, LLC. Holly Estes, Esq. of Walter & Wilhelm |
Law Group appeared on behalf of Edward Bayuk and the Meadow Farms Trrevacable Trust, All
other appearances were noted on the record al the Hearing,

The Court having reviewed the Motion and all matters submitted therewith as well as the
oppositions [ECF Nos. 460 & 461] and the Trustee’s omnibus reply [ECF No. 466] filed thereto;
notice of the Motion having been proper; the Court finding and concluding that: (a) the Court has
jurisdiction to hear and decide the Motion; (b) the attorney-client privilege related to Lippes
Mathias Wexler Fricdman, LLP’s (“Lippes Mathias™) production of documents and Vacce’s
testimony during the deposition is that of the Debtor; (c} it is the Debtor’s obligation o provide a |
privilege log with respect to the documents being withheld on the basis of privilege because the
Debtor is asserting the privilege: (d) the invocation of the privilege by the Debtor affects
property of his estate pursuant to Section 541 of the Bankruptey Code that is alleged to have
been fraudulently transferred; (¢) the Trustee has made a prima facie showing of fraud as
required by the crime/fraud cxception to the attorney-client privilege, which showing has not
been rebutted: (f) the inquiry required by the crime/(raud exception is focused on what the client
wanted 1o accomplish — whether the client intended to further some fraudulent activity and
engage counscl 1o assist in that activity; the timing of the legal services or whether the attorney's
legal services were closely related have no effect on whether the crime/fraud cxception is
established; (g) the Trustee has met his burden to waive the Debtor’s attorney-client privilege
under the balancing test; and (h} as a result, the Trustce has, consistent with applicable law,
waived the Dcbtor’s attorney-client privilege with Lippes Mathias and Vacco. Having stated the

Court’s additional findings of fact and conclusions of law on the record at the Hearing. which arc

2
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Case 13-51237-gwz  Doc 502 Entered 02/03/16 10:55:36 Page 3 of &

hereby incorporated herein by reference in accordance with Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil |
Procedurc, made applicable pursuant to Rule 9014 of the Federal Ruies of Bankruptcy
Procedure; and good causc appearing therefore,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED as follows:

1. The Motion is granied as provided herein.

2. The elimination of Debtor’s attorney-client privilege with Lippes Mathias and
Vacco as provided for herein extends to the Disputed Questions that were asked and objected to
in the deposition of Vacco, any other questions that may be asked of Vacco at the continued |
deposition, and any documents that may have been withheld by Lippes Mathias, the Debtor, or
Debtor’s counsel in response to the subpoenas for documents on grounds that disclosure was not
required because of the Debtor’s attorney-client privilege with Lippes Mathias and Vacco.

3 Lippes Mathias and Vacco shall disclose and make available to the Trustec
documents and information related to the representation of the Debtor that would otherwise be
protected from disclosure under the privilege.

4, Within ten (10} calendar days of entry of this Order, the Debtor shall provide the
Trustee a privilege log with respect to all documents withheld on the basis of privilege.

5. The deposition of Vacco shall recommence in the State Court Casc.

6. The partics may submit briefs simultaneously of no longer than ten (10) pages, by !
5:00 p.m. on the fast business day which is ten (10 calendar days prior to the recommenced
deposition, in which (he parties may brief attorncy-client privilege issues and disputes that the
Debior and parties to the State Court Case anticipate arising at the continued deposition to
cxpedite the resolution any additional disputes.

7. ‘The parties shall coordinate with the Court’s staff so that the Court is available
telephonically to resolve any disputes that arise during the continued deposition.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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PREPARED AND SUBMITTED:

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP

/s Mark M. Weisenmiller
GERALD M, GORDON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 229

TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9605

MARK M. WEISENMILLER, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 12128

630 White Drive, Suite 100

Las Vepas, Nevada 89119

Tel: (735) 777-3000

Attorneys for Chapter 7 Trustee.
Wiltiam A. Leoward
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LR 9021 CERTIFICATION

In accordance with LR 9021, counsel submilting this document certifies as follows:

O
[

The Court waived the requircment of approval under LR 9021(b)(1),

No party appeared on the Motion at the hearing or filed an objection to
the Motion.

[ have delivered a copy of this proposed order to all counsel who
appeared at the hearing, and any unrepresented parties who appeared at
the hearing, and each has approved or disapproved the order as stated
below,

FRANK C. GILMORE, ESQ. & JEFIFREY 1., HARTMAN, ESQ. — For
Debtor - DISAPPROVED

TIMOTHY A. LUKAS, FESQ. — For USHF Cellular Communications. .
LLC - APPROVED

HOLLY LSTES, ESQ. — For Edward Bayuk and Meadow Farms
Irrevocable Trust — DISAPPROVED

JOHN F. MURTHA, ESQ. — tor Chapter 7 Trustee — APPROVED
I have certified that under Chapter 7 or 13, that I have served a copy of

this order with the motion pursuant to LR 9014(g), and that no party has
objection 1o the form or content of the order,

Hi#
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GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
650 White Drive, Sie 100
Las Vagas. NV BS119
725-777-3000

2582

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 229

E-mail: ggordon@gtg.legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 9603

E-mail: tpilatowicz@gtg.legal
650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000

Special Counsel to Trustee

FILED
Electronically

2016-02-18 01:.37:49 PM

Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 5375086 : meholick

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF

THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the

Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito,
Plaintiff,
VA,
SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,

individually and as Trustee of thc EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;
and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC,, a
New York corporation,

Defendants.

CASE NO.: CV13-02663
DEPT.NO.: 1

TIME: March 18, 2016
DATE: 10:00 am.

NOTICE OF CONTINUED DEPOSITION OF DENNIS VACCO

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the 18th day of March 2016, at 10:00 o’clock a.m., at

Key Center, 50 Fountain Plaza, Suite 1400, Buffalo, New York 14202, Plaintiff William A. .

Leonard, by and through his special counsel, Garman Turner Gordon LLP, will take the

continued deposition of Dennis Vacco.

The deposition will be taken upon oral examination and stenographically recorded

pursuant to Rules 26 and 30 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, before a Notary Public, or

1of3
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[ || before some other officer authorized by law to administer oaths. The oral examination will

2 | continuc from day te day until completed. You are inviled to attend and cross-examin.

3 AFFIRMATION

7 Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

5 The undersigned does hercby affirm that the preceding document does not contain (he

6 social security number of any person.

7 Dated this 18" of February, 2016. ‘
8

2 GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
10

/s/ Teresa M. Dilatowics

1 GERALD E. GORDON, ESQ.
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
650 White Drive, Ste. 100

13 Las Vepas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000

Special Counsel jor Trustee

28

GiaRAN TURNER GORGON LLP 20of3
G50 White Drive. Ste_ 10
Las Yegas, NV 83118
FAE-VI-3000
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2 CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

3 [ certify that | am an employee of GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP, and that on this
4 || date, pursuant to NRCP 5(b), | am serving a true and correct copy of the attached NOTICE OF ‘
5 || DEPOSITION OF DENNIS VACCO on the parties as set forth below:

6
7 XXX Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope placed for collection
and mailing in the United States Mail, Reno, Nevada, postage prepaid. tollowing
8 ordinary business practices :
9 Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested
10 _____ ViaFacsimile (Fax)
11 — Via E-Mail
12 Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope and causing the same
to be personally Hand Delivered :
13
Federal Express (or other overnight delivery)
i4
15
addressed as follows:
16

Barry Breslow

17 || Frank Gilmore

ROBISON, BELAUSTLEGUIL SHARP & LLOW i
18 1 71 Washington Street

Reno, NV 89503

20 DATED this ___ day of August, 2015.

, An  Employee of GARMAN TURMER
23 GORDON LLP

28

GSARMAN TURNER GORCON LLP 3of3
650 Whaie Drive, Ste, 100
Las Wegas, My 38119
725-777-3000
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Case 13-51237-gwz  Doc 482  Entered 01/22/16 10:43:31 Page 1 of 17
1 Barry L. Breslow, Esq. {(SBN 3023)
Frank C. Gilmore, Esq. (SBN 10052)
2 | ROBISON, BELAUSTEGUL SHARP & LOW
71 Washington Street
3 Reno, Nevada 89503
4 Tel: (775) 329-3151 / Fax: (775) 329-7941
5 Jeffrey L. Hartman, Esq. (SBN 1607)
HARTMAN & HARTMAN
6 | 510 W. Plumb Ln,, Suite B
Reno, Nevada 89509
7 Tel: (775) 334-2800 / Fax: (775) 324-1818
8 Counsel for Paul A. Morabito
9
10 UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEVADA
11 (RENQ)
21 Inre Case No. BK-N-13-51237
13 1 PAUL A. MORABITO, an individual, Chapter 7
14 Debtor. DEBTOR’S OBJECTION TO PROPOSED
ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO
15 COMPEL RESPONSES TO DEPOSITION
16 QUESTIONS
Hearing Date: December 22, 2015
17 Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m.
18
- Debtor Panl A, Morabito (“Morabite™), by and through his counsel, Robison,
20 Belaustegui, Sharp & Low, hereby brings his objection to the Trustee William J. Leonard Jr.’s
21 (“Trustee™) proposed Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to Deposition Questions,
- which was lodged with the Court by Trustee’s counsel after the December 22, 2013, hearing on
5 the Trustee’s Motion to Compel Responses to Deposition Questions (Doc#452). This Objection
” is made and supported by Local Rule 9021(b)(2)(A).
55 STATEMENT OF ORJECTIONS TO PROPOSED ORDER
i The Trustee’s proposed Order goes well beyond the scope of the Court’s oral and
- tentative conclusion that was placed on the record on December 22, 2015. Debtor’s proposed
-8 order is attached hereto as EXHIBIT 1. A redlined version of the Trustee’s Order is attached as
gha;-ipsug.ae“l‘ausmgui,
1 Washmgton 5.
Reng, NV 87503 ! 1
(1353 329-3151
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Robison, Belsustegui,
Sharp & Low

71 Washington St.
Rene, MV 89503
(775)329-3151
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EXHIBIT 2, in order to show the difference between the Trustee’s proposed order and the
Debtor’s proposed order. Debtor takes issue with the following provisions of the Trustee’s
proposed order:

1. Pape 2, lines 18-21, subsection “g”,

The Trustee’s proposed order suggests and implies that there has been a prima facie
showing of fraud as to all advice rendered to the Debtor from Dennis Vacco or the Lippes
Mathias law firm. The Court’s oral findings did not reach so broadly. The issue before the
Court was the advice Lippes and Vacco gave to the Debtor as to the State Court Case
transactions which were the subject of the Motion (Doc #452), to wit: the Debtor’s transfer of the
shares of Superpumper to the State Court Case Defendants. The Court did not find a prima facie
showing of fraud as to all advice rendered by Vacco to the Debtor, or all documents maintained
or created by Vacco on behalf of the Debtor, unlimited in time or in scope. The Debtor has
proposed thet the paragraph include a provision that the prima facie showing has been made only
“as 10 the allegations made in the First Amended Complaint in the State Court Case regarding the
transfer of the shares of Superpumper, Inc., in which Dennis Vacco was counsel for the
transferor and the transferees, . . .”

2. Page 2, lines 23-24.

The Court did not hold that timing of the legal services or advice rendered has no bearing
on the crime/fraud exception. The Court explained that it was “not even convinced that timing
makes any difference .. .” (Transeript, December 22, 2015, p. 22:17-18). Debtor’s proposed
order is more in line with the Court’s findings. Debtor understands that the Court is not
convinced that timing makes any difference, but that is different than Trustee’s order which
states that the timing “has no effect,” which is not what the Court found.

3 Page 2, lines 25-26. subsection *g”.

As with number 1, above, the Trustee has proposed an order that the Trustee has met his
burden, under the balancing test, as to all of Debtor’s attorney-client privilege with Vacco or the
Lippes firm, irrespective of the scope of the advice, and the connection between the advice and

the alieged fraud. Debtor has proposed limiting language more in keeping with the Court’s oral

910
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findings that the balancing test is limited to the issues put before the Court in the Motion, to wit:
the Debtor’s transfer of the shares of Superpumper to the State Court Case Defendants.

4. Page 2, lines 26-27, subsection “h”,

As with number 1, above, the Trustee has proposed an order that purports to waive all of
Debtor’s attorney-client privilege with Vacco or the Lippes firm, irrespective of the scope of the
advice, and the connection between the advice and the alleged fraud. Debtor has proposed
limiting language more in keeping with the Court’s oral findings that the balancing test is limited
1o the issucs put before the Court in the Motion, to wit: the Debtor’s transfer of the sharcs of
Superpumper to the State Court Case Defendants. The Court’s willingness to be available in the
event of Vacco’s continued deposition to render decisions if the parties have “a question on
privilege” confirms that the Court had not entered a wholesale waiver of the Debtor’s privilege
as to Vacco or the Lippes firm. (Transcript, December 22, 2015, p. 39:23-24). Debtor has
proposed limiting language more in keeping with the Court’s oral findings that the waiver is
limited to the issues put before the Court in the Motion, to wit: the Debtor’s transfer of the
shares of Superpumper to the State Court Case Defendants.

5. Page 3, lines 6-11, subsection “2”,

The Court left open the possibility that certain questions asked of Vacco at a continued
deposition, or documents sought from him, would not be subject to the waiver of the Debtor’s
privilege. (Transcript, December 22, 2015, p. 39:23-24). The Trustee’s proposed order provides
that the Debtor’s privilege with Vacco has been eliminated in its entirety. Debtor has provided
proposed language which limits the waiver of the privilege to only those issues which have some
relation to the alleged fraud.

6.  Page 3, lines 12-17, subsections “3.5”.

The Court did not order the production of any documents. Indeed, the Court specifically
stated that it was “not going to order Mr. Vacco to say anything or not say anything.”
(Transcript, December 22, 2015, p. 20:15-17). The issue of production of documents from
Vaceo was not before the Cowrt and the Court did not enter any order on the subject. That

portion of the proposed order violates Local Rule 9021(a)(2).
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1 The Court did not Order any party to produce a privilege log. That portion of the

2 proposed order violates Local Rule 9021(a)2).

3 The Court did not, and cannot, order that the Vacco deposition be recommenced. The
4 State Court has jurisdiction over the Vacco deposition in the State Court Case, and if the

deposition is to be recommenced, it would be recommenced by authority of the subpoena power
of the State Court, irrespective of the privilege issue. That portion of the proposed order violates

Local Rule 9021(a)(2).

o =1 N Lh

IL CONCLUSION
For the reasons set forth above, Debtor respectfully requests the Court enter the proposed
10 order attached hereto as EXHIBIT 1.

11
Date: ] 21,2016 ROBISON, BELAUSTEGUI, SHARP & LOW
e 71 Washington Strect
12 Reno, Nevada 89503
13 HARTMAN & HARTMAN
510 W, Plumb Ln., Suite B
14 Reno, Nevada 89509
15
By: /s/ FRANK C. GILMORE
16 Barry L. Breslow, Esq. (SBN 3023)
Frank C. Gilmore, Esq. (SBN 10052)
17 Jeffrey L. Hartman, Esq. (SBN 1607)
18 Attorneys for Paul A. Morabito
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
Robison, Belaustsgui,
Sharp & Low
T1 Washington 5t. 4
Heng, WV 89503

{7757 329-1151

912




Case 13-51237-gwz

Doc 482 Entered 01/22/16 10:43:31 Page 5 of 17

EXHIBIT 1

EXHIBIT 1
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Barry L. Breslow, Esq. (SBN 3023)

Frank C. Gilmore, Esq. (SBN 10052)
ROBISON, BELAUSTEGU!, SHARP & LOW
71 Washington Street

Reno, Nevada 89503

Tel: (775) 329-3151 / Fax: (775) 329-7941

Jeffrey L. Hartman, Esq. (SBN 1607)
HARTMAN & HARTMAN

510 W. Plurab Ln,, Suite B

Rcno, Nevada 89509

Tel: (775) 334-2800 / Fax: (775) 324-1818

Counsel for Paul A. Morabito

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEVADA

In re: | Case No.: BK-8-13-51237-GWZ

| Chapter: 7
PAUL A. MORABITO,

Debtor. Date: December 22,2015

_| Time: 9:00 am.

[DEBTOR’S PROPOSED]

ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO COMPEL |
RESPONSES TO DEPOSITION QUESTIONS

Page 6 of 17

The Morion tv Compel Responses to Deposition Questions [ECF No, 452} (the
“Motion”), filed by William Leonard, Chapter 7 Trustee (the “Trustee™), by and through his

counsel, the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP, with regard to the deposition of Dennis
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Vacco (“Vacco”) in the State Court Case' came on for hearing before the above-captioned Court

on December 22, 2015, at 9:00 a.m. (the “Hearing’). Gerald M. Gordon, Esq. of Garman Turner
Gordon LLP appeared as special counsel and John F. Murtha, Esq. of Woodburn & Wedge
appeared as general counsel on behalf of the Trustee. Frank C. Gilmore, Esq. of Robison
Belaustegui Sharp & Low and Jeffrey L. Hartman, Esq. of Hartman & Hartman appeared on
behalf of the debtor Paul A. Morabito (the “Debtor). Timothy A. Lukas, Esq. of Holland &
Hart appeared on behalf of USHF Cellular Communications, LLC and Janet L. Chubb, Esq. of
Kaempfer Crowell appeared on behalf of Virsenet, LLC. Holly Estes, Esq, of Walter & Wilhelm

Law Group appeared on behalf of Edward Bayuk and the Meadow Farms Irrevocable Trust. All |

other appearances were noted on the record at the Hearing,

The Court having reviewed the Motion and all matters submitted therewith as well as the

oppositions filed thereto; notice of the Motion having been proper; the Court finding and ]

concluding that: (a) the Court has jurisdiction to hear and decide the Motion; (b) the attomey-
client privilege related to Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman, LLP’s (“Lippes Mathias™)
production of documents and Vacco's testimony during the deposition is that of the Debtor; (c) it
is the Debtor’s obligation to provide a privilege log with respect to the documents being withheld
on the basis of privilege because the Debtor is asserting the privilege; (d) the invocation of the
privilege by the Debtor affects property of his estate pursuant to Section 541 of the Bankruptcy
Code that is alleged to have been fraudulently transferred; (e) as to the allegations made in the
First Amended Complaint in the State Court Case regarding the transfer of the shares of
Superpumper, Inc., in which Dennis Vacco was counsel for the transferor and the transferees, the
Trustee has made a prima facie showing of fraud as required by the crime/fraud exception to the
attorney-client privilege, which showing has not been rebutted; (f) the inquiry required by the
crime/fraud exception is focused on what the client wanted to accomplish — whether the client
mtended to further some fraudulent activity and engage counsel to assist in that activity; the

Court is not convinced that the timing of the legal services or whether the attorney’s legal

! Terms not otherwise defined in this Order are as defined in the Motion.

2
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services were closely related has any effect on whether the crime/fraud exception is established;
(g) as to the allegations made in the First Amended Complaint in the State Court Case regarding
the transfer of the shares of Superpumper, Inc., in which Dennis Vacco was counsel for the
transferor and the transferees, the Trustee has met his burden to waive the Debtor’s attorney-
client privilege under the balancing test; and (h) as a result, the Trustee has, consistent with
applicable law, waived the Debtor’s attorney-client privilege with Lippes Mathias and Vacco as
to the allegations made in the First Amended Complaint in the State Court Case regarding the
transfer of the shares of Superpumper, Inc., in which Dennis Vacco was counsel for the
transferor and the transferees. Having stated the Court’s additional findings of fact and
conclusions of Jaw on the record at the Hearing, which are hereby incorporated herein by
reference in accordance with Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, made applicable
pursuant to Rule 9014 of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure; and good cause appearing
therefore,

IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED as follows:

1. The Motion is granted as provided herein.

2. The elimination of Debtor’s attorney-client privilege with Lippes Mathias and
Vaceo as provided for herein extends to the Disputed Questions that were asked and objected to
in the deposition of Vacco, any other questions that may be asked of Vacco at the continued
deposition, and any documents that may have been withheld by Lippes Mathias, the Debtor, or
Debtor’s counsel in response to the subpoenas for documents on grounds that disclosure was not
required because of the Debtor’s attorney-client privilege with Lippes Mathias and Vacco,
provided that the Trustee can establish, to the Court’s satisfaction, that the questions asked, or
the documents sought, have a connection or nexus between the advice sought and the alleged
fraud.

3 If the Trustee desires to re-commence the deposition of Dennis Vacco, the parties
may submit briefs simultaneously of no longer than ten (10) pages, by 5:00 p.m. on the last
business day which is ten (10) calendar days prior to the recommenced deposition, in which the

parties may brief any attorney-client privilege issues and disputes that the Debtor and parties to

3
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the State Court Case anticipate arising at the continued disposition to expedite the resolution any

additional disputes.

4, The parties shall coordinate with the Court’s staff so that the Court is available |

telephenically to resolve any disputes that arise during the continued deposition.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED:

/s/ Frank C. Gilmore
Barry L. Breslow, Esg. (SBN 3023)
Frank C. Gilmore, Esq. (SBN 10052)
ROBISON, BELAUSTEGUIL SHARP & LOW
71 Washington Street
Reno, Nevada 89503
Tel: (775) 329-3151 / Fax: (775) 329-7941

Jeffrey L. Hartman, Esq. (SBN 1607)
HARTMAN & HARTMAN

510 W, Plumb Ln., Suite B

Reno, Nevada 89509

Tel: (775) 334-2800 / Fax: (775) 324-1818

Counsel] for Paul A. Morabito
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GARMAN THRNER GORDON LLP
GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Nevads Bar No. 229

E-mail: ggordon@gzig. legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9605

E-mail: tpilatowicaidigtp legal
MARK M. WEISENMILLER, FSQ.
Nevada Bar No. 12128

E-mail: mweisenmillerfigiy logal
630 Whitc Drive, Ste. 1(1)

Las Vepas, Nevada 89119

Telephone 725-777-3000

Facsimile 725-777-3112

Attprneys jor Witliam Leonard. Chapter 7 Trustee

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THFE. PISTRICT OF NEVADA

In re: ! Case No.: BK-8-13-51237-GWZ
I Chapter: 7
FAUL A, MORABITO, ;
! Hearing:
Debtor. Dale;  Decernber 22, 2063

.._ Tine: %00 a.m.

ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO COMPEL
RESPONSES TO DEPOSITION QUESTIONS

The Mntimz tn Compel Responses to Deposition Questions |ECF No. 452] (the

“Motion™, filed by William Leonard, Chapter 7 Trustec (the “Trustee™), by and through his

counsel. the lew firm of Garman Tumer Gordon LLP, with regard 1o the deposition of Dennis

Vaeeo ("Vaeco™) in the State Court Case! came on for hearing before the ahove-captioned Court

! Yerms not athes wise defined in thiz Order are as defined in the Mation.

Page 11 of 17
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on Decernber 22, 2015, at 9:00 am. (the “Hearing™). Gerald M. Gordon, Fsq. of Garman Tumer
Gordon LLP sppeared as special counsel and John F. Murtha, Fsq. of Woodburn & Wedge
appeared as general counsel on behalf of the Trustee. Frank €. Gilmomz, Fsq. of Robison
Belausiegui Sharp & Low and Jeffrey L. Hartman, Esq. of Hartman & Hartman appeared on
behalf of the debior Paul A. Morabitoe (the “Debior). Timothy A. Lukas, Esg. of Holland &
Hart appeared on behall of USHF Cellular Communications, LLC and Janet 1.. Chubb, Esg. of
Kacmpfer Crowell appeared on behalf of Virsenet, LLC. Holly Estes, Esq. of Waller & Wilhclm
Law Group appeared on hehall of Edward Bayuk and the Meadow Farms Irevocable Trust. All

olher appearances were noted on the record at the Ilearing,

The Court having reviewed the Motion and all matiers submitted therewith as well as the |

oppositions filed thereto: notice of the Motion having beep proper; the Court finding and
concluding that: () the Court has jurisdiction 1o hear and decide the Motion: (b} the atomev-
client privilege related 10 Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedmon, LLP's (“Lippes Mathias™
production of documents and Vaceo's testimony during the deposition {s that of the Debtor: (¢} it
15 the Deblor’s obligation to provide a privilege log with respect to the documents being withheld
on the basis of privilege because the Debior is asserting the privilege: {d) the invocalion of the
privilege by the Debtor affects property of his estate pursuant to Section 541 of the Bankrupicy

Code hat s alleged te bave been [raudulently transterred; (&) as o the gleeutions madv in the

Supurpumper. Ine.. in which 1 *enniz Vacco was counscl 1ar the transieror and the transferees, the
Trustec has made a prima facie showing of frand as required by the crime/fraud exception fo the
attorney-client privilege. which showing has not been rebutted: (1) the inquiry required by the
crime/frand exception is fucused on what the client wanied (o accomplish — whether the c]ic:nl

intended to further some fraudulent activity and engape counsel to assist in that activity; the

Coant_is_not_eanvineed that the_timing of the legal services or whether the attorney’s legal

the transfer of the shares of Surcrpumper,_Ine.. in shich Dennis_ Vaces wus counsel_for the
wIp MOWA by WMids GRPLTAL] (e the

2
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transteror and_the iransferees, the Trustee has met his burden to waive the Debtor's alomey-

client privilege under the balancing test: and (h) as a result, the Trustec has, consistent with

applicable law, waived the Debtor™s atlomney-client privilege with Lippes Mathias and Vacco as

Uratisfer_of' the shares of Superpumper, g, in which Dennis Vaceo was counsel for the

Lansferor and e Lry Having siated the Court's additional findings of fact and

conclusions of law on the record at the Hearing, which are hereby incorporated hergin by
reference in accordance with Rule 52 of the 1'ederal Rules of Civil Procedure. made applicable
pursuant to Rele 9014 of the Federal Kules of Bankruptey Procedure; and good cause appeating
therefore,

I'T 1S HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREER as follows:

1. ‘The Motion is granled as provided herein.

2. The elimination of Debtor"s attarmey-client privilege with Lippes Mathias and
Vaceo as provided for herein eafends to the Disputed Questions that were asked and shiected 1o
in the deposition of Yacco, any other questions that may be asked of Vacco at the continued
deposition, and any docureents thal may have been withhsld by Lippes Mathias, the Debtor, or
Debtor’s counsel in tesponse 10 the subpocnas for documents ot grounds that disclosure was not
required because of the Debtor's attomey-client privilege with Lippes Mathiss and Vaceo.

previded that the Trustee, can estahlish, to the Couns satisfactivn, that v questjons asked. or

{raud.

3. Hthe Lrastee desires o re-compience Qe deposition of Dvinis Vaoew, the parties
may submil briefs simuManeously of no longer than ten (10) pages, by $:00 p.m. on the last
business day which is ten {10} calendar days prior (o the recarnmenced deposition, in which the
ponies may bricf any_attomey-client privilepe issucs and disputes that the Debtor and partics to
the Siate Court Case anticipate arising at the continued disposition 10 cxpedite the reselution any
addilional disputes.

1. The parties shal) voordinate with the Court's staff so ihal the Courl is availahle

3

! Detated; <41 ippes Mathias sod Vacen thalt
disctoie and make avaitabls 10 the Trusee
i dueatirvents ungd fRbosTation retaed o e

; 1epresemtation of ihe Debior that eould miuywss He

protected from disclnsre under the priviege ©
{ i Wilhin ten {10) ealende: days of eniny of this

1he hasiz of privilege "
- the State Cowt Cosc.M
i Defeted: 1

| Oder, the Dehtor gkall pravide the Trusice
privilege Jog with respect 1o Al duguasans withiheld

#=The deposition of Vages shall recommenee in
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telephonically to resolve any disputes thay arise during the comtinued deposition.

1T 18 SO ORDERED,

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED:

GARMAN TURNER GORDON 1LP

GERALD M. GORDON, ISQ.

Nevada Bar No. 229

TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, GSQ.

Nevada Bar No. 9605

MARK M, WEISENMILLER, ES().

Nevada Bar No, 12128

650 White Drive. Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Tel: {735) 777-3000

Artorneys for Chapter 7 Trustee, William A Leonard

922
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LR 9021 CERTIFICATION

In accordunce with LR 9021, counse] submitling this documenl centifies as follow s:

L
0

The Court waived the requirement of approval under 1.R 902 1(b)(1).

No party appeared on the Mation at the hearing or filed an objection w :

the Motion.

I have delivered a copy of this proposed order o all counsel who

appeared at the hearing, and any unrepresemed parties who appearcd at ;

the hearing. and each has approved or disapproved the order as stated

above,

FRANK C. GILMORE, ESQ. & JEFFREY L. HARTMAN. ES(Q). - For
Debtor - ATPROVED

JANET L. CHUB®B, ESQ. ~ For Virsenet, LLC ~ APPROVED

TIMOTHY A, LUKAS, ESQ. — For USHF Cellular Communications,
LLC - APPROVED

HOLLY ESTES, LSQ. — For Edward Bayuk and Meadow Fasms
Irevocable Trust — APPROVED

JOHN F. MURIHA, ESQ. - for Chapter 7 Irustee . APPROVED
I'have eertified that under Chapter 7 or 13. that [ have served a copy of

this order with the motion pursuant to LR 9014(g), and that no party has
objection to the form or cantent of the order.

#H4
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Robrson, Belaustegui,
Shinp & Low

M Waslingtan St
Remy, NV 89503
{775} 3293151
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to FRBP 7005 and FRCP 5(b), 1 certify that I am an employee of ROBISON,
BELAUSTEGUIL SHARP & LOW, that I am over the agc of 18 and not a party to the above-
referenced case, and that on the date below 1 caused to be served a true copy of the DEBTOR’S
OBJECTION TO PROPOSED ORDER GRANTING MOTION TQ COMPEL
RESPONSES TO DEPOSITION QUESTIONS on all parties to this action by the method(s)
indicated below:

X T hereby certify that on the date below, I electronically filed the foregoing with

the Clerk of the Court by using the ECF system which served the following

parties electronically:

Gabrielle A, Hamm
ghamm@gtg. lepal

Brian R, Irvine
birvine/@dickinsonwrighi.com,
mreel@dicksonwright.com

Attorney for Creditor Berry-Hinckley Industries,
Creditor JH, Inc., Creditor Jerry Herbst

Gerald M. Gordon
ppordondigty. legal

Teresa M. Pilatowicz

tpilatowicz@gtg legal
Mark M. Weisenmiller

mweisenmiller@gty.legal, bknoties(@gtg legal
Atrorney for Creditor Berry-Hinckley Industries,
Creditor JH, Inc., Creditor Jerry Herbst

Jeffrey L. Hartman
notices(@bankrupicyreno.com
Attorney for Paul A. Morabito

Robert M. Charles, Jr.

rcharles@lriaw com,
BankrupteyNotices@hrlaw.com

Attorney for Interested Party Lewis and Roca
LLP

Janet L. Chubb, Esqg.

Lbubala@kenvlaw.com,
mmarshwkenvlaw.com, chvine@ikenvlaw.com
Attorney for Virsenett, LLC

US. TRUSTEE - RN - 11
USTPRegion] 7.RE.ECFusdo).eov
US. Trustee

Gilbert B. Weisman, Esq.
Becket & Lee LLP
notices(@ibecket-lee.com
Attorney for Creditor American
Express Centurion Bank

Gilbert B. Weisman, Esq.

Becket & Lee LLP
notices(e@beckel-lee.com

Autorney for Creditor Toyota Motor
Credit Corporation and American
Express Centurion Bank

Michael R, Kealy
Mkealy@pparsenshehie.com

Attorney for Party in Intergst Desi
Moreno 2001 Trust, Ohm Place/4900
Mill Street, LLC, Mill Ohm Posada,
LLC, 788 Mallory, LLC

Cecelia Lee, Esqg,

Elizabeth High, Esq.
efile@cecilialec.net

Attgrrey for Paul A. Morabito

Seth Adams, Esq.
sadams{@woodburnandwedge.com,
NVBK@mccarthvhaolihus.com
John F, Murtha, Esq.
imurthai@woodburnwedge.com,
dlercari@woodburnwedge.com
Attorney for Trustec William
Leonard
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27

28 !

Robison, Belsustegn,
Sharg & |onw

71 Washinpeton 5,
Reno, NV 39503
(1753 329-3181
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William Leonard Timothy Lucas, Esq,

BiftTe@mindspring. com, cad6@eciebis.com Leflukast@hollandhart.com
Antorney for USHF Cellular

Communications, LLC

Amy N. Tirre, Esq. Howard J. Weg, Esq.
amyi@amytirrelaw.com, hwegirobinskaplan.com
admin@amytirrelaw.com Attorney for Debtor Paul Morabito

X___ by placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope,
with sufficient postage affixed thereto, in the United States mail at
Reno, Nevada, addressed to:

BMW Financial Services NA, LL.C Department  Recovery Management Systems

Post Office Box 201347 Corporation
Arlington, TX 76006 25 SE 2™ Avenue, Suite 1120
Miami, Florida 331331-1605
Garman Turner Gordon Gordon Silver
650 White Drive Suite 100 3960 Howard Hughes Parkway, 9"
Las Vegas, NV 89119 Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169

DATED: This ZZ-day of January, 2016.

\&Z’L;( (Gusstt (o>
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